Town of Essex
Selectboard
Phone: (802) 878-1341
Email: manager@essex.org

Regular Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, February 23, 2022 − 6:30 PM
REMOTE ONLY

This meeting will be held remotely. Available options to watch or join the meeting:
• WATCH: the meeting will be live streamed on Town Meeting TV.
• JOIN ONLINE: Join Zoom Meeting.
• JOIN CALLING: (toll free audio only): (888) 788-0099 | Meeting ID: 987 8569 1140; Passcode:
032060

1.

CALL TO ORDER

6:30 PM

2.

AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES

3.

APPROVE AGENDA

4.

PUBLIC TO BE HEARD
a. Comments from Public on Items Not on Agenda

5.

BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Presentation of Audit Report
b. Discussion and possible action on Town of Essex Rule Requiring Wearing Face Coverings
Indoors in Public Spaces
c. *Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services and
boards/commissions/committees between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction

6.

CONSENT ITEMS
a. Consider approval of first, second, and third class liquor license renewals
b. Approve Wastewater allocation request for 23.0 E.U. - 87 Pinecrest Drive
c. Approve minutes: January 24, 2022 (Joint); February 7, 2022; February 15, 2022 (Joint)
d. Approve check warrants: #17949 - 02/07/2022; #17951 - 02/11/2022

7.

READING FILE
a. Board member comments
b. Memo from Dennis Lutz re: Status of Winter Operations through 7 February 2022
c. Letter from Jeffrey Carr re: resignation from Chittenden County Regional Planning
Commission and Tri-Town Sewer Committee
d. Upcoming meeting schedule

8.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. *An executive session may be requested to discuss contracts

This agenda is available in alternative formats upon request. Meetings of the Selectboard, like all programs and
activities of the Town of Essex, are accessible to people with disabilities. For information on accessibility or this
agenda, call the Town Manager's office at 878-1341.
Certification: _______________________

02/18/2022
_________________
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Memorandum
To:
From:
Re:
Date:

Selectboard; Evan Teich, Unified Manager
Courtney Bushey, Finance Director
Presentation of Audit Report
February 23, 2022

Issue
The issue is to inform the Selectboard about the FY21 financial statement audit.
Discussion
Bill Keyser of Kittell Branagan & Sargent will be giving an overview of the FY21 financial
statement audit and taking questions.
Cost
None.
Recommendation
None.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont
Essex, Vermont

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Essex, Vermont, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
154 North Main Street, St. Albans, Vermont 05478

I P 802.524.9531 I 800.499.9531

f F 802.524.9533

www.kbscpa.com
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To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont
Page2

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Essex, Vermont, as of June 30, 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information on page 40, the schedule of proportionate share
of the net pension liability on page 41 and the schedule of contributions on page 42 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the infonnation for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Town of Essex, Vennont's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.
The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.
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To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont
Page2

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 14, 2022,
on our consideration of the Town of Essex, Vermont's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Essex, Vermont's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

St.~~~~~*¥

January 14, 2022
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021
Management of the Town of Essex (the Town) offers readers of the basic financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021. Readers should consider this information in conjunction with the financial statements immediately
following this analysis. Please note that this section of the Basic Financial Statements is unaudited.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Government-wide Highlights


The Town’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $39,437,408 (net position). Of this amount,
$9,148,090 (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations. The
balance of net position is made up of $29,406,261 invested in capital assets net of related debt
and $883,057 restricted for specific purposes.



The Town’s total net position increased by $1,634,322 (4.32%). Of this amount, net position of
the governmental activities increased by $1,329,885 (4.52%), and net position attributable to
business-type activities increased by $304,437 (3.63%).



The Town’s total debt decreased during the fiscal year to $5,906,748, a net decrease of principal
payments total $530,463 as the Town did not incur any new debt during the fiscal year. Of the
principal payments totaling $530,463; of these, $14,147 were in the water and sewer fund.

Fund Highlights


At the end of the fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $9,420,440 an increase of $1,016,947 from the prior year’s combined ending fund
balance.



At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed,
assigned, and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $5,761,196; or
approximately 39.94% of total general fund expenditures (excluding transfers) in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2021. The Town has a fund balance policy authorizing the Town to maintain and
administer an unassigned fund balance of up to 15% of the current year General Fund operating
budget. The unassigned fund balance of $2,381,690 as of June 30, 2021 is 14.95% of the General
Fund operating budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 ($15,926,128).

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements which are presented in three sections: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund
financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic financial
statements, this report also contains other and required supplementary information such as a general fund
budget to actual comparison.
It is important for the reader to understand that, although governmental accounting resembles private
sector accounting, the two differ significantly. The government-wide financial statements will be the
most familiar for readers versed in private sector financial reporting. Readers should know that the
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financial activities of the government unit are recorded in funds. A fund, generally, is a separate set of
books for each major activity. For example, the Town has a Water and Sewer Fund and a Recreation
Programs Fund. These operations are referred to as business-type activities, they are supported by user
fees, and are recorded in enterprise funds separately from the general governmental activities which are
accounted for primarily in the general fund and supported in large part by property tax revenues.
Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements provide a general overview of the Town’s operations
presenting all data on a full accrual basis, similar to the way a private sector business would present its
financial statements. There are two statements presented at the government-wide level: the Statement
of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. Within each of these statements, governmental activities
are presented separately from business-type activities. The governmental activities reflect the Town’s
basic services; including general government, public safety, public works, community development,
parks and recreation, and public improvements. Property taxes finance the majority of these services
supplemented by program fees, grant revenues, and other miscellaneous revenues such as investment
earnings or proceeds from the sale of assets. The business-type activities reflect private-sector-type
operations for which user fees recover all or a significant portion of costs. The business-type activities
of the Town include the water and sewer operations and recreation programming.
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Town’s assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.
The Statement of Activities reports how the Town’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected
taxes and earned but unused leave time).
The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town itself (referred to as the primary
government), but also other legally separate entities for which the Town is financially accountable
(referred to as component units). During the current year, the Town was not responsible for any entities
that qualify as component units.
The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 1 and 2 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements
A fund is a group of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate finance-related legal compliance. The funds of the Town are
segregated into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Unlike the government-wide financial
statements however, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
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of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Consequently, the governmental fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps the reader determine the level of financial resources that are available to finance the Town’s
programs in the near future. Because this information does not encompass the long-term focus of the
government-wide statements, additional information is provided that reconciles the governmental fund
financial statements to the government-wide statements explaining the relationship between the two.
The Town maintains two governmental funds - the General Fund and the Capital Projects Fund.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 3 through 6 of this report. The
Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement is
provided on page 40 for the purpose of demonstrating compliance with the duly appropriated budget.
Reconciliation of Government-wide Financial Statements to Fund Financial Statements The
governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements and the governmental funds of the
fund financial statements do not use the same accounting basis or measurement focus. Because the focus
of governmental funds is more limited than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. This comparison can help readers
better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
funds and governmental activities. These reconciliations are presented on the page immediately
following each governmental fund financial statement.
The following indicates some of the reporting differences between the government-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements.






Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported on governmental fund statements.
Long-term liabilities, unless due and payable, are not included in the fund financial statements.
These liabilities are only included in the government-wide statements.
Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures are deferred
in governmental fund statements, but not deferred on the government-wide statements.
Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but is
reported as expenditures in the fund financial statements.
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources on the fund financial statement, but are
recorded as long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds are used to account for a government’s business-type activities at the fund level. There
are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The Town maintains two enterprise funds: the Water and Sewer Fund and the Recreation
Programs Fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs
internally among various functions. At this time, the Town has no internal service funds.
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the Water and
Sewer Fund and the Recreation Programs Fund separately. The proprietary fund financial statements of
the Town may be found on pages 7 through 9.
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Fiduciary funds, also known as trust and agency funds, account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the programs of the Town.
The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The Town
maintains a Cemetery Trust Fund and an Agency Fund for developer escrow funds. The Town’s
fiduciary activities are reported in a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position beginning on page 10.
Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is necessary to obtain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
serve to explain, clarify, and expand upon the financial data presented in the financial statements, and
provide some additional information. The notes can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements.
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, certain Supplementary
Information is provided, including a budgetary comparison statement for the general fund, information
on changes in the net pension liability, employer contributions to pensions, and investment returns. The
supplementary information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial statements in
this report.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Summary Statement of Net Position
Gonrnmeotal .'\cth-itie.a
2021
2020

Assets:
C.-.h
Other Assets
Capital Asset.s
Total Asset.s

s

17,491,165
664,653
30,848,702
49,004,520

s

Bu.aineu -!;rl!e .'\ctiritie.a
2021
2020

Total Gonrnmeot
2021
2020

15,197,656
861,634
29,965,433
46,024,723

S 3,836,958
1,144,132
4,463,308
9,444,398

S 3,739,097
689,472
4,7 16,925
9,145,494

S 21,328,123
1,808,785
35,312,010
58,448,918

S 18,936,753
1,55 1,106
34,682,358
55,170,217

2,044,782

1,388,296

219,926

141,788

2,264,708

1,530,084

9,223,702
10,74 2,874
19,966,576

8,000,956
9,832,659
17,833,615

157,617
797,413
955,030

242,287
659,065
901,352

9,38 1,3 19
11,540,287
20,921,606

8,243,243
10,491,724
18,734,967

326,521

153,084

28,091

9,164

354,612

162,248

Net Position:
Net Inve-stment in Capital Assets
Re-stric-ted
Unre-stric-ted

25,100,960
883,057
4,772,188

23,701,376
815,159
4,909,785

4,305,301
0
4,375,902

4,544,77 1
0
3,83 1,995

29,406,261
883,057
9,148,090

28,246,147
815,159
8,74 1,780

Total Net Position

30,756,205

29,426,320

8,68 1,203

8,376,766

39,437,408

37,803,086

Deferred Outflows of R.e--->0uc es
Liabilities:
Other Liabilities
NonC'\l.tl'ent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows of Re--->0uc es

As noted earlier, net position serves as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position over time.
At the end of the most recent fiscal year, the Town’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $39,437,408. The Town’s total net position is split
between governmental activities net position of $30,756,205 and business-type activities net position of
$8,681,203.
The largest portion of the Town’s total net position $25,100,960 (74.56%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (construction in progress, equipment, land, buildings and infrastructure) net of any
outstanding debt used to acquire or construct those assets. The Town uses capital assets to provide
services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Town’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay the debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.
The Town’s total net position includes $883,057 (2.24%) of restricted net position. Restricted net
position represents assets whose use is subject to external restrictions. The remaining balance of
$4,772,188 (23.20%) is unrestricted net position, which may be used to meet the government’s ongoing
financial obligations. Included in unrestricted net position are amounts that have been assigned for
particular purposes, such as capital reserve funds and reserves for expenditures in subsequent years.
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Summary of the Statement of Actfritie.s
Gonrnmeotal .'\cth-itie.a
2021
2020
Revent;;':'S:
Program Revent;;':'S:
Charges fM Services
Operating Grants & Revent;;':'S
Capital Grants & Revent;;':'S
General Revent;;':'S:
Property T axes
Other
Total Reven\>':'S

s

961,344
1,605,439
430,025

s

990,148
996,666
77,489

14,3 19,83 1
220..365
17,537,004

14,089,536
330.502
16,484,341

3,241,955
5,583,553
4,922,438
256,369
1,494,190
483,057
224,632

3,366,490
5,433,921
4,576,172
272,247
1,568,480
472,134
194,779

Expens':'S:
General Govecm.ment
Pt.blic Safety
Highways and Streets
Health and Welfa.re
Cu.Hu.re and Recreation
lntergovecm.mental
lntere-st on Long-T erm Debt
Water and Sewer
Recreation Programs
Total Expens':'S

16,206,194

15,884,223

Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Before T ransfers
T ransfers
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
Beginning Net Position -as reported

1,330,810
(925)
1,329,885
29,426,320

600,118
(583)
599,535
28,826,786
29,426,320

Ending Net Position

s

30,756,205

s

Bu.aineu-!;rl!e .'\ctiritie.a
2021
2020

Total Gonrnmeot
2021
2020

s

S 3,185,024
287,949

13.503
3,590,186

19.594
3,492,567

14,3 19,83 1
233.868
21,127,190

14,089,536
350.096
19,976,908

3,025,587
261,087
3,286,674

2,854,558
334,243
3,188,801

3,241,955
5,583,553
4,922,438
256,369
1,494,190
483,057
224,632
3,025,587
261,087
19,492,868

3,366,490
5,433,921
4,576,172
272,247
1,568,480
472,134
194,779
2,854,558
334,243
19,073,024

303,512
925
304,437
8,376,766
S 8,68 1,203

303,766
583
304,349
8,072,416

1,634,322

903,884

1,634,322
37,803,086
S 39,437,408

903,884
36,899,202
S 37,803,086

S 8,376,766

4,414,899
1,728,567
430,025

s

S 3,453,555
123,128

4,175,172
1,284,615
77,489

Governmental Activities
Governmental activities increased the Town’s net position by $1,329,885 for the year ended June 30,
2021. Key elements of the change are as follows.


Total governmental activities’ revenues increased by 6.4% ($1,052,663) from 2020 to 2021.
Capital grants and revenues increased by $608,773 (61.1%) while operating grants and revenues
increased by $352,536, both of which are largely due to grants specifically related to the impacts
of COVID-19.



Property tax revenues increased 1.6% or $230,295 from the previous year as a result of growth
in the grand list combined with a 0.0218 cent (4.3%) increase in the Town general fund tax rate.



Total governmental activities’ expenses increased by 2.0% ($321,971) from 2020 to 2021.
Public Safety expenses end the year at 34.5% ($5,583,553) of total governmental activities’
expenses. Public Safety remains the largest category of expenses from year to year followed by
Highways and Streets which ended the year at 30.4% ($4,922,438) of total governmental
activities’ expenses and includes funding for the operating budgets of the Highways and
Stormwater departments of the Village of Essex Junction.

The following graph entitled Expense and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities, gives the
reader an idea of how each major program is funded. The revenues included in this graph are program
specific revenues including user fees, operating grants, and capital grants. General revenues such as
Page 14 of 151

TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2021
property taxes and interest earnings are excluded from the graph but are used to support the cost of each
major program that is not covered by program specific revenues. The supporting data may be found in
the Statement of Activities on page 2. As noted previously, Public Safety is the largest category of
expenses in the current year and historically, followed by Highways and Streets.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental
Activities
Health and…
Program
Revenues

Culture and…
Highways…

Expense

Public Safety
General…
‐

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

The majority of governmental activities revenue comes from property taxes; 81.7% of total revenue or
$14,319,831. The second largest category of revenue is operating grants coming in at $1,605,439; 9.2%
of total revenue. Charges for services are the third largest category of revenue accounting for 5.5% or
$961,344. An increase in operating and capital grants totaling account for the shift in percentage of
revenues over fiscal year 2020. Prior year property tax revenue accounted for 85.5% of total revenues,
operating grants and revenues at 6.0% and charges for services at 6.0%. The following graph shows the
distribution of governmental activities revenues by source for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
Property taxes
81.7%

Other revenues
1.3%

Capital grants
2.5%

Operating grants
9.2%

Charges for services
5.5%

Page 15 of 151

TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
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Business-type Activities
Business-type activities increased the Town’s net position by $304,437 (3.63%) during the current fiscal
year. Key elements of this increase are as follows:


Total revenues of $3,590,186 were $97,619 or 2.8% higher than the previous year. The increase
is attributable to a $268,531 (8.43%) increase in charges for services as well as a reduction in
operating grants and revenues and other revenues by $164,821 and $6,091 respectively.



Total expenses of $3,286,674 reflect an increase of $97,873 (3.1%) over the prior year. This
increase is primarily on the water and sewer side with $171,029 of the change offset by a $73,156
decrease in recreation costs.

The Town’s business-type activities are supported by user fees, also referred to as charges for services
of $3,453,555 or 96.2%, with assistance from operating grants of $123,128 or 3.4% and investment
income $13,503 at 0.4%.

Revenues by Source - Business-type Activities
Charges for services
96.2%

Operating grants
3.4%

Investment income
0.4%

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS
As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal requirements. Information presented and discussed in this section is specific to the fund
financial statements.
Governmental Funds
The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is to provide information on current year revenue,
expenditures, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s
financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds (general fund and capital projects
fund) reported combined ending fund balances of $9,420,440, an increase of $1,016,947 over the prior
year. Of the total fund balance amount, $330,330 is non-spendable (prepaid items and inventories) and
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$883,057 is restricted, which indicates it is not available for discretionary spending, as it is otherwise
restricted by grant agreements, statutes, or debt covenants. Of the remaining amount, $5,825,363 has
been assigned by the Town for various purposes (detailed in Note 15 Fund Balances and Net Position)
and unassigned fund balance is $2,381,690.
Governmental Funds
Components of Fund Balance
June 30, 2020 and 2021
Unassigned

• 2020
• 2021

Assigned
Restricted
Nonspendable
‐

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. At the end of the year, total fund balance in
the general fund was $6,974,584, an increase of $1,395,894 from the previous year. Of this amount,
$330,330 is non-spendable and $883,057 is restricted. Assignments totaling $3,379,506 in the general
fund are detailed in Note 15 and unassigned fund balance is $2,381,690. As a measure of the general
fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Total
fund balance represents approximately 43.79% of total general fund expenditures (excluding transfer),
however, this amount includes nonspendable and restricted balances which would not be available to
finance general fund expenditures if necessary. The remaining categories of fund balance (committed,
assigned, and unassigned) are referred to as unrestricted fund balance and are resources that could be
liquidated to support general fund expenditures if necessary. Unrestricted fund balance represents
39.94% of total general fund expenditures, excluding transfers.
The Selectboard is the body that authorizes assignments of fund balance in accordance with its fund
balance policy and has the authority to make changes if they see fit. The Town’s fund balance policy
limits the amount of unassigned fund balance in the general fund to 15% of the current year’s general
fund operating budget.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The Town’s budget for the year ended June 30, 2021 passed on the first vote at Town Meeting in March
of 2020. There were no amendments made to the budget during the year.
On the revenue side, the Town recorded property tax revenue less than the amount budgeted by $129,782
and fines and forfeits revenue less than the amount budgeted by $53,742. Recording fees exceeding
budget by $108,102 as a result in the state increased recording fee as well as the housing boom.
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Intergovernmental revenues exceeded budget by $163,455; of this $67,898 is the amount received for
future reappraisals which has been reserved for such in the general fund fund balance.
Public safety expenditures were $613,874 under budget driven by unanticipated vacancies. Culture and
recreation expenditures were $164,118 under budget, the majority of which was a result of actual
personnel costs that were less than budgeted. General government expenditures were under budget
overall by $47,632.
During the year, the Town collected unbudgeted grants and other revenues totaling $954,936 which went
to offset unbudgeted grant and other expenditures totaling $574,212. The second largest grant was the
grant funding the Community Justice Center at $287,614 for the year. Other items in this category are
federal forfeiture funds used for public safety purposes, unrestricted revenue raised by the Community
Justice Center, and a small number of miscellaneous grants.
Proprietary Funds
The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.
Total net position in the Water and Sewer Fund is $8,699,791 an increase of 2.49% or $211,162 from
the previous year. Nearly half of the Water and Sewer Fund’s net position is invested in capital assets
net of related debt; 49.49% or $4,305,301. This is a decrease from the previous year when the net
investment in capital assets was $4,544,770. Over time, the net book value (historical cost less
accumulated depreciation) of assets decreases with the systematic allocation of the cost of said assets
over their useful life by way of annual depreciation expense. Of the $4,394,390 balance in unrestricted
net position at the end of the year, $993,412 is designated for future capital projects and $11,924 is
designated for prepaid expenses. This balance designated for future capital projects grows annually by
the amount of connection fees received in excess of the amount budgeted to offset operating expenses.
The Town’s second proprietary fund is the Recreation Programs Fund which was authorized by the
Selectboard during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This fund accounts for the majority of recreation
programs which are expected to be supported by user fees. Program revenues, unlike property tax
revenues, are derived from exchange transactions where the user receives a service of perceived equal
value to the amount the user is willing to pay for the service. For the year ended June 30, 2021, this fund
realized a net gain from operations in the amount of $93,276. The fund has a deficit fund balance of
$18,586.
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The Town’s capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2020 were
$65,391,271 offset by $30,708,913 in accumulated depreciation resulting in capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation of $34,682,358. This investment in capital assets includes land, construction
in progress, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and infrastructure.
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S ummary of Capital As sets
Gonrumeotal Acth-itie.a
202 1

Capital Ass: t.s:
Land

s

Comtruction in Progress

Bu.itdinp and lmprovement.s
l\1achinecry and Equ.ipment
Book Collection
Infra,struc-tu.re

Less: Acci;.mulated Depreciation
T o tal Ass: t.s, N et

s

4,636,481
287,059
11,780,569
8,643,218
459,726
27,772,080
53,579,133
(22,730,431)
30,848,702

2020

s

4,636,481
1,092,454

s

11,503,100
7,737,568
459,726
26,202,586
51,63 1,915
(21,666,482)
29,965,433

Total Gonrumeot
2020

Bu.aineu-t;ree Actiritie.a
202 1
2020

s

s
37,565

26,650

574,753

530,956

13,207,025
13,819,343
(9,356,035)
S 4,463,308

13,201,750
13,759,356
(9,042,431)
S 4,7 16,925

202 1

s

s

S 35,312,010

65,391,271
(30,708,913)
S 34,682,358

4,636,481
324,624
11,780,569
9,217,971
459,726
40,979,105
67,398,476
(32,086,466)

4,636,481
1,119,104
11,503,100
8,268,524
459,726
39,404,336

Major capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 included the following.
Governmental Activities


Highway projects including reconstruction, paving, ditching, and culvert work totaled $455,318
with work done on multiple roads in town.



Six vehicles were purchased including two highway vehicles, a fire pumper and three police
vehicles for a total of $1,140,977. This was offset by the retirement, disposal or trade of six
vehicles with original cost totaling $431,082, four of which were fully depreciated.

Business-Type Activities


Asset additions include in the Pinecrest Drive insertion valve, various hydrants and pump station
control panel upgrades at the Gauthier pump station.



The Town has two projects in process: waterline improvements at the Sandhill and VT15
intersection and waterline improvements in the Town Center.

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 Capital Assets.
Long-Term Debt
The Town began the year with $6,437,211 in long-term debt outstanding. As of June 30, 2021, this
amount had decreased by $530,463 or 8.24% to end the current year with $5,906,748 in long-term debt
outstanding.
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Slllllma11• of Long Tenn Debt
June 30. 1010

Gonrnmental Ac.th-ities
General Obligation Bonds
Capital Lease
Business-type Ac.tfrities
Water and Sewer Bond
Total Gonrnment

s

4,830,000
1,435,057

Additions

s

Deletions

s

172.154

s

6.437.211

345,000
171,3 16

June 30. 1021

s

14.147

s

s

530.463

4,485,000
1,263,741
158.007

s

5.906.748

The Town entered into no new debt during the year and made all required payments on the two items of
long-term debt outstanding. Additional information about long-term debt can be found in Note 10 Notes
and Bonds Payable and Note 11 Capital Lease.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET
Consolidation of Service Delivery Systems


Starting in FY2015 the Town entered into an agreement with the Village of Essex Junction and the
Essex Junction School District to bill and collect their property taxes. This action was an effort to
reduce the duplication of services that existed. As part of the agreement the Town assumed the
delinquent taxes of the Village and Village School District. The Town of Essex will continue to do
the school tax billing for those residents that reside in the Town of Essex.



In FY14 the Town and Village entered into an agreement to share the services of the Town Manager
as the Municipal Manager for both entities. This arrangement led to the Village sharing the salary
costs of the Manager with the Town, thereby reducing the cost to all taxpayers. In FY2015 it was
determined that this cost sharing was beneficial and efforts should continue to find more areas to
cooperate in the delivery of services to be more efficient. This arrangement has resulted in substantial
savings for both the Village and Town. In FY18 the current Unified Municipal Manager, Pat
Scheidel, who has been Town Manager for 27 years retired. A new Unified Municipal Manager,
Evan Teich, began employment on February 26, 2018. The decision to hire Mr. Teich was
unanimous by both the Village of Essex Junction Trustees and the Town Selectboard.



FY16 was the first of a three-year commitment to combine Highway and Street budgets with the
Village of Essex Junction. The Village Trustees adopted the Village Street budget and the Town of
Essex voters approved the funding for this budget as part of the Town budget. A Committee was
formed in the spring of 2017 to evaluate how successful this arrangement has been so far and whether
it should be continued. The Public Works Consolidation Committee came to the following
conclusions:
o Maintain the MOU until June 2018 and do the studies outlined in the report.
o Extend the MOU from July 1, 2018 until the studies are complete or well underway. The
goal is full consolidation eventually.
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o
o
o
o
o

Benchmarks will be established as a result of the studies
Cross-train staff in the Village and Town and identify common best practices
Consolidate rolling stock and equipment budgets as well as capital planning.
Practice resources management with assets, administration, processes, services.
Both the Selectboard and the Trustees approved the report.



In FY16 the Town and the Village combined accounts payable, accounts receivable, cash receipts
and general ledger. Two Village employees were relocated to the Town offices to share this work.



In FY17 the Village Clerk/Treasurer became the combined Town and Village Clerk/Treasurer when
the Town Clerk/Treasurer position became vacant through retirement.



In FY18 a Human Resources Director was hired as the combined Town and Village Human
Resources Director.



In FY19 the pay rates and practices of both Fire Departments were aligned. A combined Assistant
to the Manager position was established which is funded by both entities.



In FY20, EJRP and the Essex Parks and Recreation Department co-located at 75 Maple Street and
began streamlining services at the front desk by co-supervising the Customer Service Specialist, the
Program Director – Senior Services, and by contracting for joint Communications Services. The two
departments have hosted joint events and have moved to producing one brochure.



In FY21, The Village Highway and Streets Rolling Stock capital was added to the Highway operating
budget, funding for this budget as part of the Town budget.



In FY 20, the Village Trustees and Town Selectboard met jointly and worked to put together a merger
plan for the two entities. The Village voted during the November 2020 election on the plan of merger
and it passed 3,453 to 1,205.



The Town of Essex (including Village residents) voted via Australian ballot in Mach 2021 on Article
II for the plan of merger for the Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction. The article did not
pass, 3,737 Yes to 3,756 No. A Special Town Meeting was held in April for a vote to reconsider the
plan for merger; that vote also did not pass, 4,199 Yes to 4,225 No. The Village of Essex Junction
also held an advisory vote in April, asking voters if the Village should pursue separation from the
Town in the event the merger did not pass.



Village residents voted in a special election held November 2, 2021 on whether to adopt a proposed
charter for the City of Essex Junction, VT which would effectively separate the Village from the
Town of Essex. The vote passed 3,070 to 411. The charter for the City of Essex Junction, VT is
currently being reviewed by the state legislature for approval.

FY22 Budgets
The above listed factors were considered in preparing the Town of Essex’s budget for the 2022 fiscal
year. The approved budget resulted in a tax rate for FY22 of $0.5485 (Town General and Capital Tax),
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Rates for water and sewer operations were increased in fiscal year 2022 in response to increased costs
for water purchases and an increase in repairs and maintenance. The use of initiation fees applied to the
rate dropped from $20,000 in FY20 to zero in FY21.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances to all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Finance Department at
81 Main Street, Essex Jct., VT 05452. The report is available online at www.essexvt.org.

Page 22 of 151

TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021
Governmental Business-Type
Activities
Activities
ASSETS
Cash
Taxes receivable, net of allowance
Other accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Water and sewer infrastructure
Total Assets

$ 17,491,165 $
272,560
61,763
162,810
167,520

Total

3,836,958 $ 21,328,123
272,560
1,130,347
1,192,110
162,810
13,785
181,305

4,636,481
287,059

37,565

4,636,481
324,624

8,717,664
12,751,444
4,456,054
49,004,520

128,512
4,297,231
9,444,398

8,717,664
12,751,444
4,584,566
4,297,231
58,448,918

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to the Town's participation in VMERS

2,044,782

219,926

2,264,708

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to Village of Essex Junction
Accrued payroll and benefits payable
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest payable
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion notes and bonds payable
Current portion capital lease payable
Total Current Liabilities

603,495
7,497,024
248,887
114,663
39,418
164,398
345,000
210,817
9,223,702

110,329
17,372
11,125
790
3,571
14,430
157,617

713,824
7,497,024
266,259
125,788
40,208
167,969
359,430
210,817
9,381,319

744,661
4,806,288
4,140,000
1,051,925
10,742,874

149,707
504,129
143,577
797,413

894,368
5,310,417
4,283,577
1,051,925
11,540,287

19,966,576

955,030

20,921,606

65,344
261,177
326,521

28,091
28,091

65,344
289,268
354,612

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liability
Notes and bonds payable
Capital lease payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid property taxes
Deferred inflows of resources related to the Town's participation in VMERS
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted- designated
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

25,100,960
883,057
4,772,188
$ 30,756,205 $

4,305,301
29,406,261
883,057
1,005,336
1,005,336
3,370,566
8,142,754
8,681,203 $ 39,437,408

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Expenses
Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Highways and Streets
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Intergovernmental
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

$ 3,241,955 $
5,583,553
4,922,438
256,369
1,494,190
483,057
224,632
16,206,194

Business-type activities:
Water and Sewer
Recreation
Total business-type activities

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Program Revenues
Operating
Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Services
Revenues
Revenues

678,299 $ 686,591 $
162,436
312,475
12,129
547,487
108,480
58,886
961,344 1,605,439

3,025,587
3,099,213
123,128
261,087
354,342
$ 3,286,674 $ 3,453,555 $ 123,128 $

Governmental Business-Type
Activities
Activities

- $ (1,877,065) $
(5,108,642)
72,584
(4,290,238)
(256,369)
357,441
(969,383)
(483,057)
(224,632)
430,025
(13,209,386)

-

-

Total

- $ (1,877,065)
(5,108,642)
(4,290,238)
(256,369)
(969,383)
(483,057)
(224,632)
- (13,209,386)

196,754
93,255
290,009

196,754
93,255
290,009

General Revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Penalties and interest on delinquent taxes
Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers
Gain on sale of capital assets
Other revenues
Total general revenues and transfers

14,319,831
85,709
56,096
(925)
68,311
10,249
14,539,271

13,503
925
14,428

14,319,831
85,709
69,599
68,311
10,249
14,553,699

Change in Net Position

1,329,885

304,437

1,634,322

29,426,320

8,376,766

37,803,086

8,681,203

$ 39,437,408

Net position, beginning

$ 30,756,205

Net position, ending

$

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Capital
Projects
Fund

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash
Taxes receivable, net of allowance
Other receivables
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 14,932,727 $ 2,558,438 $ 17,491,165
272,560
272,560
42,234
19,529
61,763
162,810
162,810
167,520
167,520

Total Assets

$ 15,577,851 $ 2,577,967

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to Village of Essex Junction
Accrued payroll and benefits payable
Unearned revenue

$

Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Prepaid property taxes
Unavailable revenue - property taxes
Unavailable revenue - other
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances

$ 18,155,818

484,814 $
7,497,024
248,887
114,663

118,681 $
-

603,495
7,497,024
248,887
114,663

8,345,388

118,681

8,464,069

65,344
180,300
12,236

13,429

65,344
180,300
25,665

257,880

13,429

271,309

330,330
883,057
3,379,506
2,381,690

2,445,857
-

330,330
883,057
5,825,363
2,381,690

6,974,583

2,445,857

9,420,440

$ 15,577,851

$ 2,577,967

$ 18,155,818

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Total fund balances - governmental funds

$ 9,420,440

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds.

30,848,702

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds
Unavailable property tax revenue

180,300

Unavailable grant revenue

25,665

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities
in the funds:
Accrued compensated absences

(909,059)

Net pension liabilities

(4,806,288)

Accrued interest on long-term debt

(39,418)

Notes payable

(4,485,000)

Capital Lease

(1,262,742)

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of net position that
is applicable to a future reporting period and therefore not reported as
assets in the funds.
Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquisition of net position applicable
to a future reporting period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in funds.
Total net position - governmental activities

2,044,782

(261,177)
$ 30,756,205

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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General
Fund
REVENUES
Property tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest income
Grant income
Miscellaneous income

Capital
Projects
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$ 13,892,074 $ 535,310 $ 14,427,384
67,436
67,436
558,655
26,532
585,187
757,647
72,041
829,688
116,258
116,258
46,743
9,353
56,096
725,599
703,623
1,429,222
69,018
9,248
78,266
1,356,107
17,589,537
16,233,430

Total Revenues
EXPENDITURES
Current expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Highways and Streets
Stormwater
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Intergovernmental
Capital Outlays:
Public safety
Highways and Streets
Stormwater
Culture and Recreation
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

2,650,343
4,732,151
3,380,382
293,361
253,764
1,269,117
483,057

25,372
2,500
57,654
165,874
46,990
-

2,675,715
4,734,651
3,438,036
459,235
253,764
1,316,107
483,057

269,274
547,855
9,762

256,197
868,605
496,033
47,566

525,471
1,416,460
496,033
57,328

350,343
185,292
14,424,701

165,973
43,950
2,176,714

516,316
229,242
16,601,415

1,808,729

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
Operating transfers in/(out)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

(412,925)
(412,925)

(820,607)

29,750
412,000
441,750

29,750
(925)
28,825

Net Change in Fund Balance

1,395,804

Fund Balance - July 1, 2020

5,578,779

2,824,714

8,403,493

$ 6,974,583

$ 2,445,857

$ 9,420,440

Fund Balance - June 30, 2021

(378,857)

988,122

1,016,947

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Net change in fund balances - governmental funds

$ 1,016,947

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Depreciation Expense

(1,650,584)

Capital Outlay

2,495,292

Proceeds from Sale of Asset

(29,750)

Gain on Sale of Asset

68,311

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.
Decrease in the unavailable property taxes

(138,100)

Decrease in the unearned and other unavailable revenue

(64,657)

Issuance and repayment of long-term debt are revenue and expenditures in the
governmental funds, but the Issuance and repayment increase and decrease
long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of long-term debt

345,000

Repayment of capital lease

171,316

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Pension expense

(688,031)

Accrued interest on long-term debt

4,610

Accrued compensated absences

(200,469)

Change in net position of governmental activities

$ 1,329,885

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Water
& Sewer
Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable - net
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

$ 3,806,946
1,130,347
11,924
4,949,217

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation:
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles
Water and sewer infrastructure
Total Noncurrent Assets
Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to the Town's
participation in VMERS
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Current portion compensated absences
Current portion long-term debt
Accrued payroll
Unearned revenue
Other accrued expenses
Total Current Liabilities

Recreation
Fund

$

30,012
1,861
31,873

$ 3,836,958
1,130,347
13,785
4,981,090

37,565

-

37,565

128,512
4,297,231
4,463,308

-

128,512
4,297,231
4,463,308

9,412,525

31,873

9,444,398

208,635

11,291

219,926

$ 9,621,160

$

43,164

$ 9,664,324

$

$

5,288
955
11,125
17,368

$

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liabilities
Notes and bonds payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to the Town's
participation in VMERS
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted - designated
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

105,041
3,571
14,430
16,417
790
140,249

110,329
3,571
14,430
17,372
11,125
790
157,617

146,544
464,352
143,577
754,473

3,163
39,777
42,940

149,707
504,129
143,577
797,413

894,722

60,308

955,030

26,649

1,442

28,091

4,305,301
1,005,336
3,389,152
8,699,789

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Net Position

Total

$ 9,621,160

(18,586)
(18,586)

$

43,164

4,305,301
1,005,336
3,370,566
8,681,203

$ 9,664,324

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Water
& Sewer
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Connection fees
Interest and penalties
Other income
Total Operating Revenues

$ 3,099,213
66,220
36,256
20,652
3,222,341

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Professional services
Repair and maintenance
Rentals
Printing and postage
Travel
Utilities
CWD water purchases
Insurance
Machinery
Bond expense
Other operating
Depreciation expense
Recreation programming
Sewage treatment
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
Transfers
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Change in Net Position

Recreation
Fund
$

349,791
4,551
354,342

$ 3,449,004
66,220
36,256
25,203
3,576,683

804,709
54,902
171,241
655
14
62,368
688,587
20,494
21,057
225,623
15,309
313,604
647,095
3,025,658

96,312
2,521
14,352
3,157
4,366
1,066
41,010
98,303
261,087

901,021
57,423
171,241
15,007
3,157
4,380
63,434
688,587
20,494
21,057
225,623
56,319
313,604
98,303
647,095
3,286,745

196,683

93,255

289,938

13,483
71
925
14,479

20
20

13,503
71
925
14,499

211,162

93,275

304,437

8,488,627

Net Position - July 1, 2020

$ 8,699,789

Net Position - June 30, 2021

Total

(111,861)
$

8,376,766

(18,586) $ 8,681,203

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Water
& Sewer
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments for salaries and benefits

Recreation
Fund

Total

$ 2,773,838 $ 354,342 $ 3,128,180
(1,882,214)
(263,115) (2,145,329)
(729,762)
(95,593)
(825,355)
161,862

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Interest payments on debt
Principal payments on debt
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities

(4,366)

157,496

(59,987)
71
(14,147)

-

(59,987)
71
(14,147)

(74,063)

-

(74,063)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Transfers
Interest income

925
13,483

20

925
13,503

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

14,408

20

14,428

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

102,207

(4,346)

3,704,739

Cash - July 1, 2020

34,358

3,739,097

$

30,012

$ 3,836,958

196,683 $

93,255

$

$ 3,806,946

Cash - June 30, 2021

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in net assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net
Prepaid expenses
Deferred outflows of resources
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Other accrued expenses
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources

$

313,604

-

(448,503)
(4,296)
(76,937)
29,498
4,745
(71)
129,002
18,137
$

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

97,861

161,862

(1,861)
(1,201)
(8,936)
(3,080)
(87,543)
4,210
790
$

(4,366) $

289,938

313,604
(448,503)
(6,157)
(78,138)
20,562
1,665
(87,543)
(71)
133,212
18,927
157,496

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
June 30, 2021

Private Purpose
Trust Fund
Cemetary
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

$

62,967

$

62,967

$

739
739

Total Liabilities
NET POSITION
Restricted

62,228
$

Total Net Position and Liabilities

62,967

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Private Purpose
Trust Fund
Cemetary
Fund
ADDITIONS
Sales of plots
Interest on deposits

$

4,500
435
4,935

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS
Restoration

(835)
(835)

Total Deductions
Increase in Net Position

4,100
58,128

Net Position - July 1, 2020
$

Net Position - June 30, 2021

62,228

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Town of Essex, Vermont, (herein the “Town”) operates under a Select Board Manager
form of government and provides the following services: public safety (police and fire),
highways and streets, culture and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning and
general administrative services.
The accounting policies adopted by the Town conform to generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applicable to governmental entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles. The following is a summary of the more significant accounting policies employed in
the preparation of these financial statements.
A. Financial Reporting Entity
The financial statements of the Town consist only of the funds and account groups of the
Town. The Town has no oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity since no
other entities are considered to be controlled by or dependent on the Town. Control or
dependence is determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding and
appointment of the respective governing board.
B. Basis of Presentation
The accounts of the Town are organized and operated on the basis of fund accounting. A fund is
an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set of self-balancing accounts which
comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are
allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are
spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.
The basic financial statements of the Town include both government-wide statements and fund
financial statements. The focus of the government-wide statements is on reporting the operating
results and financial position of the Town as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Town's
finances. The focus of the fund financial statements is on reporting the operating results and
financial position of the most significant funds of the Town and present a shorter-term view of
how operations were financed and what remains available for future spending.
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the primary government, the Town. These statements report the
financial activities of the overall government, excluding fiduciary activities. These statements
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town.
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part
by fees charged to external parties. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of activities between funds.
12
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
with a specific program. Program revenues include (1) charges to applicants who purchase,
use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and
(2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the
Town’s funds, including fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category –
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column.
The Town reports on the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – This is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government except those accounted for in another fund.
Capital Projects Fund – This capital project fund accounts for resources established to
fund the Town’s long-term capital plan.
Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government’s general activities,
including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special revenue funds), and
the acquisition or construction of general fixed assets (capital projects). The general fund is
used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some other
fund.
The Town reports on the following major enterprise funds:
Water and Sewer Fund – This fund accounts for the operations of the Water and Sewer
Department of the Town.
Recreation Fund – This fund accounts for the majority of programs sponsored by the
Town’s Recreation Department. Programs in this fund are supported by user fees.
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the
costs of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis is to be
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Proprietary fund operating revenues,
such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of that fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment
earnings, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Additionally, the Town reports the following fiduciary fund:
Cemetery Trust Fund – This is a private purpose trust fund that accounts for monies
maintained for use in operating the Town’s cemeteries.
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town as an agent for individuals,
private organizations, other governments and/or other funds.
C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements.
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, sewer usage fees and water usage fees are
considered susceptible to accrual. Miscellaneous revenues and fees are recorded as revenue
when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until actually received.
Investment earnings are recorded as earned since they are measurable and available.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined, and available means the amount is collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.
The Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, the net pension liability, certain
compensated absences and other long-term liabilities which are recognized when the
obligations are expected to be liquidated or are funded with expendable available financial
resources.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property taxes, licenses, fees and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met, and the amount is received
during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source (within sixty days of
year-end). All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the Town.
General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of
general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing
sources.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination of
specific cost-reimbursement grants and general revenues. Thus, when program expenses are
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the program. It
is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed
by general revenues.
D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Equity
1. Cash and Investments
The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition. The Town maintains one primary cash account in the general fund to collect
money and pay bills for all funds. When money is collected and expended, the Town records
a corresponding payable or receivable to the appropriate fund. This helps manage cash and
eases administrative burdens.
2. Receivables
Receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts for the estimated losses
that will be incurred in the collection of the receivables. The estimated losses are based on the
judgment of management and a review of the current status of existing receivables.
3. Internal Balances
Activities between funds that is representative of lending or borrowing arrangements that are
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as Advances to/from Other Funds. All
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as Due to/from Other Funds. Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances".
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses
Inventory quantities are determined by physical count and are valued at the lower of cost or market.
Inventory in the General Fund consists of salt, sand and various gravels. Certain payments to
vendors reflect costs that are applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
expenses. Inventories and prepaid expenses of governmental funds in the fund financial
statements are offset by a nonspendable fund balance as these are not in spendable form.
5. Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported at actual cost or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or
deflated current replacement cost if purchased or constructed. Contributed assets are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the time received. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are
capitalized as constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase for proprietary fund
capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of any interest earned
on the invested proceeds during the same period. Interest is not capitalized during the construction
phase of capital assets used in governmental activities. The cost of normal maintenance and
repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the assets' lives are not
capitalized.
Capital assets reported in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are
depreciated in order that the cost of these assets will be charged to expenses over their estimated
service lives, generally using the straight-line method of calculating depreciation. Assets are
capitalized and recorded when all of the following criteria are met:
(1) The asset is tangible and complete.
(2) The asset is used in the operation of the Town’s activities.
(3) The asset has a $5,000 or greater value and useful life greater than one year at the date
of acquisition.
Capital assets are not reported in the governmental fund financial statements. Capital outlays in
these funds are recorded as expenditures in the year they are incurred.
6. Long-term Liabilities
Long-term liabilities include bonds, notes and capital leases payable and other obligations such as
compensated absences and the net pension liability. Long-term liabilities are reported in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. Governmental fund financial
statements do not include any long-term liabilities as those statements use the current financial
resources measurement focus and only include current liabilities on their balance sheets.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The Town has one
type of item which arises under the accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this
category. The governmental activities, the business-type activities and the proprietary funds report
deferred outflows of resources related to the Town’s participation in VMERS.
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and
so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town has two
types of items which arise under the accrual basis of accounting and three types which arise under
the modified accrual basis of accounting that qualify for reporting in this category.
The governmental activities, the business-type activities and the proprietary funds report deferred
inflows of resources from two sources: prepaid property taxes and deferred inflows of resources
related to the Town’s participation in VMERS. The governmental funds report deferred inflows of
resources from three sources: prepaid property taxes, unavailable property taxes (including penalty
and interest) and unavailable other revenue. Unavailable other revenue includes grant revenues
earned but not received within sixty days of the end of the current period.
8. Pensions
For purposes of measuring the proportionate share of the net pension liability and the related
deferred outflows and inflows of resources and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS)
pension plan and additions to or deductions from the VMERS fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same bases as they are reported by VMERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
9. Net Position
Government-wide and proprietary fund net position is divided into three components:
Net Investment in Capital Assets – consists of the historical cost of capital assets less
accumulated depreciation and less any outstanding debt that was used to finance those
assets.
Restricted – consists of net position that is restricted by the Town’s creditors, by enabling
legislation, by grantors (both federal and state) and/or by contributors.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Unrestricted – all other net position is reported in this category
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted and unrestricted
net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied.
It is the Town’s policy to use restricted net position before unrestricted net position.
10. Fund Balance
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. Fund balances are
classified as nonspendable (not in spendable form or legally required to remain intact);
restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either externally imposed by creditors,
grantors, or donors, or imposed by law through enabling legislation); committed (constraints
on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the voters); assigned (reflecting the
Selectboard’s intended use of the resources); and unassigned. Positive unassigned fund
balance can only be reported in the General Fund.
Sometimes the government will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned
fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made
about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be
used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned
fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
The Town has a fund balance policy allowing it to maintain an unassigned fund balance of up
to fifteen percent (15%) of the current year General Fund operating budget.
E. Estimates
The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those
estimates.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 2

EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVERNMENTAL FUND AND
GOVERNMENT - WIDE STATEMENTS
Governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas government-wide
financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. These differences in the measurement focus and basis of accounting
lead to differences between the governmental fund financial statements and the government-wide
financial statements as follows.
Long-term revenue differences arise because governmental funds report revenues only when
they are considered available, whereas government-wide statements report revenues when they are
earned. Long-term expense differences arise because governmental funds report expenditures
(including interest) using the modified accrual basis of accounting, whereas government-wide
statements report expenses using the accrual basis of accounting.
Capital-related differences arise because governmental funds report capital outlays as current
period expenditures, whereas government-wide statements report depreciation as an expense.
Further, governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as another
financing source, whereas government-wide statements report the gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets as revenue or expense.
Long-term debt transaction differences arise because governmental funds report proceeds of longterm debt as other financing sources and principal payments as expenditures, whereas governmentwide statements report those transactions as increases and decreases in liabilities, respectively.
Pension related differences arise because governmental funds report the current year’s required
employer contributions as current period expenditures, whereas government-wide statements
report those transactions as deferred outflows of resources. In addition, the accrual for the Town’s
proportionate share of the VMERS net pension liability is recorded in the government-wide
financial statements along with the related deferred inflows and outflows of resources.

NOTE 3

BUDGETARY INFORMATION
The Town’s General Fund is the only fund that must legally adopt a budget. As such, no
comparison of actual to budget revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance is
presented for any other fund.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2021 consisted of the following:
Book
Balance
Insured by the FDIC
Insured by Deposit Surety Bond
Petty Cash
Total Deposits

Bank
Balance

$

420,318 $
420,318
20,969,177
21,530,769
1,595
-

$

21,391,090 $ 21,951,087

The difference between the book and bank balance is due to reconciling items such as
deposits in transit and outstanding checks.
The Town generally maintains one cash account in the General Fund to pay expenditures and
receive payments for efficiency. All interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the
dates that (1) reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
system, and (3) repayments between funds are made.
The Town’s general fund checking account and cash management account are insured under
sweep accounts and the Town CD’s are insured under two Irrevocable Standby Letters of
Credit. The coverage with Community Bank, NA is in the full amount of the bank balance at
the close of business on any given day if the bank were to fail. The funds swept from the
account are secured by a perfected security interest in purchased securities and therefore
would not be considered deposits with the bank.
Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counter-party (e.g. brokerdealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in possession of another party. The Town's policy only allows
deposits in banks that are FDIC insured and agree to collateralize amounts in excess of FDIC
limits. The Town has no investments subject to credit risk.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value to changes in market interest rates. The Town has no investments subject to interest rate
risk disclosure.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 4

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
Credit Risk
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. The Town's policy does not allow investment in
securities that are subject to credit risk unless issued by the Federal Government.
Concentration of Credit Risk
The Town has no limit on the amount that they may invest with any one issuer. As June 30, 2021,
the Town is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

NOTE 5

RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 2021, as reported in the statement of net position, net of applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows.

Delinquent Taxes
Penalties and Interest
Billed Services
Unbilled Services
Grants
Other
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

$

289,530
43,030
42,234
19,529
(60,000)

$

76,184
1,056,000
663
(2,500)

$

$

334,323

$

1,130,347

$ 1,464,670

Total
289,530
43,030
118,418
1,056,000
19,529
663
(62,500)

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of September 16th and March 16th.
Taxes are levied in August and payable on September 17th and March 16th. The Town bills
and collects its own taxes. Town property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the
extent they result in current receivables. Current receivables are defined as receivables which
are due or past due, and receivable within the current period and collected no later than sixty
days after the close of the current period. Taxes receivable that remain uncollected as of
August 31, 2021 have been recorded as unavailable property tax revenue, a deferred inflow of
resources, with a corresponding decrease in current year tax revenues. Unavailable property
tax revenue amounted to $180,300 at June 30, 2021.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
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NOTE 6

NOTES RECEIVABLE
The Town received a $490,000 Vermont Community Development Program Grant award
during the fiscal year 2008. This grant was loaned to the Essex Senior Housing Limited
Partnership to assist in the acquisition of land and construction of 48 new senior housing
units. The loan is deferred for 30 years and bears no interest. As such, the Town has recorded
an allowance for the entire amount.
The Town received a $510,447 Vermont Community Development Program Grant award
during the fiscal year 2012. This grant was loaned to the Cedar’s Edge Apartments Limited
Partnership to assist in the acquisition of an affordable housing development located on 47
Susie Wilson Drive in Essex, Vermont. The loan is deferred for 30 years and bears no interest.
As such, the Town has recorded an allowance for the entire amount.

NOTE 7

CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Book collection
Building and improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and Equipment
Total other capital assets

Beginning
Balance

$ 4,636,481 $
1,092,454

Increase

Decrease

Ending
Balance

- $
- $ 4,636,481
68,095
(873,490)
287,059

5,728,935

68,095

(873,490)

4,923,540

459,726
11,503,100
26,202,586
7,737,568

277,469
1,569,494
1,505,867

(600,217)

459,726
11,780,569
27,772,080
8,643,218

45,902,980

3,352,830

(600,217)

48,655,593
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NOTE 7

CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Governmental Activities ( continued)

Beginning
Balance

Increase

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Book collection
Building and improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles and Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental Activities - Capital Assets, Net

(459,726)
(2,770,943)
(14,290,146)
(4,145,667)

(291,962)
(730,490)
(628,132)

586,635

(459,726)
(3,062,905)
(15,020,636)
(4,187,164)

(21,666,482) (1,650,584)

586,635

(22,730,431)

(13,582)

25,925,162

24,236,498

-

1,702,246

$ 29,965,433 $ 1,770,341 $ (887,072) $30,848,702

Depreciation expense was charged to functions, as follows:

General Government
Public Safety

$

Highways and Streets
Stormwater
Culture and Recreation

935,609
18,799
99,908

TOTAL

$ 1,650,584
Beginning
Balance

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Construction in progress

$

Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Total Capital assets being depreciated

88,500
507,768

26,650 $

Increase

Ending
Balance

Decrease

10,915 $

- $

37,565

13,201,750
343,817
187,139

5,275
43,797
-

-

13,207,025
387,614
187,139

13,732,706

49,072

-

13,781,778
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NOTE 7

CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Business-Type Activities (continued)

Beginning
Balance

Increase

Ending
Balance

Decrease

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-Type Activities - Capital Assets, Net

(8,623,206)
(267,425)
(151,800)

(286,588)
(27,016)
-

-

(8,909,794)
(294,441)
(151,800)

(9,042,431)

(313,604)

-

(9,356,035)

4,690,275

(264,532)

-

4,425,743

$ 4,716,925 $ (253,617) $

- $ 4,463,308

Depreciation expense for the Business-type Activities was $313,604 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021.
NOTE 8

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Operating transfers constitute the transfer of resources from the fund that receives the
resources to the fund that utilizes them. The following table summarizes operating transfers
for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Amount
$ 180,000
6,000
28,000
190,000
4,000
4,000
925
$

Transfer From
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund

Transfer To
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Capital Projects
Water/Sewer Fund

Purpose
Fire Department
Administration Vehicles
Parks Equipment
Public Works Vehicles
Senior Vans
Information Technology
Farmers Credit

412,925
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NOTE 9

ACCRUED COMPENSATION
Accrued compensation includes vacation, compensatory time and sick leave for eligible
employees. Upon termination (voluntary or involuntary) the employee shall be entitled to
receive the accrued and unused vacation and compensatory time in a cash payment. Sick time
is only paid out upon retirement. It is the Town’s policy to begin accruing sick time for
individuals who are 55 or older as of the end of the fiscal year.
At June 30, 2021, the Town had the following vested benefits earned by their employees:
General
Fund
Vested Compensation
Less: Current Portion
TOTAL LONG-TERM PORTION

NOTE 10

Water/Sewer
Fund

Recreation
Fund

$ 909,059 $
(164,398)

150,115 $
(3,571)

3,163
-

$ 744,661 $

146,544 $

3,163

NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE
Beginning
Balance

Additions

Principal
Reduction

Ending
Balance

Current
Portion

Governmental Activities
Vermont Municipal Bond Bank, 2013
Series I Bonds, interest varies from
.444% to 4.644%. Annual principal
payments of $345,000 plus interest,
due November 15, 2033
$ 4,830,000 $

-

$ (345,000) $4,485,000 $ 345,000

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principle and interest, for longterm debt of Governmental Activities as of June 30, 2021, are as follows:
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NOTE 10

NOTES AND BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

Year Ending
June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031
2032-2034

Principal
Interest
Total
$ 345,000 $ 174,408 $ 519,408
345,000
162,844
507,844
345,000
150,617
495,617
345,000
127,216
472,216
345,000
115,337
460,337
1,725,000
360,915 2,085,915
40,462 1,075,462
1,035,000

TOTAL

$ 4,485,000 $ 1,131,799 $5,616,799

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Principal
Reduction

Ending
Balance

Current
Portion

Business-Type Funds
Note payable to State of Vermont,
note, 2% administrative fee, due
January 1, 2031.

$ 172,154 $

- $ (14,147) $ 158,007 $ 14,430

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principle and interest, for longterm debt of Business-Type Funds as of June 30, 2021, are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2031

Principal
$

14,430 $
14,719
15,013
15,313
15,620
82,912

$ 158,007 $

Interest
3,160 $
2,872
2,577
2,277
1,971
5,040

Total
17,590
17,591
17,590
17,590
17,591
87,952

17,897 $ 175,904

Total interest expense paid for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $224,632 in the
governmental activities funds and $71 in the business-type funds.
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NOTE 11

CAPITAL LEASE
The Town has six lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of seven pieces of
capital equipment. Asset value, estimated useful life, and current year depreciation are listed
in the following table. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting
purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum
lease payments as of the inception date.
Equipment
Fire Engine
Fire Tanker

Value
$ 737,104
$ 497,281

2018 Explorer Police Vehicle
Administrative Vehicle
Sidewalk Plow
FY20 Fire Truck
Kubota Loader

$
$
$
$
$

28,019
30,017
145,420
731,039
59,300

Useful Life
15 years
15 years
5 year
5 year
5 year
15 years
10 years

FY21 Depreciation
$
41,140
$
29,152
$
$
$
$
$

5,604
5,003
29,084
25,758
5,130

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease
payments as of June 30, 2021 were as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027-2029

Future
Minimum
Net Present
Payments
Value
Interest
$ 253,213 $ 210,817 $ 42,396
225,859
192,660
33,199
175,117
148,375
26,742
175,017
152,853
22,164
175,017
157,573
17,444
422,985
400,464
22,521

Total minimum lease payments $ 1,427,208 $1,262,742 $ 164,466
NOTE 12

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources on the Government-wide financial statements related solely to
the Town’s participation in VMERS with $2,044,782 attributable to Governmental Activities
and $219,926 attributable to Business-Type Activities.
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NOTE 13

UNEARNED REVENUE
Unearned revenue in the General Fund consists of $108,154 in police department equitable
sharing funds; $4,593 and $1,916 in other funds received in advance. The revenue will be
recognized as related expenses are incurred. Total Unearned Revenue in the General Fund is
$114,663.
Unearned revenue in the Recreation Programs Fund of $11,125 consists funds collected for
the purpose of providing scholarships ($9,944), funds raised in support of specific programs
($1,182). This revenue will be earned as related expenses are incurred.

NOTE 14

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources in the General Fund consists of $180,300 in delinquent property
taxes, penalties and interest on those taxes that were not collected within sixty (60) days after
year-end as these would not be available to liquidate current liabilities. There are also $12,236
of grant receivables not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end. Deferred inflows of
resources also includes $65,344 of prepaid property taxes. Total deferred inflows of resources
in the General Fund are $257,880.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Capital Projects Fund consists of $13,429 of grant
receivables not collected within sixty (60) days after year-end as these would not be available
to liquidate current liabilities.
Deferred inflows of resources in the Governmental Activities consist $65,344 of prepaid
property taxes and $261,177 related to the Town’s participation in VMERS. Deferred inflows
of resources in the Business-Type Activities consist of $28,091 related to the Town’s
participation in VMERS.

NOTE 15

FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION
Fund balances are segregated to account for resources that are either not available for
expenditure in the future or are legally set aside for a specific future use. The Town has
implemented GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, which enhances the usefulness of fund balance information by providing
clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying
existing governmental fund type definitions.
Governmental fund balances are classified as: nonspendable (not in spendable form or legally
required to remain intact); restricted (constraints on the use of resources are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors or donors, or imposed by law through enabling legislation);
committed (constraints on the use of resources are imposed by formal action of the voters);
assigned (reflecting the Selectboard’s intended use of resources); and unassigned.
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NOTE 15

FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION (continued)
Reservations of fund balances of governmental funds are created to either (1) satisfy legal
covenants that require that a portion of the fund balance be segregated or (2) identify the
portion of the fund balance that is not appropriable for future expenditures. Specific
reservations of the fund balance accounts are summarized below.
Reservations and designations as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:
Governmental Activities
Restricted for:
Reappraisal

$ 883,057

General Fund
Nonspendable for:
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$ 162,810
167,520

Total Nonspendable Fund Balance

Restricted for:
Reappraisal

$ 330,330

$ 883,057

Assigned for:
Economic development
Planning
Retirement
Governance Separation
Records preservation
Community Justice Center
Conservation
Personnel costs
Future Expenses
Transfer to capital
Future police vehicle

$

Total Assigned Fund Balance

9,713
42,613
419,679
90,661
254,811
65,150
42,862
200,000
1,360,233
823,784
70,000

$ 3,379,506
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NOTE 15

FUND BALANCES AND NET POSITION (continued)
Capital Projects Fund
Assigned for:
Future vehicle purchases
Future parks and recreation projects
Future highway projects
Future stormwater projects
Future building projects
Future paths projects
Future conservation initiatives
Future capital projects
Total Assigned Fund Balance

$ 247,347
678,105
574,070
383,130
137,572
107,913
61,944
255,776
$ 2,445,857

Water and Sewer Fund
Designated for:
Future capital expenses
Prepaid expenses

$ 993,412
11,924

Total Designated Net Assets

$ 1,005,336

Fiduciary Fund
Restricted for Cemetery - These funds are accumulated
for the maintenance of the cemetery.
$

62,228

When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for
expenditures incurred, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then
unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the
Town’s policy to use the fund balances in the following order: (1) Committed (2) Assigned
(3) Unassigned.
NOTE 16

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Prior to January 1, 2004 all full-time employees were covered under the ICMA 401(A)
Defined Contribution Plan. Under this plan the town contributes 8% and the employee
contributes 3% of employee’s salaries. Town contributions to the plan were $29,238 and the
employee contributions were $10,964 for the year ended June 30, 2021.
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NOTE 17

PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) is a cost-sharing,
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that is administered by the State Treasurer
and its Board of Trustees. It is designed for school districts and other municipal employees
that work on a regular basis and also includes employees of museums and libraries if at least
half of that institution’s operating expenses are met by municipal funds. An employee of any
employer that becomes affiliated with the system may join at that time or at any time
thereafter. Any employee hired subsequent to the effective participation date of their
employer who meets the minimum hourly requirements is required to join the system. During
the year ended June 30, 2020, the retirement system consisted of 353 participating employers.
The plan was established effective July 1, 1975, and is governed by Title 24, V.S.A.
Chapter 125.
The general administration and responsibility for formulating administrative policy and
procedures of the retirement System for its members and their beneficiaries is vested in the
Board of Trustees consisting of five members. They are the State Treasurer, two employee
representatives elected by the membership of the system, and two employer representatives—
one elected by the governing bodies of participating employers of the system, and one
selected by the Governor from a list of four nominees. The list of four nominees is jointly
submitted by the Vermont League of Cities and Towns and the Vermont School Boards
Association.
All assets are held in a single trust and are available to pay retirement benefits to all members.
Benefits available to each group are based on average final compensation (AFC) and years of
creditable service.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources
Net pension liabilities, deferred pension outflows of resources, deferred pension inflows of
resources, and pension expense are all presented as of the Town’s reporting date June 30,
2021 and for the Town’s reporting period (the year ended June 30, 2021). These amounts are
measured as of the measurement date and for the measurement period (the period between the
prior and current measurement dates). GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the current
measurement date be no earlier than the end of the employer’s prior fiscal year. For the
reporting date of the Town, the State has chosen to use the end of the prior fiscal year (June
30, 2020) as the measurement date, and the year ended June 30, 2020 as the measurement
period.
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NOTE 17

PENSION PLAN (continued)
The total pension liability is determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of the
measurement date, or by the use of update procedures to roll forward to the measurement date
amounts from an actuarial valuation as of a date no more than 30 months and 1 day earlier
than the employer’s most recent fiscal year-end. The State has elected to apply update
procedures to roll forward amounts from an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2015,
to the measurement date of June 30, 2020.
As of June 30, 2020, the Town’s proportionate share of the total VMERS net pension liability
was 2.09919%, a decrease from 2.30797% as of June 30, 2019. For the year ended June 30,
2021, the Town recognized pension expense of $1,222,781.
As of June 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred outflows or resources and deferred inflows
of resources from the following sources.
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Changes in proportional share of contributions
$
Difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments
Difference between expected and actual experience
Town's required employer contributions made
subsequent to the measurement date
Changes in assumptions

507,897
478,262

15,740

460,748
711,958

-

$

2,264,708

Total

105,843

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

$

273,528

289,268

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
will be recognized in pension expense as follows.
Year Ended
June 30
2021
2022
2023
2024

$

463,087
460,866
348,033
242,671

Total

$

1,514,657
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NOTE 17

PENSION PLAN (continued)
Summary of System Provisions
Membership: Full time employees of participating municipalities. Municipality elects
coverage under Groups A, B, C or D provisions. The Town has elected coverage under Group
C and D provisions for the year ended June 30, 2021
Credible Service:

Service as a member plus purchased service.

Average Final Compensation (AFC): Group C – Average annual compensation during the
highest 3 consecutive years.
Group D – Average annual compensation during
highest 2 consecutive years.
Service Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility: Group C and D – Age 55 with five (5) years of service.
Amount:

Group C – 2.5% of AFC times service as a Group C member plus
percentage earned as a Group A or B member times AFC.
Group D – 2.5% of AFC times service as a Group D member plus
percentage earned as a Group A or B or C member times AFC.

Maximum benefit is 50% of AFC for Group C and D. The previous amounts include
the portion of the allowance provided by member contributions.
Early Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility: There is no early retirement allowance for Group C. Age 50 with 20 years
of Service for Group D.
Amount: Normal allowance on service and AFC at early retirement, payable without
reduction to Group D members.
Vested Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility: Five (5) years of service.
Amount: Allowance beginning at normal retirement age based on AFC and service at
termination. The AFC is to be adjusted annually by one-half of the percentage change
in the Consumer Price Index, subject to the limits on “Post-Retirement Adjustments”
described below.
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NOTE 17

PENSION PLAN (continued)
Disability Retirement Allowance:
Eligibility: Five (5) years of service and disability as determined by Retirement Board.
Amount: Immediate allowance based on AFC and service to date of disability.
Children’s benefit of 10% of AFC payable to up to three minor children (or children
up to age 23 if enrolled full-times studies) of a disabled Group D member.
Death Benefit:
Eligibility: Death after five (5) years of service.
Amount: For Group C, reduced early retirement allowance under 100% survivor
option commencing immediately or, if greater, survivor’s benefit under disability
annuity computed as of date of death. For Group D, 70% of the unreduced accrued
benefit plus children’s benefit.
Optional Benefit and Death after Retirement: For Group C, lifetime allowance or actuarially
equivalent 50% or 100% joint and survivor allowance with refund of contribution guarantee.
For Group D, lifetime allowance or 70% contingent annuitant option with no reduction.
Refund of Contribution: Upon termination, if the member so elects or if no other benefit is
payable, the member’s accumulated contributions are refunded.
Post-Retirement Adjustments: Allowance in payment for at least one year increased on each
January 1 by one-half of the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index but not more
than 3% for Group C and D.
Retirement Stipend: $25 per month payable at the option of the Board of Trustees.
Member Contributions: Group C – 10.50%
Group D – 11.85%
Employer Contributions: Group C – 7.75%
Group D – 10.35%
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PENSION PLAN (continued)
Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Methods
Interest Rate: 7.00%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
Salary Increases: 4.50% per year.
Deaths:
Death in Service:
Group C- 40% of PubG-2010 General Employee below-median and 60% of PubG-2010
General Employee, with generations projection using scale MP-2019.
Group D- PubG-2010, General Employee above-median, with generational projection using
scale MP-2019
Healthy Post-Retirement:
Group C- 104% of 40% PubG-2010 General Healthy Retiree below-median and 60% of
PubG-2010 General Healthy Retiree, with generational projection using scale MP-2019.
Group D- PubG-2010, General Employee above-median, with generational projection using
scale MP-2019.
Healthy Post-retirement – Beneficiaries:
Group C- 70% Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor below-median and 30% of PubG-2010
Contingent Survivor, with generational projection using scale MP-2019.
Group D- Pub-2010, Contingent Survivor above-median, with generational projection using
scale MP-2019.
Disabled Post-Retirement:
All Groups- PubNS-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree Mortality Table with generational
projection using scale MP-2019
Spouse’s Age: Females three years younger than males.
Cost-of-Living Assumed to occur on January 1 following one year of retirement at the rate of
1.30% per annum for members from Groups C and D (beginning at Normal Retirement
eligibility age for members who elect reduced early retirement, at age 62 for members of
Group D who receive a disability retirement benefit, and at age 55 for members of Group C
who receive a disability retirement benefit) The January 1, 2020 COLA is assumed to be .8%
and the January 1, 2021 COLA is assumed to be .40%, for all groups.
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PENSION PLAN (continued)
Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. Entry Age is the age at date of
employment or, if date is unknown, current age minus years of service. Normal Cost and
Actuarial Accrued Liability are calculated on an individual basis and are allocated by salary
with Normal Cost determined using the plan benefits applicable to each participant.
Assets: The valuation is based on the market value of assets as of the valuation date, as
provided by the System. The System uses an “actuarial value of assets” that differs from
market value to gradually reflect year-to-year changes in the market value of assets in
determining the contribution requirements.
Inflation: 2.30%
Long-term Expected Rate of Return: The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense
and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in the target
asset allocation as of June 30, 2020 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target
Allocation

Long-term Expected
Real Rate of Return

Global Equity
US Equity- Large Cap
US Equity- Small/Mid Cap
Non-US Equity - Large Cap
Non-US Equity - Small Cap
Emerging Markets Debt
Core Bond
Private Credit
US TIPS
Core Real Estate
Non-Core Real Estate
Private Equity
Infrastructure/Farmland

29%
4%
3%
5%
2%
4%
20%
10%
3%
5%
3%
10%
2%

7.07%
6.19%
6.93%
7.01%
7.66%
3.66%
0.39%
6.03%
-0.20%
4.06%
6.43%
11.27%
5.44%
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NOTE 17

PENSION PLAN (continued)
Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of
June 30, 2020. In accordance with paragraph 29 of GASB 68, professional judgement was
applied to determine that the System’s projected fiduciary net position exceeds projected
benefit payments for current active and inactive members for all years. The analysis was
based on the expectation that employers will continue to contribute at the rates set by the
Board, which exceed the actuarially determined contribution, which is comprised on an
employer normal cost payment and a payment to reduce the unfunded liability to zero by June
30, 2038, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the proportionate share would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percent lower (6.00%) or one percent higher
(8.00%) than the current rate.

Discount Rate
1% Decrease
Current Rate
1% Increase

6.00%
7.00%
8.00%

Net Pension Liability
$
$
$

8,113,240
5,310,471
3,004,285

Additional Information
Additional information regarding the State of Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement
System, including the details of the Fiduciary Net Position, is available upon request form the
State of Vermont.
NOTE 18

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Town maintains insurance coverage through the Vermont League of Cities and Towns
Property and Casualty Inter-municipal Fund, Inc. covering each of those risks of loss.
Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses
to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. The Town must remain a member for a minimum of one year and may withdraw from
the Fund after that time by giving sixty days’ notice. Fund underwriting and rate setting
policies have been established after consultation with actuaries. Fund members are subject to
a supplemental assessment in the event of deficiencies. If the assets of the Fund were to be
exhausted, members would be responsible for the Fund's liabilities.
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NOTE 19

LANDFILL POST CLOSURE COSTS
Landfill post closure costs were necessitated by the closure of the Town landfill in 1992 and
the continuing site maintenance and testing requirements of the State of Vermont as ordered
in the Closure Order. The monitoring program outlined in the Closure Order expired in May
2013. Annual water quality monitoring has continued per the request of the State of VT Solid
Waste Management Program. Sufficient funds were not set aside in the tipping fee during the
landfill’s years of operation to cover these continuing expenses. The Town budgets on an
annual basis for continued site maintenance and testing. The Town’s cost of the site
maintenance and testing were $16,252 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE 20

RELATED PARTY
In July 2014 the Town entered agreements with the Village of Essex Junction and the Essex
Junction School District to bill and collect property taxes for each entity. Under the terms of
the agreements, the Town purchased the outstanding delinquent taxes, penalty and interest
receivables as of July 1, 2014, and assumes liability for the collection of those balances
due. The Town will turn over to each entity, one half of the total amounts billed within 20
days of each due date. All penalty and interest that accrues on delinquent balances shall
belong to the Town. Included in the Unavailable Property Tax Revenue, is a provision for the
delinquent balances associated with the taxes billed for the Village of Essex Junction and The
Essex Westford School District. Effective July 2015, the accounting departments of the
Village of Essex (the Village) and the Town merged and operate under one accounting system
and one operating cash account. At June 30, 2021 $7,497,024 was owed to the Village from
the Town.

NOTE 21

CONCENTRATION OF REVENUES
The Town receives a major portion of its revenue from Global Foundries. For the year ended
June 30, 2021, the Town received 3.0% of its total property tax income from Global
Foundries.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2021

NOTE 22

TAX ABATEMENT
The Town has one tax stabilization agreement that qualifies as a tax abatement per GASB
Statement no. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures. The Town, under the authority of the Town of
Essex Selectboard Commercial/Industrial/Mixed Use Tax Stabilization Policy, has entered
into a ten year tax stabilization agreement beginning in FY2018. In exchange the recipient
agrees to keep and maintain its manufacturing operation on the property in the Town and
create and maintain at least 170 jobs in the Town for the duration of the agreement. The
Town has agreed to abate 100% of the municipal taxes for the first five years of the
agreement. The percentage of abated taxes decreases to 80% in year 6, 70% in year 7, 60% in
year 8, 40% in year 9, and 20% in year 10. For FY2021 the amount of taxes abated totaled
$36,073. The agreement includes provisions to recapture foregone property taxes if the
agreement is terminated. If the years elapsed between the close of the tax year when the tax
reduction was provided and the year the company became ineligible are two or less the
recapture will be 100%; if years elapsed are two to four the recapture will be 50%; and if
years elapsed are four to six the recapture will be 25%. This agreement applies to Town
taxes only and has no impact on Educational property taxes.

NOTE 23

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
As a result of the spread of the COVID-19 Coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen
which are likely to negatively impact net income. Other financial impact could occur through
such potential impact and the duration cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Possible
effects may include, but are not limited to, disruption to the Town’s customers and revenue,
absenteeism in the Town’s labor workforce, unavailability of products and supplies used in
operations, and decline in value of assets held by the Town, including receivables and
property and equipment.

NOTE 24

DISCLOSURE OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In accordance with professional accounting standards, the Town has evaluated subsequent
events through January 14, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were available to
be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as of June 30, 2021, have been
incorporated into the financial statements herein.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGETARY BASIS - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Final Budget

Actual

$ 14,021,856
74,150
395,200
522,928
170,000
26,000
1,000
21,001

$ 13,892,074
67,436
558,655
757,647
116,258
46,743
25,381
42,301

Total Revenues

15,232,135

15,506,495

274,360

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and Streets
Stormwater
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Debt service
Intergovernmental

2,732,747
5,194,251
3,884,122
347,143
252,329
1,442,997
535,635
499,711

2,650,343
4,580,377
3,928,237
293,361
253,764
1,278,879
535,635
483,057

82,404
613,874
(44,115)
53,782
(1,435)
164,118
16,654

14,888,935

14,003,653

885,282

343,200

1,502,842

1,159,642

REVENUES
Property tax
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Interest income
Grant income
Miscellaneous income

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Operating Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
$

Net Change in Fund Balance

Variance
$

(129,782)
(6,714)
163,455
234,719
(53,742)
20,743
24,381
21,300

(443,200)

(412,925)

30,275

(443,200)

(412,925)

30,275

(100,000) $ 1,089,917

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY
BASIS TO GAAP BASIS
Excess of Revenues over Expenditures- Budgetary Basis
Adjustments for non-budget:
Grant revenues
Other revenues
Grant expenditures
Other expenditures

$ 1,189,917

$ 1,089,917
700,218
26,717
(403,313)
(17,735)
$ 1,395,804

Excess of Revenues over Expenditures- GAAP Basis

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2020
Town's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset)

2.0992%

2019

2018

2.3080%

2017

2.3893%

2.1170%

2016

1.9431%

2015

2014

1.8136%

1.8721%

Town's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset)

$ 5,310,471

$ 4,004,134

$ 3,361,144

$ 2,564,813

$ 2,500,717

$ 1,398,230

$

Town's covered-employee payroll

$ 5,323,868

$ 5,494,183

$ 5,388,738

$ 4,765,037

$ 4,109,687

$ 3,653,790

$ 3,610,210

170,857

Town's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage of
its covered-employee payroll

99.75%

72.88%

62.37%

53.83%

60.85%

38.27%

4.73%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

74.52%

80.35%

82.60%

83.64%

80.95%

87.42%

98.32%

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and methods are described in Note 14 to the financial
statements. Changes in Assumptions and Methods were effective June 30, 2020:
There were no changes in methods or assumption during the year ended June 30, 2020

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

2020
Contractually Required Contributions
(Actuarially Determined)
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contributions
Covered Employee Payroll
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered
Employee Payroll

$

435,067

2019

$

2018

443,441

$

418,499

2017

$

345,718

2016

$

295,324

2015

$

253,517

2014

$

241,486

435,067

443,441

418,499

345,718

295,324

253,517

241,486

$ 5,323,868

$ 5,494,183

$ 5,388,738

$ 4,765,037

$ 4,109,687

$ 3,653,790

$ 3,610,210

8.17%

8.07%

7.77%

7.26%

6.20%

6.17%

6.69%

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and methods are described in Note 14 to the financial
statements. Changes in Assumptions and Methods were effective June 30, 2020:
There were no changes in methods or assumption during the year ended June 30, 2020

See Accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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Report 1
Town of Essex, Vermont
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Pass
Through
Grantor Number

Federal
CFDA
Number

CA0459
CA0436
CA0436
CA0514
CA0536

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

02140-84474-019
02140-84523-033

97.036
97.036

76,451
31,137
107,588

U.S Department of Justice
Passed through State of Vermont Department of Public Safety
2020 Homeland Security Grant Program

02140-7H20252-109

97.067

22,280

Coronavirus Emergency Supplmental Funding (CESF)

02140-11993-104

16.034

2,307

Bullet Proof Vest Grant

16.607

2,272

National Priority Safety Programs: DEA Overtime

20.616

17,569

06130-UCF-CFC-20-13
06130-UCF-ADP-21-05

10.664
10.664

14,992
235
15,227

01130 Courier LSTA2020.1

45.310

520

02140-84523-033

21.019

10,379

Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Corrections
Coronavirus Aid Relief, and Economic Security Act; Coronavirus Relief Fund CJC

03520-1514 AM1

21.019

13,614

Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Corrections
Coronavirus Local Government Expense Reimbursement - COVID

07130-21-60 CRF

21.019

59,927

01140CRF20LGE0026
01140CRF20DLR028

21.019
21.019

364,089
20,000
384,089

07130-21-60-CRF

21.019

10,000

Federal Grantor/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title
U. S. Department of Transportation
Passed through State of Vermont, Agency of
Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Total Highway Planning and Construction
U.S Department of Homeland Security
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters)
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters
Total Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through State of Vermont Department of Forest, Parks and Recreation
Cooperative Forestry Assistance: UCF 19 - Emerald Ash Borer Management Grant
Cooperative Forestry Assistance: UCF 20 - Arbor Day Planning Gran

Institute of Museum and Library Services
Passed through State of Vermont Department of Libraries
Interlibrary Loan Courier Service Grant

U.S. Department of Treasury
Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Public Safety
Coronavirus Local Government Expense Reimbursement - COVID

Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Taxes
Coronavirus Local Government Expense reimvursement (LGER)
Coronavirus Municipal Records Digitization Grant
Total State of Vermont, Department of Taxes
Passed through State of Vermont, Department of Tourism and Marketing
Coronavirus Local Government Expense Reimbursement - COVID
Total Expenditure of Federal Awards

Federal
Expenditures

$

$

210,225
240,851
86,117
19,591
2,264
559,048

1,204,820

.
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Town of Essex, Vermont
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURE OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Report
1
---

NOTE A BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the Village of Essex Junction,
Vermont under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of the Village , it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the
Village of Essex Junction, Vermont.

NOTE B SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following
the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement.
(2) The Village of Essex Junction, Vermont has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance because no indirect costs were allowed under the federal awards.
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Report 2
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Kittell Branagan & Sargent
Certified Public Accoimtants

Vermont License # 167

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont
Essex, Vermont
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Essex, Vermont, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Town of Essex, Vermont's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 14, 2022.
Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Essex,
Vermont's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Essex, Vermont's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Essex,
Vermont's internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
154 North M ain Street. St. Albans, Vermont 05478
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To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont

Report 2 (cont'd)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Essex, Vermont's financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

St. Albans, Vermont
January 14, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont
Essex, Vermont

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Town of Essex, Vermont's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Town of Essex, Vermont's major federal ·programs for the year ended June 30, 2021. Town of Essex,
Vermont's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.
Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town of Essex, Vermont's major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Essex,
Vermont's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Essex, Vermont's
compliance.
154 North Main Street, St. Albans, Vermont 05478
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To the Board of Selectmen
Town of Essex, Vermont

Report 3 (cont'd)

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, the Town of Essex, Vermont, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Report on Internal Control over Compliance
Management of the Town of Essex, Vermont, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we .considered the Town of Essex, Vermont's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion 011 compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal
control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Town of Essex, Vermont's internal control over compliance.
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

St. Albans, Vermont
January 14, 2022
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Town of Essex, Vermont
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2021

Report 4

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
1.

The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of Town of Essex,
Vermont

2.

There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial statements. No
material weaknesses are reported.

3.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Town of Essex, Vermont,
which would be required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were
disclosed during the audit.

4.

There were no significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the major federal award
programs. No material weaknesses are reported.

5.

The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs Town of Essex, Vermont
expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6.

There were no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for Town of Essex,
Vermont

7.

The programs tested as major programs were:
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

The threshold for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.
8.
B.

FINDINGS – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT
-

C.

Town of Essex, Vermont was determined to be a high-risk auditee.

There were no findings related to the financial statements audit.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS – MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT
-

There were no findings or questioned costs related to the major federal award programs.
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Memorandum
To:
Cc:
From:
Re:
Date:

Selectboard, Evan Teich (Unified Manager)
Gregory Duggan, Deputy Manager
Gregory Duggan, Deputy Manager
Discussion and possible action on Town of Essex Rule Requiring Wearing Face
Coverings Indoors in Public Spaces
February 17, 2022

Issue
The issue is for the Selectboard to discuss the Town of Essex Rule Requiring Wearing Face
Coverings Indoors in Public Spaces, and whether to establish criteria for if and when to lift the rule.
Discussion
On December 6, 2021, the Selectboard approved a Rule Requiring Wearing Face Coverings Indoors
in Public Spaces, which took effect on Dec. 7, 2021. The rule was put into place for 45 days, in
accordance with Act 1, to run through January 21, 2022. The Selectboard has extended the rule on
January 18, 2022 and on February 7, 2022. The rule is currently in effect through March 22, 2022.
Act 1, the legislation that authorizes municipalities to adopt face covering rules, allows local
legislative bodies to renew a face covering rule for 30-day periods through April 30, 2022.
When extending the rule on February 7, the Selectboard discussed how and when to determine if the
rule should no longer be in effect.
Since the start of the covid-19 pandemic, the Town has looked to the Centers for Disease Control
and the Vermont Department of Health for guidance on health and safety of residents and staff. The
Selectboard may wish to use information from those two agencies in determining when to lift the Rule
Requiring Wearing Face Coverings Indoors in Public Spaces.
For instance, the CDC has a COVID Data Tracker: https://covid.cdc.gov/covid-datatracker/#datatracker-home. As of Friday, Feb. 18, Chittenden County was considered as having
“High” Community Transmission, with a case rate of 175.85 per 100,000 people. Cases, positivity
rates, deaths, and new hospital admissions were all declining. Still, with the “High” community
transmission, the CDC recommended, “Everyone in Chittenden County, Vermont should wear a
mask in public, indoor settings.” The CDC uses the following criteria to determine risk factor:
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The Vermont Department of Health contains town-by-town data online at
https://www.healthvermont.gov/covid-19/current-activity. As of February 18, Essex has seen 41-80
cases per 10,000 people in the past two weeks, the second highest rate by the state’s categories.
Essex has a vaccination rate of greater than 90 percent, according to the Department of Health.
The Department of Health website notes that CDC and Vermont numbers are different because, “For
the Vermont Dashboard, Vermont residents and non-residents who were tested in Vermont are
included in the count. This helps us understand how COVID-19 affects the healthcare system and
identify potential risk of transmission in the state. The CDC case counts include only COVID-19
cases among Vermont residents. As of June 28, 2021, Vermont has stopped reporting non-resident
cases to the CDC to allow the CDC to better understand the burden of COVID-19 among Vermont
residents.”
The existing rule is attached, along with a list of questions and answers about how the rule is applied.
Cost
n/a
Recommendation
This memo is for discussion. The Selectboard may choose to lift the Town of Essex Rule Requiring
Wearing Face Coverings Indoors in Public Spaces if covid cases drop below a certain threshold.
Attachments:
1.
Face Covering Rule Non-Enforcement 20220207_clean
2.
Face Covering Rule_Questions and Answers Face Covering Rule 20211209
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TOWN OF ESSEX, VERMONT
RULE REQUIRING WEARING FACE COVERINGS INDOORS IN PUBLIC
SPACES
Section 1. Authority.
This Rule is adopted by the Selectboard of the Town of Essex under authority of Act 1,
an act relating to temporary municipal rules in response to COVID-19 (2021), effective
December 7, 2021.
Section 2. Purpose.
The purpose of this Rule is to require all individuals to wear face coverings while
indoors at locations that are open to the public in order to prevent and mitigate the
spread of COVID-19 and protect the public health and safety of the Town of Essex.
Section 3. Requirement to Wear Face Coverings.
All individuals in the Town of Essex shall wear face coverings while indoors at locations
that are open to the public, and these locations shall prominently display this
requirement at their entrance.
Section 4. Exceptions.
Face coverings are not required for:

 Children under 2 years
 A person with a disability who cannot wear a face covering or cannot safely wear
a face covering for reasons related to the disability
 A person for whom wearing a face covering would create a risk to workplace
health, safety, or job duty as determined by the workplace risk assessment
 Any person while eating or drinking inside any establishment that serves food or
beverage
Section 5. Other Laws.
This Rule is in addition to all other ordinances and rules of the Town of Essex and all
applicable laws of the State of Vermont. All ordinances, rules, or parts of ordinances,
rules, resolutions, regulations, or other documents inconsistent with the provisions of
this Rule are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.
Section 6. Severability.
If any section or provision of this Rule is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
invalid, such finding shall not invalidate any other part of this Rule.
Section 7. Effective Period.
This Rule shall take effect on December 7, 2021 upon the approval by the Selectboard
and shall remain in effect for a period not to exceed 45 days following its initial adoption,
through January 21, 2022. The Selectboard shall meet during the 45-day period in
which this initial Rule is in effect and vote either to rescind this Rule or to extend it for an
1
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additional 30 days. Thereafter, the Selectboard shall meet at a minimum once every 30
days to reconsider this Rule, at which meeting the Selectboard shall vote either to
rescind this Rule or to extend it for an additional 30-day period, not to extend beyond
April 30, 2022 in accordance with Act 1. The filing of a petition under 24 V.S.A. §§ 1972
and 1973, shall not govern the taking effect of this Rule.

ADOPTED by the Selectboard of the Town of Essex at its meeting on this 6th day
of December, 2021; and extended through February 20, 2022 by the Selectboard
at its meeting on the 18th day of January, 2022; and extended by the Selectboard
through March 22, 2022 at its meeting on the 7th day of February, 2022.
_____________________________________________
Andy Watts, Chair
_____________________________________________
Patrick Murray, Vice Chair
_____________________________________________
Tracey Delphia, Clerk
_____________________________________________
Susan Cook
____________________________________________
Dawn Hill-Fleury

2
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Questions & Answers
Town of Essex Rule Requiring Face Coverings Indoors in Public Spaces
Version: 12/9/2022

Contact Information:
Evan Teich, Unified Manager
Email: eteich@essex.org
Phone: (802) 878-1341
Q: What is considered public space?
A: Every business is different. General areas where the public is allowed without restriction is generally a
public space. For example, the door area where persons enter could be considered public and masks
should be worn. Internal areas that are normally not open to the public or where you need permission
to enter would be considered private areas, and not require a mask per this rule. If there is a delineated
barrier like a counter or other door that a person has to be admitted into (i.e. storage room, employee
breakrooms, private offices), these areas could be considered private. Businesses determine what is
considered a private office/space.
Q: Why shouldn’t I shop somewhere else and boycott the businesses in Essex?
A: The businesses in Essex did not mandate this rule and are required to follow it to abide by the law.
While it is an individual’s right to shop or eat wherever they choose, shopping local provides a unique
and personalized experience where you can get the items you need quickly and conveniently. Buying
local stimulates the economy in our community.
Q: Should I call the police if someone is not wearing a mask?
A: That depends. A business can always call the police if they are dealing with an issue. In this case the
police will address the issue. Fines are not imposed for not obeying the rule. However, if a person is
asked to wear a mask by the business and refuses, the business owner has the right to ask that person
to leave the premises.
Q: Should a citizen call the police if they see un-masked persons at a business?
A: We would appreciate the call to come from the business. There are exemptions to the rule, including
medical reasons, and it is best for the business to make the decision of whether to call or not call.
Q: When will the police respond?
A: The police will investigate reports of violations to their department. However, investigations into
face covering violations will be placed into response queue based on all police calls for service and their
respective priorities. There could be significant delays in police investigations if other more significant
police work is pending. (i.e. accidents, traffic enforcement, alarms, crimes, etc.)
Q: How will police respond?
A: The police may respond in person or by phone. If the police respond in person it will not be an
emergency response (light/sirens). Because this rule has no enforcement authority, the police will be
responding in an educational posture and no enforcement action will be taken about the non-use of a
mask. However other actions could be taken such as if a person is lawfully asked to leave a business and
refuses. Those circumstances could potentially turn into a criminal trespassing violation. To be clear, no
arrest/tickets will be issued for simply not wearing a mask.
Questions and Answers – Town of Essex Rule Requiring Face Coverings 12/9/2021
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Q: Why did the Town put a face covering rule in place and is it constitutional?
A: The Town Selectboard believes in many things; science, public health and safety, the laws of the State
of Vermont, and the laws of the United States, to just name a few. Science has said that mask wearing
helps reduce the spread of the virus. Coronavirus is taking its toll on us all and the State has given
municipalities, like Essex, the latitude to put in place mask restrictions in order to help reduce the
spread of this virus. Decisions are guided by three priorities: slowing the transmission of the virus within
our community, continuing essential municipal services, and ensuring the safety and health of all
municipal employees and Essex residents. Governor Scott signed S.1 [1] into law (Act 1) on November
23, 2021. Act 1 authorizes towns, cities, and villages to establish masking/face covering requirements
through rule.
Q: Are gyms considered private spaces if they require a membership?
A: A liberal interpretation is that the business could allow non-masked persons to enter the non-public
spaces (past the front counter where you check in) and this to be considered a private space. The
business may have other public health and safety measures that they, as a business, have required such
as vaccinations or masking for certain activities. Those decisions and enforcement are made by the
business.
Q: How does this affect indoor sports?
A: A mask must be worn in any public space. The determination as to what is public and what is private
can be different for many different situations. Our goal is public health and safety and to help reduce
the public spread of the disease.
Q: Why aren’t there any fines for noncompliance of the rule?
A: Living through Covid is hard enough and has hurt a lot of people financially. We would rather
educate, converse, have a dialogue and try to get a long versus the alternatives.
Q: Will the Town amend this rule?
A: The Town Selectboard has established this rule for 45 days and the state law that created this
authority says they can extend it in 30-day increments until April 30, 2022. The Town Selectboard meets
roughly every two weeks, so this provides the public and the Selectboard the opportunity to amend the
rule as necessary.
Q: Will masks be provided by the Town?
A: No, not necessarily. People can obtain a mask from most local stores to include drug stores,
supermarkets, hardware stores and many other retail establishments or online. If there is a specific
hardship, people can contact the manager’s office at manager@essex.org or (802) 878-1341 about
potential resources for obtaining a face covering.
Q: Where can I get copies of approved mask signs for my business?
A: Businesses may post their own face covering signs at their business. However, you can find a
printable copy of an approved face covering sign on the Town website at www.essexvt.org or by
contacting the manager’s office at manager@essex.org or (802) 878-1341.

Questions and Answers – Town of Essex Rule Requiring Face Coverings 12/9/2021
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Memorandum
To:
Cc:
From:
Re:
Date:

Selectboard, Evan Teich (Unified Manager)
Gregory Duggan, Deputy Manager
*Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services and
boards/commissions/committees between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex
Junction
February 16, 2022

Issue
The issue is for the Selectboard to discuss and possibly amend or approve possible agreements for
sharing services between the Town of Essex and the Village of Essex Junction/an independent City
of Essex Junction, and whether the Selectboard enters into executive session to discuss contracts.
Discussion
The Selectboard and Village of Essex Junction Board of Trustees have reached tentative
agreements on many shared service agreements between the Town and an independent City of
Essex Junction, including a memorandum of understanding regarding agreements for shared
services, delinquent taxes, information technology, police, reappraisal and assessor services, right of
first refusal on 81 Main St., and stormwater.
The boards have expressed a desire to reach agreements on so-called Tier 2 agreements, as well.
The following draft agreements are attached. The draft agreements include revisions and/or revisions
based on discussion the Selectboard and Trustees had on February 15.
 Clerk
 Finance
 Recreation, Indian Brook, Senior Center, Senior Bus
Also included in the packet are two memos from Brad Luck about shared
boards/commissions/committees.
In order to have a complete and thorough discussion about this topic, an executive session may be
necessary because the premature disclosure of the information may put the Selectboard and the
Town at a substantial disadvantage. Contracts can be protected discussions.
Following discussion, the Selectboard may choose to approve or amend any or all of the
agreements; or direct staff to provide additional information.
Cost
n/a
Recommendation
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The Selectboard may approve or amend tentative agreements for Clerk/Treasurer; Finance; and/or
Recreation, Indian Brook, Senior Center and Senior Bus.
If the Selectboard wishes to enter executive session, the following motions are recommended:
Motion #1
“I move that the Selectboard make the specific finding that general public knowledge of contracts
would place the Town at a substantial disadvantage.”
Motion #2
“I move that the Selectboard enter into executive session to discuss contracts, pursuant to 1 V.S.A. §
313(a)(1)(A) to include the Unified Manager and Deputy Manager.”
Attachments:
1.
Shared Boards SB Memo 2.3.22
2.
Joint Meeting Memo 1.18
3.
ClerkTreasurer Agreement 2-15-22 JB comments
4.
Finance Contract 02-15-22 JB comments
5.
Recreation IB Senior Center Senior Bus Agreement 02-15-22 JB comments
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Memo
To:

Selectboard

From: Brad Luck, Essex Junction Recreation & Parks
Date:

February 3, 2022

Re:

Shared Boards, Commissions, and Committees

In regard to shared boards, commissions, and committees, at the joint meeting on December 13, this
was recorded in the minutes:
“The boards indicated an interest in exploring the possibility of sharing the Essex BEST
Committee, Committee on Equity for Essex, the Economic Development Commission, and the
Housing Commission. This idea will be brought back to the boards and commissions for further
review.”
Below is a message from the Essex Energy Committee Chair Will Dodge. We have reached out to the
Economic Development Commission and Joint Housing Commission for them to consider and provide
feedback of what to do in separation. Essex BEST will also be coming forward with recommended next
steps.
ESSEX ENERGY COMMITTEE
From Will Dodge, Chair, Essex Energy Committee
Dear Andy and Andrew:
I apologize this email is arriving a little later than expected. Members of the Town Energy Committee
understand that you seek input on how to proceed, given the pending possibility of Village separation
from the Town of Essex.
We met last Wednesday and discussed the dilemma of whether to continue to work town-wide or move
to supporting only the TOV (new Town). Points raised at the meeting included the following:
•

•

•

Energy challenges are the same in both parts of Essex, it being impossible to keep electrons (or
for that matter greenhouse gases associated with transportation and heating) within municipal
boundaries.
We have an Energy Plan that has been duly adopted by both Town and Village, with neither a
need nor a desire to “start over.” Doing otherwise would require new calculations and an
overhaul of all the combined goals.
We know how challenging it can be to fill committee vacancies with volunteers, and are blessed
by the fact that we have volunteers today from both Town and Junction.
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•

We see no benefit to splitting up, and believe we can work productively with municipal officials
in separate entities.
For those reasons, we believe it's in everyone's best interests to continue working as a single
“municipality-wide” committee.
To that end, a motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously, that the Energy Committee feels it
best to operate as a single Town and Village / City Committee.
Thank you for your work on behalf of all Essex residents -- please let us know if you have any questions.
JOINT HOUSING COMMISSION
The Joint Housing Commission is having discussions and will be sharing their thoughts on the future of
the commission in separation.
ESSEX BEST
Essex BEST will be coming to the February 15 joint meeting to discuss recommendations of how to move
forward.
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Below is the discussion that the Trustees had on January 25 related to the Economic Development
Commission.
Discussion and possible action about contracts with the Town of Essex
Mr. Luck introduced this follow-up discussion from the Essex Selectboard and Village Trustees
Joint Meeting on January 24th. Mr. Tyler brought up Ms. Haney’s letter from the reading file, to
illustrate the need for the Village to focus on their own economic development vision. He said
the Town’s Economic Development Committee is broader than just the downtown and takes a
different approach than what is needed there. He suggested forming a Downtown Committee,
or their own Economic Development Commission, to take better advantage of their downtown
designation. He suggested that this strategy could support planned, significant projects and
prepare for new initiatives in a more coordinated, focused way. He also suggested they also
have a stronger presence in the Global Foundries industrial park plans. Mr. Brown wondered
how a Town Economic Director would play out with a shared Economic Development
Committee. Mr. Chawla talked about the importance of continued collaboration with the Town
until but also consider a separate structure, later, for economic development downtown.
The Trustees discussed their support of the other collaborative committees/ joint boards with
the Town and supported how the agreements are currently written. Mr. Chawla wondered how
thecommittee stipends would be addressed. He suggested they identify an agreement with the
Selectboard for how this will work. Mr. Brown suggested this also could include a discussion
about logistics related to appointments of committee members
This memo is informational only.
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Memo
To:

Village Trustees & Selectboard

From: Brad Luck, Essex Junction Recreation & Parks
Date:

January 18, 2022

Re:

Agreements & Shared Boards

In the packet for discussion are three draft agreements for finance, clerk/treasurer, and
recreation/Indian Brook/Senior Center & vans. Please note that the finance and clerk/treasurer's
agreements are relevant now and are draft agreements between the Town and Village (not Town and
City).
In regards to shared boards, commissions, and committees, at the last joint meeting on December 13,
this was recorded in the minutes:
“The boards indicated an interest in exploring the possibility of sharing the Essex BEST
Committee, Committee on Equity for Essex, the Economic Development Commission, and the
Housing Commission. This idea will be brought back to the boards and commissions for further
review.”
Below is a message from the Essex Energy Committee Chair Will Dodge. We have reached out to the
Economic Development Commission and Joint Housing Commission for them to consider and provide
feedback of what to do in separation. Essex BEST will also be coming forward with recommended next
steps.
From Will Dodge, Chair, Essex Energy Committee
Dear Andy and Andrew:
I apologize this email is arriving a little later than expected. Members of the Town Energy Committee
understand that you seek input on how to proceed, given the pending possibility of Village separation
from the Town of Essex.
We met last Wednesday and discussed the dilemma of whether to continue to work town-wide or move
to supporting only the TOV (new Town). Points raised at the meeting included the following:
•

Energy challenges are the same in both parts of Essex, it being impossible to keep electrons (or
for that matter greenhouse gases associated with transportation and heating) within municipal
boundaries.
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•

We have an Energy Plan that has been duly adopted by both Town and Village, with neither a
need nor a desire to “start over.” Doing otherwise would require new calculations and an
overhaul of all the combined goals.
• We know how challenging it can be to fill committee vacancies with volunteers, and are blessed
by the fact that we have volunteers today from both Town and Junction.
• We see no benefit to splitting up, and believe we can work productively with municipal officials
in separate entities.
For those reasons, we believe it's in everyone's best interests to continue working as a single
“municipality-wide” committee.
To that end, a motion was made, seconded and passed unanimously, that the Energy Committee feels it
best to operate as a single Town and Village / City Committee.
Thank you for your work on behalf of all Essex residents -- please let us know if you have any questions.
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Clerk/Treasurer Agreement
THIS AGREEMENT, (“Agreement”) made this ____ day of
_________________, 2022, by and between the Town of Essex, a Vermont
municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex” or the “Town”) and the Village
of Essex Junction, a Vermont municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex
Junction” or the “Village” and together the Village and Town are collectively referred
to herein as the “Municipalities” or the “Parties”).
WHEREAS, the duly elected Town Selectboard and Village Trustees have general
supervisory authority over affairs of their respective Municipalities;
WHEREAS, the Municipalities each desire to ultimately have independent Offices of
the Clerk/Treasurer (“Clerk/Treasurer’s Office”) but desire to set forth terms for
working together from the date of the execution of this Aagreement until the end of
the fiscal year following the establishment of an independent City of Essex Junction
or June 30, 2023, if the City of Essex Junction is not established;
WHEREAS, until the termination of this Agreement, the Municipalities shall
continue to share the Clerk/Treasurer’s Office;
WHEREAS, the Village shall employ one employee and the Town shall employ the
other employees of the Clerk/Treasurer’s Office and the Town shall compensate the
Village for the shared services;
WHEREAS, the Clerk/Treasurer’s office will operate from 81 Main Street during the
term of this Agreement; and
WHEREAS, the Town and Village/City Managers will have shared oversight of the
Clerk; and
WHEREAS, the Municipalities desire that the Office of the Clerk/Treasurer shall
serve the needs of each municipality and, if the City of Essex Junction is established,
will continue to serve each municipality, distinguishing business by municipality as
needed and required, and work to prepare the Office to operate as two independent
offices, one for each municipality;
NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing premises, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Town and the Village hereby agree as follows:
1. Term.
The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of the execution of this
Agreement until the end of the fiscal year following the establishment of the City
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of Essex Junction, or June 30, 202321, if the City of Essex Junction is not
established. Continuation of ing a shared relationship thereafter will be pursuant
to a new mutually acceptable agreement.
2. Office of the Clerk/Treasurer.
The Village shall employ one employee and the Town shall employ the other
employees of the Clerk/Treasurer’s Office. The Town shall compensate the Village
Fifty Thousand Dollars per year ($50,000.00) payable in four equal payments at
the end of each quarter of the fiscal year.
The Office of the Clerk/Treasurer shall operate from 81 Main Street during the
term of this Agreement. The Office of the Clerk/Treasurer shall perform the work
customarily required of this office to serve both municipalities. If the City of Essex
Junction is established, staff shall continue to serve both municipalities, providing
all of the necessary services at 81 Main Street, yet distinguishing business by
municipality as needed and required. At the conclusion of this Agreemente fiscal
year following the establishment of the City, both offices shall function
independently, at their respective City and Town offices, unless otherwise
mutually agreed by the Parties.
Until both offices function independently, the Clerk(s) shall determine the
allocation of revenue and expenses to the appropriate municipality. In the event
the Clerk(s) are uncertain of where to allocate revenue and expenses, the Town
Manager and Village Manager shall work together to reach agreement. If the
Managers cannot reach agreement, the issue will be brought before the Town
Selectboard and the Village Trustees. Should the Town Selectboard and Village
Trustees not come to an agreement, the dispute will be addressed pursuant to
Section 8 of this Agreement.
3.

Necessary Actions.
The Town and the Village hereby agree to take or cause to be taken such further
actions, if any, and to execute, deliver and record, or cause to be executed,
delivered and recorded, such further documents and instruments that may be
reasonably necessary to fully effectuate the purposes, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

4.

Termination.
This Agreement shall terminates at the end of the fiscal year following the
establishment of the independent City of Essex Junction onr June 30, 2023,
unless otherwise mutually agreed by the Parties, if the City of Essex Junction is
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not established or it and may also automatically terminate upon any of the
following events:
a. The dissolution or insolvency of either of the Municipalities; or
b. The Parties enter into a new written agreement which expressly supersedes
this Agreement.
5.

Amendment.
This Agreement may be amended or modified by mutual written agreement of the
Parties.

6. Notice.
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
mailed to the addresses listed below (or such other address as a party may
designate) or hand delivered to the other party at a duly warned meeting of the
Town Selectboard or the Village Trustees.

7.

To the Town of Essex:

Town of Essex Selectboard
81 Main Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452-3209

To Village of Essex Junction:

Village of Essex Junction Trustees
2 Lincoln Street
Essex Junction, VT o5452

Governing Law; Severability
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Vermont. All rights
and remedies provided by this Agreement or by law or in equity or by statute
shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right,
power, or remedy now or hereafter existing to enforce this Agreement. If any
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect and shall be
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

8.

Disputes.
In the event of any dispute arising out of this Agreement, the Municipalities shall
first agree to mediate the dispute. The Municipalities may also agree to submit
any dispute not resolved in mediation to binding arbitration. Otherwise all
disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be heard in the Vermont
Page 3
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Superior Court, Chittenden Civil Division or United States District Court for the
State of Vermont.
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9. Entire Agreement.
This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties. All prior
agreements, offers, negotiations and representations not herein expressly
contained shall be of no force and effect.
10. Assignment; Binding Agreement.
Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any interest hereunder without the
written approval of all of the Parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.
Should the Village of Essex Junction become the City of Essex Junction at any
time prior to the expiration of this Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in
effect between the City of Essex Junction and Town of Essex.
11. No Waiver.
No failure by either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term
hereunder or to exercise any right, power, or remedy consequent upon a breach
thereof shall constitute a waiver of any breach of any such term. No waiver of any
breach shall affect or alter this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and
effect, or the rights of either party with respect to any other existing or
subsequent breach.
12. Captions.
The captions or marginal words are inserted only as a matter of convenience and
reference and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement nor
the intent of any provisions hereof.

DATED this ___ day of ____________, 2022.

TOWN OF ESSEX

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent
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VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent
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Shared Financial Services Agreement
THIS AGREEMENT, (“Agreement”) made this ____ day of
_________________, 2022, by and between the Town of Essex, a Vermont
municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex” or the “Town”) and the Village
of Essex Junction, a Vermont municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex
Junction” or the “Village” and together the Village and Town are collectively referred
to herein as the “Municipalities” or the “Parties”).
WHEREAS, the duly elected Town Selectboard and Village Trustees have general
supervisory authority over affairs of their respective Municipalities;
WHEREAS, the Municipalities each desire to ultimately have independent finance
departments (“Finance Departments”);
WHEREAS, until the Finance Departments are independent, the Municipalities may
continue to have shared finance non-personnel related expenses, and, with the
exception of allany separation related costs, which are different from costs of
disentangling a consolidated Finance Department, the Town and Village shall each
be responsible for the costs of those shared finance non-personnel related expenses
based on the nature of the expenses as agreed upon by the finance directors;
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WHEREAS, each municipality shall employ and manage its own Finance
Department personnel, and fund its Finance Department’s budget;
WHEREAS, the Finance Departments will each operate from 81 Main Street during
the term of this Agreement;
WHEREAS, the Municipalities desire that the Finance Departments shall work
together, helping to accomplish the finance needs of each municipality, as
determined by the finance director for each municipality;
WHEREAS, during the term of this Agreement, the Finance Departments shall work
together to separate the currently shared finances to create independent finance
departments for each municipality;
NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing premises, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Town and the Village hereby agree as follows:
1. Term.
This Agreement shall commence on July 1, 2022, and expire on June 30, 2025,
unless earlier terminated pursuant to Section 6 herein. If this contract requires an
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extension, the Parties shall not unreasonably deny the extension, with any
modifications deemed necessarymutually agreed to by the Parties.
2. Finance Departments
Each municipality shall employ its own Finance Department and the Finance
Departments shall both operate from 81 Main Street during the term of this
Agreement. The Finance Departments shall work together, helping to accomplish
the finance needs of both municipalities, as determined by the finance director for
each municipality. The Finance Departments shall work toward separating the
currently shared finances to ultimately create independent finance departments
for each municipality.
3. Cost and Payment.
Each municipality shall pay all costs associated with its respective Finance
Department. If there are shared finance non-personnel related expenses,
including without limitation consultant fees, each municipality is responsible for
its portion of the costs, which shall be allocated based on the nature of the
expense as agreed upon by the finance directors (i.e. number of users, number of
FTEs, amount of time, number of invoices, etc.). Examples of expenses that may
be addressed in this matter include: Questica, ReadSoft, NEMRC, professional
services fees (NEMRC custom programming or tax billing assistance), office
supplies, group trainings, copier rental and usage, and printing and mailing costs.
All costs tied to separation, which are different from costs of disentangling a
consolidated Finance Department, shall be borne by the Village/City. In the event
the finance directors cannot reach agreement as to the expense allocation, the
Town Manager and Village Manager shall work together to reach agreement. If
the Managers cannot reach agreement, the issue will be brought before the Town
Selectboard and the Village Trustees. Should the Town Selectboard and Village
Trustees not come to an agreement, the dispute will be addressed pursuant to
Section 10 of this Agreement.
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4. Personnel Management
Each municipality shall employ and manage its own Finance Department
personnel, and fund its Finance Department’s budget.
5.

Necessary Actions.
The Town and the Village hereby agree to take or cause to be taken such further
actions, if any, and to execute, deliver and record, or cause to be executed,
delivered and recorded, such further documents and instruments that may be
Page 2

Page 92 of 151

reasonably necessary to fully effectuate the purposes, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.
6.

Termination.
In the event the finance directors for both municipalities identify that the Finance
Departments are able to operate independently prior to the expiration date of this
agreement identified in Section 1 herein, the finance directors shall inform their
respective municipal managers. The finance directors and municipal managers
shall set out a timeline for the transition of the Village finance department out of
81 Main Street and a date for termination of this Agreement. The Town
Selectboard and the Village Trustees shall review and consider the transition
timeline. If each board approves, the boards shall execute a written agreement
terminating this Agreement.
This Agreement may also automatically terminate upon any of the following
events:
a. The dissolution or insolvency of either of the Municipalities; or
b. The Parties enter into a new written agreement which expressly supersedes
this Agreement.

7.

Amendment.
This Agreement may be amended or modified by mutual written agreement of the
Parties.

8. Notice.
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
mailed to the addresses listed below (or such other address as a party may
designate) or hand delivered to the other party at a duly warned meeting of the
Town Selectboard or the Village Trustees.

9.

To the Town of Essex:

Town of Essex Selectboard
81 Main Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452-3209

To Village of Essex Junction:

Village of Essex Junction Trustees
2 Lincoln Street
Essex Junction, VT o5452

Governing Law; Severability
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This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Vermont. All rights
and remedies provided by this Agreement or by law or in equity or by statute
shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right,
power, or remedy now or hereafter existing to enforce this Agreement. If any
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect and shall be
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.
10. Disputes.
In the event of any dispute arising out of this Agreement, the Municipalities shall
first agree to mediate the dispute. The Municipalities may also agree to submit
any dispute not resolved in mediation to binding arbitration. Otherwise all
disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be heard in the Vermont
Superior Court, Chittenden Civil Division or the United States District Court for
the State of Vermont.
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11. Entire Agreement.
This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties. All prior
agreements, offers, negotiations and representations not herein expressly
contained shall be of no force and effect.
12. Assignment; Binding Agreement.
Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any interest hereunder without the
written approval of all of the Parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.
Shall the Village of Essex Junction become the City of Essex Junction at any time
prior to the expiration of this agreement, this agreement shall remain in effect
between the City of Essex Junction and Town of Essex.
13. No Waiver.
No failure by either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term
hereunder or to exercise any right, power, or remedy consequent upon a breach
thereof shall constitute a waiver of any breach of any such term. No waiver of any
breach shall affect or alter this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and
effect, or the rights of either party with respect to any other existing or
subsequent breach.
14. Captions.

Page 4

Page 94 of 151

The captions or marginal words are inserted only as a matter of convenience and
reference and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement nor
the intent of any provisions hereof.

DATED this ___ day of ____________, 2022.

TOWN OF ESSEX

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent

VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent
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Recreation, Indian Brook, Senior Center, and Senior Bus Agreement
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THIS AGREEMENT, (“Agreement”) made this ____ day of
_________________, 2022, by and between the Town of Essex, a Vermont
municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex” or the “Town”) and the City of
Essex Junction, a Vermont municipality located in Chittenden County, (“Essex
Junction” or the “City” and together the City and Town are collectively referred to
herein as the “Municipalities” or the “Parties”).
WHEREAS, the duly elected Town Selectboard and City Council have general
supervisory authority over affairs of their respective Municipalities;
WHEREAS, the Municipalities value the current access residents have to services,
facilities, and parks that enhance their quality of life;
WHEREAS, each Municipality desires to continue to share certain services, parks,
and facilities;
WHEREAS, the residents of each Municipality shall be treated equally with respect
to the recreation programs of Essex Junction Recreation & Parks and Essex Parks &
Recreation, access to Indian Brook, access and membership to the Essex Area Senior
Center, and eligibility to ride the Senior Bus;
WHEREAS, with certain exceptions defined below, the residents of each
Municipality shall have the same access, be charged the same fees, and have the
same ability to register for programs for the recreation programs of Essex Junction
Recreation & Parks and Essex Parks & Recreation, access to Indian Brook, access
and membership to the Essex Area Senior Center, and eligibility to ride the Senior
Bus;
WHEREAS, the Municipalities will not share equal access to Essex Junction
Recreation & Parks Preschool, or the Maple Street and Sandhill public outdoor pools
and their programs, or for park and facility rentals, for which the Municipality in
which each is located may create its own residency requirements, fees, or other
requirements; and
WHEREAS, the Town shall employ the employees of the Essex Area Senior Center
and the Senior Bus, and the City shall share in these expenses on a per capita basis at
such time as the residents of the City are not paying Town taxes;
WHEREAS, the Essex Area Senior Center is currently located at 2 Lincoln Street and
the City Village agrees to continue to provide space for the Senior Center at 2 Lincoln
Street;
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NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing premises, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Town and the City hereby agree as follows:
1. Essex Junction Recreation & Parks and Essex Parks & Recreation.
City and Town residents shall share equal access to the recreation programs of
Essex Junction Recreation & Parks and Essex Parks & Recreation, with the limited
exceptions provided herein. City and Town residents shall be charged the same
fees for use, and have the ability to register at the same time for recreation
programs.
The City and Town will not share equal access to Essex Junction Recreation &
Parks Preschool, or the Maple Street and Sandhill public outdoor pools, or for
park and facility rentals. The Municipality controlling these programs and
facilities may create its own residency requirements, fees, or other requirements
for usage.
2. Indian Brook.
City and Town residents shall share equal access, be charged the same fees for use,
and have the same ability to use Indian Brook. The City shall share in the
maintenance, operational, and capital expenses of Indian Brook on a per capita
basis at such time when the City residents no longer pay Town taxes.
3. Senior Center and Senior Bus.
City and Town residents shall share the same access, be charged the same fees,
and have the ability to register at the same time for programming for the Senior
Center and the Senior Bus, so long as the Town’s contract for the Senior Bus
permits such access.
The Town shall employ the employees of, manage and fund the Senior Center and
the Senior Bus. The City shall share in these expenses on a per capita basis at such
time when the City residents no longer pay Town taxes.
The City’s share of the expenses shall include be assessed an additional 3.5% of the
direct costs to support indirect Senior Center and Senior Bus related expenses.
The intention is to support administration costs, human resources costs,
Information Technology (IT) costs, finance costs and other mutually agreed upon
costs related to the operations of the Senior Center and Senior Bus.
The City shall continue to provide the existing space The Village shall provide
space at 2 Lincoln Street rent-free and shall continue to pay the cost of any
repairs, maintenance or improvements tofor the Senior Center.
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4. Necessary Actions.
The Town and the City hereby agree to take or cause to be taken such further
actions, if any, and to execute, deliver and record, or cause to be executed,
delivered and recorded, such further documents and instruments that may be
reasonably necessary to fully effectuate the purposes, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.
5.

Termination.
The Agreement shall terminate on June 30, 2025 unless extended by mutual
agreement of the Parties or in the following events:
a. The dissolution or insolvency of either of the Municipalities; or
b. The Parties enter into a new written agreement which expressly supersedes
this Agreement, and which agreement may include some or all of the services
and amenities addressed in this Agreement.
Notice of termination

6.
A Notice of Intent to Terminate this Agreement must be delivered to the other
Party not less than two (2) years prior to the end of either the Initial Term or any
Extended Term.
6. Amendment.
This Agreement may be amended or modified by mutual written agreement of the
Parties.
7. Notice.
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and
mailed to the addresses listed below (or such other address as a party may
designate) or hand delivered to the other party at a duly warned meeting of the
Town Selectboard or the City Council.
To the Town of Essex:

Town of Essex Selectboard
81 Main Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452-3209

To City of Essex Junction: City of Essex Junction City Council
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2 Lincoln Street
Essex Junction, VT o5452
8.

Governing Law; Severability
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Vermont. All rights
and remedies provided by this Agreement or by law or in equity or by statute
shall be cumulative and concurrent and shall be in addition to every other right,
power, or remedy now or hereafter existing to enforce this Agreement. If any
provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect and shall be
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

9.

Disputes.
In the event of any dispute arising out of this Agreement, the Municipalities shall
first agree to mediate the dispute. The Municipalities may also agree to submit
any dispute not resolved in mediation to binding arbitration. Otherwise all
disputes arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be heard in the Vermont
Superior Court, Chittenden Civil Division or the United States District Court for
the State of Vermont.

Commented [GD2]: Trustees opposed to this language.
Selectboard wants input from Town Attorney.

10. Entire Agreement.
This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties. All prior
agreements, offers, negotiations and representations not herein expressly
contained shall be of no force and effect.
11. Assignment; Binding Agreement.
Neither party shall assign this Agreement or any interest hereunder without the
written approval of all of the Parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon and
inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns.
12. No Waiver.
No failure by either party to insist upon the strict performance of any term
hereunder or to exercise any right, power, or remedy consequent upon a breach
thereof shall constitute a waiver of any breach of any such term. No waiver of any
breach shall affect or alter this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and
effect, or the rights of either party with respect to any other existing or
subsequent breach.
13. Captions.
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The captions or marginal words are inserted only as a matter of convenience and
reference and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope of this Agreement nor
the intent of any provisions hereof.

DATED this ___ day of ____________, 2022.

TOWN OF ESSEX

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent

CITY OF ESSEX JUNCTION

By:

___________________________
Its Duly Authorized Agent
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Memorandum
To:
Cc:
From:
Re:
Date:

Selectboard, Evan Teich (Unified Manager)
Susan McNamara-Hill, Clerk and Treasurer
Ron Hoague, Police Chief
Gregory Duggan, Deputy Manager
Consider approval of first, second, and third class liquor license renewals
February 16, 2022

Issue
The issue is whether the Selectboard will approve the Liquor License applications listed in the
February 1, 2022 and February 16, 2022 memorandums from Police Chief Ron Hoague re: “Liquor
License Applications”.
Discussion
The February 23 Selectboard packet contains the list of applicants for all First/Third Class and
second class establishments that have been reviewed by the Police Department and recommended
for approval.
Staff noted on the list if there is an Outside Consumption Permit.
Cost
n/a
Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Selectboard approve the Liquor License applications listed in the
February 1, 2022 and February 16, 2022 memorandums re: “Liquor License Applications”.
Attachments:
1.
Liquor License 2022 gd
2.
Liquor License 2022.2_gd
3.
liquor_Silver Hospitality, 3rd class
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DEPARTMENTAL MEMORANDUM

Date: February 1, 2022
______________________________________________________________________________
To:

Evan Teich
Unified Manager

From:

Ron Hoague
Chief of Police

Subject:

Liquor License Applications

The police department conducted records review of the following first class liquor license
applicants, some of which include outdoor consumption permits and/or third class liquor license
applications. There was nothing of concern found:
* Includes outdoor consumption permit
3 Includes third class liquor license application
Lang Family, LLC*

DBA: The Barns at Lang Farm
43 Upper Main Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Out-Bev Inc*3

DBA: The Mad Taco
21 Essex Way, Suite 213
Essex, VT 05452

Kanz Corporation*3

DBA: On Tap Bar and Grill
4 Park Street
Essex, Junction, VT 05452

Silver Hospitality LLC*3

DBA: Salt & Bubbles Wine Bar and Market
19 Essex Way, Suite 412
Essex, VT 05452
The applicant is a first-time applicant for a third class liquor license. The third-class
application is attached.

The Sausage Shack LLC

DBA: The Sausage Shack
105 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Whitcomb House, The, LLC

DBA: The Whitcomb House
199 Jericho Road
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Essex Junction, VT 05452
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The police department conducted records review of the following second class liquor license
applicants. There was nothing of concern found:
Brickhouse Studios Inc

DBA: ArtHound Gallery
21 Essex Way; Suite 405
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Third Burlington Corporation

DBA: Central Beverage
4 Central Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Fourth Burlington Corporation

DBA: Essex Colonial Mart
50 Susie Wilson Road
Essex, VT 05451

E.D.B., Inc.

DBA: Essex Discount Beverage
76 Center Road
Essex, VT 05452

Seventh Burlington, LLC

DBA: Fairgrounds Beverage
103A Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Fifth Burlington, LLC

DBA: Five Corners Variety
39 Park Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Sherman V. Allen, Inc.

DBA: Macs Essex Market
101 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

R.L. Vallee, Inc

DBA: Maplefields
72 Upper Main Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Price Chopper Operating Co. of Vermont, Inc

DBA: Price Chopper #192
90 Center Road
Essex Junction, VT 05452

River Road Beverage and Redemption, Inc

DBA: River Road Beverage and Redemption
45 River Road
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Slimain Handy’s Convenience Stores, Inc.

DBA: Simon’s Essex Center Store & Deli
134 Jericho Road
Essex, VT 05451
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Simon’s Five Corners, Inc

DBA: Simon’s Five Corners Store
2 Park Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Simon’s Route 2A Store, LLC

DBA: Simon’s Route 2A Store
221 Colchester Road
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Silver Hospitality LLC

DBA: Salt & Bubbles Wine Bar and Market
19 Essex Way, Suite 412
Essex, VT 05452
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DEPARTMENTAL MEMORANDUM

Date: February 16, 2022
______________________________________________________________________________
To:

Evan Teich
Unified Manager

From:

Ron Hoague
Chief of Police

Subject:

Liquor License Applications

The police department conducted records review of the following first class liquor license
applicants, some of which include outdoor consumption permits and/or third class liquor license
applications. There was nothing of concern found:
* Includes outdoor consumption permit
3 Includes third class liquor license application
Essex Junction Grand Buffet

DBA: Essex Junction Grand Buffet
66 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Mark BBQ, LLC*

DBA: Heart N Soul
34 Park Street
Essex Jct, VT 05452

JP’s Diner and Deli Ltd. 3

DBA: JP’s Diner and Deli
39 River Road
Essex Junction, VT 05452

JES Impresa Corporation*3

DBA: Jules on the Green
1 Commonwealth Avenue
Essex, VT 05452

Brown Lab Pub Co.*3

DBA: McGillicuddy’s Five Corners
4 Pearl Street, Suite 105
Essex Junction, VT 05452

Spano, Inc.*3

DBA: Mimmo’s Pizzeria & Restaurant
4 Carmichael St, Ste 102, 103
Essex Junction, VT 05452
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T.O.B., Inc.*3

Dependes, Inc.*3

Veterans of Foreign Wars Essex Jct. Post 6689*3

DBA: Murray’s Tavern
4 Lincoln Place
Essex Junction, VT 05452
DBA: Pearl Street Pub
137 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452
DBA: Veterans of Foreign Wars Essex Jct. Post
6689
73 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452
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The police department conducted records review of the following second class liquor license
applicants. There was nothing of concern found:
KPH Drugs, Inc

DBA: Kinney Drugs Store #21
82 Pearl Street
Essex Junction, VT 05452
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B08

#”~~NERMONT
DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR AND LOTTERY
DIVISION OF LIQUOR CONTROL

FIRST/SECOND/THIRD CLASS LIQUOR LICENSE AND TOBACCO APPLICATION

(License year is May 1 through April 30™ofthe following yeat)
Silver Hospitality LLC

Print NameofPerson,Partnership, Corp., Club or LLC

APPLICATION FEES:

Salt & Bubbles Wine Bar and Market

‘ FIRST CLASSLICENSE- $115.00 to DLC and $115.00 to Town/City

Doing Business as — Trade Name

SECONDCLASSLICENSE-$70.00 to DLC and $70.00 to Town/City

19 Essex Way Suite 412

SECOND CLASS RETAIL DELIVERY PERMIT - $100.00 to DLC

Street

Essex Junction, VT 05452

THIRD CLASSLICENSE- $1,095 for a full year to DLC
$550 for 6 or fewer months to DLC

TownorCity & Zip Code

7185940415

TOBACCO LICENSE- (there is no application fee for tobacco if
applying for second class)

Telephone Number

10 Alder Lane Essex Junction, VT 05452

TOBACCO ENDORSEMENT PERMIT- $50.00 to DLC

Mailing Address(if different from above)

“Ifapplyingfor Tobaccoonly license, please use the Tobacco Onlyform.

Emailaddress: Kaylarsilver@qmail.com

Please check appropriate categories

(_]FIRsT CLass
[_] SECOND CLASS

THIRD CLASS
[]ToBacco

[Retail Delivery Permit
[_] Tobacco Endorsement

[Restaurant
[]Hotel
[]ctub

Commercial Kitchen (a Liquor Control Commercial
Caterer’s License is needed with thislicense)

TO THE CONTROL COMMISSIONERSOF THE TOWN/CITY OF Essex Junction/Essex
Application is hereby madefor licenseto sell malt and vinous beverages under and in accordance with Title 7,
VermontStatutes Annotated, as amended,andcertify thatall statements, information and answers to questions

herein contained are true; and in consideration of such license being granted do promise and agtee to comply
with all local and state laws; and to comply with all regulations made and promulgated by the Board of Liquor
and Lottery. Upon hearing, the Board of Liquor and Lottery may, in its discretion, suspend or revoke such
license whenever it may determinethat the law or any regulations of the Board of Liquor and Lottery have been
violated, or that any statement, information or answets herein contained are false.
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MISREPRESENTATION OF A MATERIAL FACT ON ANY LICENSE APPLICATION SHALL BE
GROUNDS FOR SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF THE LICENSE, AFTER NOTICE AND
HEARING,
If this premise was previously licensed,please indicate name
I/we are applying as (please check one):

[Tnprvipua
[7]PARTNERSHIP

[J Limrrep LiaBILITy COMPANY
[7] corporation

Pleasefill in name and address of individual, partners, directors or members.
LEGAL NAME
Kayla Silver

STREET/CITY/STATE
10 Alder Lane, Essex Junction, VT 05452

Are all of the abovecitizens or lawful permanent residents of the UNITED STATES? [V] ves [_]no

If naturalizedcitizen or lawful permanenttesident of the United States, please provide a copy ofthe
naturalization or lawful permanentresident documentation.
CORPORATE INFORMATION:

If you have checked the box marked CORPORATION,pleasefill out this information for stockholders (attach sheet if necessary).

LEGAL NAME

Date ofincorporation

STREET/CITY/STATE

Is corporate charter now valid?

Yes)

No Oo

Corporate Federal Identification Number
Haveyouregistered your corporation and/ortrade name with the Town/City Clerk? ¥YCQ)N©

(as required by VSA Title 11 § 1621, 1623 & 1625).

age 2

and/or Secretary of State? YO NO

Rev. 12/02/2019
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ALL APPLICANTS
HAVE ANY OF THE APPLICANTS EVER BEEN CONVICTED OR PLED GUILTY TO ANY CRIMINAL OR MOTOR
VEHICLE OFFENSE IN ANY COURT OF LAW (INCLUDING TRAFFIC TICKETS) AT ANY TIME? [Ives
NO

If yes, please completethe following information:(attached sheetif necessary)
Name

Court/Traffic Bureau

Offense

Date

Doanyofthe applicants hold anyelective or appointivestate, county,city, village/townoffice in Vermont? (See VSA,T.7, Ch. 9, §223)
If yes, please complete the followinginformation:

Name

Office

Jurisdiction

Please give name,title and date attended of manager,director, partner or individual who has attended a Liquor ControlLicensee
Education Seminar,as required by Education Regulation No.3:

Name:

Kayla Silver

Tide:

Owner

Date

February 5th, 2021

If you have notattended an Education Seminar prior to making application,please visit wwwliquorcontrol.vermont.govandclick
on Seminar Schedulefora list of Seminars in your area.
FOR ALL APPLICANTS: DESCRIPTION /LOCATION OF PREMISES(Section 4)

Description ofthe premises to belicensed: This license is specific to our catering operations whichwill be mainly for weddings.
Wehaverenovated a two horsetraller to be usedfar barcatering ONLYoff premises. Ourbrick and mortar location mightstore these liquoritemsbutwill never serve them atSalt & Bubbles.

Doesapplicant own the premises described? YESCQ no@

I£ not owned,does applicantlease the premises? yEs@ NoO

If leased, nameand address oflessor whoholdstitle to property: 21 Essex Way Suite 27 Essex Junction VT 05452
Eurowest Properties
Are you makingthis applicationforthe benefitof anyotherparty? YESCQ,

no®

FIRST CLASS APPLICANTS ONLY:Nofirst-classlicense maybeissued withoutthe following information.
HEALTH LICENSE #:

Food —____tm_____ Lodging(iflicensed as a Hotel)

VERMONT TAX DEPARTMENT:Meals & RoomsCertificate/Business Account##

Businessis devoted primarily to (phase check one):

[¥]FOOD (restaurant)

[_]HOTEL

ctus

[-]commerctaL caTERING

If you are considering Outside Consumption service on decks, porches, cabanas, etc. you must complete

an Outside Consumption Permit. This form can be found on our website at www.liquorcontrol.vetmont.gov and
then click on licensing and then forms.
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ALL APPLICANTS MUST COMPLETE AND SIGN BELOW
The applicant(s) understands and agrees that the Board of Liquor and Lottery may obtain criminal history record

information from State and Federal repositories prior to acting on this application.

I/Weherebycertify, undet pains and penalties of perjury, that I/We are in good standing with respectto orin full

compliance with a plan approved by the Commissioner of Taxes to pay any andall taxes due the State of Vermont
as ofthe date ofthis application. (VSA,Title 32,§3113).
In accordance with 21 VSA, §1378 (b) I/Wecertify, under pains and penalties of perjury, that I/We ate in
good standing with respect to ot in full compliance with a plan to pay any and all contributions ot payments in
lieu of contributions due to the Department of Employmentand Training.
If applicant is applying as an individual: I hereby certify that I/We are not under an obligation to pay child
support or that I/We are in good standing with respect to child support or am in full compliance with a plan to
pay any andall child support payable under a support order. (VSA,Title 15, §795).

Dated at 12/28/2021 inthe County ofChittenden and State of Vermont,
this 28

day of December

2021

Corporations/Clubs: Signature ofAuthorized Agent
.

Kayla Silver

Page 4

Digitally signed by Kayla Silver

‘Dale: 2021.12.28 19:50:37 -0500'

Individuals/ Partners: (All partners mustsign)
a

Kayla Silver

+ Digitally signed by Kayla Silver

“Date: 2021.12.28 19:52:42 -0500"
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TOWN/CITY APPROVAL/DISAPPROVAL

Upon beingsatisfied that the conditions precedent to the granting of this license as provided in Title 7 of the

Vermont Statutes Annotated, as amended, have been fully met by the applicant, the commissioners will

endorse their recommendation on the back ofthe applications and transmit both copies to the Board of Liquor
and Lottery for suitable action thereon, before any license may be granted. For the information of the Board of
Liquor and Lottery, all applications shall catry the signature of each individual commissioner tegisteting either
approval or disapproval. Leaseortitle must be recorded in town otcity before issuanceof license.
Town/City
APPROVED

Please check one:

___ Approved

Vermont,

Date

DISAPPROVED

__Disapproved

by the Board of Control Commissioners of the City or Town of
Total Membership
Attest,

Membets present

City or Town Clerk

TOWN OR CITY CLERK SHALL MAIL ONE APPLICATION DIRECTLY TO THEDIVISION
OF LIQUOR CONTROL,13 Green Mountain Drive, Montpelier, VT 05602. If application is

disapproved,local control commissioners shall notify the applicantbyletter.

Noformal action taken by any agency or authority of any town board ofselectmen orcity board ofaldermen on a
first or second-class application shall be considered binding except as taken ot made at an open
public meeting. VSA Title 1 §312.

SECTION 5111 AND 5121 OF THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1954 REQUIRE
EVERY RETAIL DEALER IN ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES TO FILE A FORM ANNUALLY
AND PAY A SPECIAL TAX IN
CONNECTION WITH
SUCH
SALES ACTIVITY.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION, CONTACT:
THE BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO & FIREARMS(TTB)
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
550 MAIN STREET, CINCINNATI, OH 45202
(513) 684-2979
NOTICE:All new applications ate investigated by the Enforcement and Licensing Division prior to

approval/disapprovalof the license by the Board of Liquor and Lottery. Please note that this process can

take anywhete from 2 weeks to 6 weeks to complete once Liquor Control receives the application.
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Pos

“VERMONT
.

DEPARTMENT OF LIQUOR AND LOTTERY
DIVISION OF EtQUOR CONTROL

Personal Information Form

To Accompany License Applications

Complete for all Owners, Partners, or Corporate
Legal Name:
Telephone:

4 Glo

Officers

Silyer>

ee Email:

Address:
City/Town.

Date ofBirth: SMM,

<

SERee

Soa

State

eo

Place ofBinh:Sgaammammeees Gender: _SaUMIai

Drivers License #: eae

State:

ng==.

Sa

Legal Name:

Telephone:
Address:

Email:
Street

Date ofBirth:

City/Town

State

Zip Code

Place ofBirth:

Gender:

Drivers License #:

State:

Legal Name!

Telephone:
Address:

Email:
Street

Date of Birth:

ClyfTown

State

Zip Code

Place ofBirth:

Gender:

Drivers License #:

State:

Use additionalformsif,necessary.

Send completed forthwith application to:

Vermont DepartmentofLiquorand Lottery

Phone (802) 828-2345

Division of Liquor-Contrl.
Attention: Licensing

FAX (802) 828-1031
Email DLC.Enflic@vermont.gov

13 Green Mountain Drive

Montpelier, VT 05602

a

Confidential

Rev. 08/09/2019.
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Memorandum
TO:

Evan Teich, Unified Manager, Greg Duggan, Deputy Town Manager and the Town
Selectboard
Cc:
Dennis Lutz, P.E., Public Works Director
FROM:
Aaron Martin, P.E., Director of Public Works Operations
DATE:
February 15, 2022
SUBJECT:
Wastewater Allocation Request for 23.0 E.U. (4,600 GPD of wastewater flow)
87 Pinecrest Drive (Consent Agenda)
______________________________________________________________________________
ISSUE: The issue is whether the Selectboard will grant a sewer allocation request in the amount of 23.0
E.U. (4,600 gallons per day) to JMW Investments, LLC, for the proposed residential development project
at 87 Pinecrest Drive.
DISCUSSION: The applicant is requesting wastewater allocation for the proposed residential housing
development to be located at 87 Pinecrest Drive. This project is currently under review by the Community
Development office. The existing 20.12-acre parcel is currently occupied by a single-family home with
onsite septic. The applicant’s proposal is to retain the existing single-family home, construct a new Town
road with all utilities, and construct thirty new duplex housing units with an additional single-family home.
Each new housing unit will be served by municipal water and sewer. A proposed site plan of this project
has been attached for your use.
The proposed lot known as 87 Pinecrest Drive is located within the R2 Medium Density Residential zoning
district, and in the Town of Essex sewer core. A copy of the sewer core map has been provided with this
memo for your reference. The existing lot has no assigned allocation within the sewer core currently. Public
Works has recently updated and reconciled the current discretionary reserve sewer allocation existing with
an estimated total of 192,533 GPD available to be assigned within the sewer core. The applicant’s request
of 23.0 E.U. (4,600 GPD) of wastewater allocation equates to 2.4% of the existing available allocation to
be distributed within the sewer core. The Selectboard has sufficient discretionary reserve wastewater
allocation to approve the sewer allocation requested by the applicant.
Being this sewer allocation request is over 125% of the existing wastewater allocated for this site, the Town
of Essex Sewer Use Ordinance requires the Selectboard to approve this increase. Based upon the technical
information submitted by the applicant’s engineer for the additional allocation, Public Works recommends
that approval be granted for 23.0 E.U.’s (4,600 GPD) of wastewater allocation.
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Selectboard grant JMW Investments, LLC a
wastewater allocation in the amount of 23.0 E.U. (4,600 GPD) for the proposed residential development
project at 87 Pinecrest Drive and direct the Unified Manager to sign off on the attached application, with
the following conditions:
1. The applicant will be required to purchase the approved sewer allocation prior to issuance of each
building permit.
2. The approved wastewater allocation will be available upon receipt of final approval for the project
by the Town of Essex Planning Commission.
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SELECTBOARD & TRUSTEES
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TOWN OF ESSEX SELECTBOARD
VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION TRUSTEES
DRAFT JOINT MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, JANUARY 24, 2022
SELECTBOARD: Patrick Murray, Vice-Chair; Sue Cook; Tracey Delphia; Dawn Hill-Fleury
TRUSTEES: Andrew Brown, President; Dan Kerin; Amber Thibeault; George Tyler
ADMINISTRATION and STAFF: Evan Teich, Unified Manager; Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager;
Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager; Brad Luck, Co-Interim Village Manager
OTHERS PRESENT: Kevin Collins, Annie Cooper, Bella D., Erin Dickinson, Betsy Dunn, Maureen
Gillard, Ethan Lawrence, Resa M., Deb McAdoo, Timothy Miller, Greg Morgan, Jess Morris, Mary Post,
Harlan Smith, Margaret Smith, Mike Sullivan, Dennis Thibeault, Michael Thorne, Irene Wrenner,
Lorraine Zaloom, Sharon Zukowski, Bob, Bridget
1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Murray called the Town of Essex Selectboard to order for the Joint meeting with the Village of Essex
Junction Board of Trustees at 6:30 PM.
Mr. Brown called the Village of Essex Junction Board of Trustees to order for the Joint meeting with the
Essex Selectboard at 6:30 PM.
2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES
Ms. Cook suggested moving Business Item 5d, Consider adoption of Annual Town Meeting warning
(Selectboard only) to be discussed immediately following the Reading File.
3. APPROVE AGENDA
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA to amend the agenda to move
Agenda Item 5d below Agenda Item 7. The motion passed 4-0. Committee
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by AMBER THIBEAULT to approve the agenda as
amended. The motion passed 4-0.
4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD
Ms. Dunn thanked the Selectboard for voting to expand the Conservation & Trails Committee, and for
accepting all the candidates.
5. BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services between Town of
Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction
Mr. Murray said the Selectboard has not had the chance to review these agreements independently prior to
this meeting and suggested they enter executive session for this purpose. The Board decided to have
preliminary discussions with the Trustees, and then enter executive session. Ms. Delphia asked questions
regarding financial arrangements, timing, and potential extensions in the shared Financial Services
Agreement.
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SELECTBOARD & TRUSTEES
(DRAFT)
49
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January 24, 2022

Mr. Murray opened the discussion to the public. Ms. Dunn questioned why so many agreements are being
made between the Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction when the Village intends to separate. Mr.
Brown said the intent behind the Clerk/Treasurer and Financial Services Agreement is to memorialize
what is currently occurring.
Mr. Murray suggested that the Selectboard enter into a 30-minute executive session and rejoin the meeting
at 7:30 PM.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard make the
specific finding that general public knowledge of contracts would place the Town at a substantial
disadvantage. Motion passed 4-0.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard enter into
executive session and include the Town Manager, Deputy Town Manager, Assistant Manager, and
Town Attorney to discuss contracts pursuant to 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(1)(A). Motion passed 4-0.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA to exit executive session. Motion
passed 4-0 at 7:31 PM.
Mr. Murray called the Town of Essex Selectboard back into session at 7:31 PM.
Mr. Brown called the Village of Essex Junction Board of Trustees back into session at 7:31 PM.
Mr. Murray said the Selectboard discussed the Clerk/Treasurer’s agreement and suggested that the
agreement last for 18 months rather than five years. This is because the Clerk’s office is currently down an
employee, and they would like some time to figure out staffing needs. Language specifying the number of
employees in the Clerk/Treasurer’s Office was removed from the proposed agreement. Ms. Thibeault
suggested adding language about revisiting the contract. The Trustees expressed support for the changes
that were suggested.
b. Consider approval of upcoming joint meeting schedule
Mr. Murray said there is a meeting scheduled right after Christmas and Thanksgiving in 2022, and
suggested changing these dates. Ms. Cook concurred. Mr. Murray said that Mr. Watts had stated in an email that the Selectboard does not set their meeting dates until April, and Mr. Murray said that the dates
after April be tentatively scheduled. Mr. Teich suggested listing the two dates after Thanksgiving and
Christmas as “TBD,” and encouraged the Selectboard to set meeting dates at least through April.
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded SUE COOK, by to approve the proposed
Selectboard/Trustee meeting schedule for 2022 up to April 25. Motion passed 4-0.
DAN KERIN made a motion, seconded by GEORGE TYLER, to approve the proposed
Selectboard/Trustee meeting schedule for 2022 up to April 25. Motion passed 4-0.
c. Discussion and potential action on request from Trustees to Selectboard for payment for Finance
Director costs
Mr. Brown said the funds for shared management has already been collected, and that the Trustees are
requesting a return of these funds for the services that they will not be receiving. Mr. Brown presented
financial data showing how much of these funds have been spent, and how much time the shared Finance
2
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Director spent on each municipality. Mr. Brown said the Village Finance Director will be starting on
February 7th. As of this point, the Town Finance Department will no longer oversee the Village Finance
Department. Ms. Cook asked for clarification that this amount was to replace a previous financial request
of $60,000, Mr. Brown confirmed that this was correct. Ms. Delphia asked about a statement in the memo
that said that the Finance Director salary had no Village general fund contribution. Mr. Brown said that
the Villagers have paid for the Town Finance Director via their Town taxes. Therefore, only half of the
amount that the Village residents paid is requested to be refunded. Mr. Tyler said he does not believe
there is a legal obligation for the Town to pay these funds back, but that it is the right thing to do since the
Village paid for a service that is not going to be provided. Ms. Delphia asked if time spent by the Town
Finance Department assisting the new Village Finance Director may still be providing these services. Mr.
Luck said the new Village Finance Director will need minimal training. Ms. Hill-Fleury noted that the
new Village Finance Director will be using the 81 Main Street space and supplies and asked if the Village
plans on asking for funds for any other employees. Mr. Brown said that there were no plans to ask for
more funds for this purpose.
In public comment, Ms. Dunn said the budget was voted on by all, and that the services would still be
provided should the Village have decided to take them. Ms. Post said that her taxes would not be refunded
if she decided to move. Mr. Teich said that this request really comes down to how the Boards want their
relationship to be in coming years. Mr. Murray tabled the issue and requested that the Selectboard provide
questions and clarifications prior to the next meeting.
6. CONSENT AGENDA
None.
7. READING FILE
a. Board member comments: Ms. Delphia said that dog licenses were due on April 1. Ms. Cook asked
for clarification in the Independence summary and timeline regarding the date that the City would be
responsible for collecting taxes.
b. Memo from Brad Luck re: Independence summary and timeline
c. Update on stipend program for boards and committees
9. ADJOURN
AMBER THIBEAULT made a motion, seconded by DAN KERIN, for the Trustees to adjourn.
Motion passed 5-0 at 8:30 PM.
5. BUSINESS ITEMS
d. Consider adoption of Annual Town Meeting warning (Selectboard only)
Mr. Duggan presented the draft warning and asked if the Selectboard wanted the community to vote on
cannabis retailers and retail portions of integrated licensee establishments in one question, or to separate
the two types of retail into two questions. The Selectboard indicated support for the single question. Mr.
Murray requested public input, none was given. Mr. Duggan reminded the Board that there will be no inperson voting due to COVID. The logistics of informational meetings and timing of mailing ballots were
discussed.
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard
approve the warning for the 2022 Town Meeting as presented. Motion passed 4-0.
9. ADJOURN
3
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TRACEY DELPHIA made a motion, seconded by SUE COOK, for the Selectboard to adjourn.
Motion passed 4-0 at 8:42 PM.
Respectfully Submitted,
Darby Mayville
Recording Secretary
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TOWN OF ESSEX SELECTBOARD
DRAFT REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
MONDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2022
SELECTBOARD: Andy Watts, Chair; Sue Cook; Tracey Delphia; Dawn Hill-Fleury
ADMINISTRATION and STAFF: Evan Teich, Unified Manager; Annie Costandi, Stormwater
Engineer; Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager
OTHERS PRESENT: Amy Boudreaux, Marcus Certa, Heidi Clark, Kevin Collins, Annie Cooper,
Keith Cutler, Patty Davis, Erin Dickinson, Yves Dubief, Betsy Dunn, Dean Fraser, Nick Fukuda,
Gina Halpin Barrett, Bob Klinefelter, Ethan Lawrence, Rachael Lizotte, Rosa Mehren, Timothy
Miller, Toni Morgan, Brad Nutt, Leah Olave, Roseanne Prestipino, Alex Putnam, Matthew Salter,
Brian Shelden, Ken Signorello, Gillian Smith, Margaret Smith, Andrew Snyder, Michael Thorne,
Janet Walsh, Irene Wrenner, Doug Wilson, Lorraine Zaloom, Sharon Zukowski, Alex, Bob,
Damir, John, K, Kendall, Natalie, Terri, bhs21
1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Watts called the Town of Essex Selectboard to order at 6:30 PM.
2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES
Ms. Delphia requested that the minutes from January 24th be removed from the Consent Agenda
and discussed at a later meeting, as they were not present in the original packet.
3. APPROVE AGENDA
ANDY WATTS made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, to amend the agenda to
remove item 6b, “Approve minutes: January 24, 2022 – Joint.” The motion passed 4-0.
4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD
Ms. Dunn said the Conservation & Trails Committee has secured a $5,000 grant from the State
of Vermont Caring for Canopies Program.
5. BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Interview and potential appointment to Economic Development Commission: Nick
Fukuda
Mr. Fukuda said he works in finance and is passionate about business and economics. He feels
serving on the EDC is a good way for him to add value and get involved in the community. Ms.
Hill-Fleury asked what Mr. Fukuda felt the biggest economic problem in Essex is. He said he
believes a lack of affordable housing is the biggest problem. Ms. Delphia noted Mr. Fukuda’s
history as a Democratic staffer and asked how this experience would benefit the Commission.
Mr. Fukuda described his experience campaigning and gaining community input. He said he is
comfortable having difficult conversations in a civil and comfortable manner.
b. Consider approval of Unified Planning Work Program application for engineering
services related to the Phosphorous Control Plan
Ms. Costandi said this application is requesting $90,000 in funding, with a 20% local match, for
engineering services for the Phosphorus Control Plan. This work will help fund field work to
determine project feasibility and will allow the Town to apply for additional funding in the future.
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In public comment, Ms. Dunn asked if this would assist with phosphorus control at Indian Brook.
Ms. Costandi answered affirmatively.
Ms. Zaloom asked how this would relate to future developments, and Ms. Costandi said that all
developers need to have a stormwater review before construction.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by DAWN HILL-FLEURY, that the Selectboard
approve the application requesting funding under the CCRPC’s Unified Planning Work
Program and the authorize the Manager to sign the attached letter on behalf of the
Selectboard in support of the UPWP request. The motion passed 4-0.
c. Discussion and possible action to modify Economic Development Commission charter
Mr. Duggan said the Economic Development Commission (EDC) is interested in allowing the
Selectboard to appoint up to two non-resident business owners to the EDC. Mr. Shelden, Chair
of the Economic Development Commission, said the EDC has had difficulty in recruiting new
members, and that non-resident business owners could bring a new perspective. Ms. Cook
asked if it would make sense to expand the committee to seven and allow for two of those seats
to be for non-resident business owners. Mr. Shelden said this would be a challenge for the EDC,
as recruitment is a problem. He clarified that no members will be removed from the EDC to
make room for non-resident members.
In public comment, Ms. Wrenner said residents have been discouraged from joining the EDC
and suggested that this decision be delayed until after the Village’s separation from the Town
has been decided upon. Ms. Cooper expressed support for this proposal. Ms. Dunn asked about
the process for recruiting members to the EDC. Mr. Duggan said that this was done with a mix of
website/social media and personal outreach. Ms. Davis suggested that the EDC reach out to the
owner of the Essex Experience, Peter Edelmann, as he is skilled at attracting businesses to the
community. Mr. Signorello said the Chairman of the Commission, Mr. Shelden, is a business
owner. Mr. Lawrence said he feels that the EDC should be limited to residents. Ms. Delphia
presented the possibility of limiting the number of business owners (resident and non-resident)
that are allowed to serve on the EDC. The Selectboard decided to put this discussion on hold
until further details about the implication of separation develops.
d. Consider 30-day extension of Town of Essex Rule Requiring Wearing Face Coverings
Indoors in Public Spaces
Mr. Watts said this would extend the face covering rule to March 22. Mr. Watts said the covid
case numbers are currently down, and that if they continue to fall the Board may be able to
rescind this at the next meeting. Mr. Duggan will research this possibility. Ms. Delphia, Ms. HillFleury, and Ms. Cook expressed support for continuing the rule. Ms. Cook asked if there was a
possibility for the Town to purchase high quality masks for residents. Mr. Teich answered
affirmatively. Ms. Delphia suggested mask distribution at grocery stores.
In public comment, Mr. Shelden, Ms. Cooper, Mr. Dubief, Ms. Zaloom, Ms. Davis, and Ms.
Zukowski expressed support for continuing the mask mandate. Mr. Putnam and Mr. Cutler spoke
against extending the mask mandate. Ms. Cooper clarified that free masks are being distributed
through pharmacies and the difference between kn95 and n95 masks. Mr. Signorello
encouraged communication with business owners in this process.
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DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by SUE COOK, that the Essex Town
Selectboard extend the mask rule through March 22. Motion passed 4-0.
e. Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services
between Town of Essex and independent City of Essex Junction
This was discussed in executive session.
f. Consider appointment to Economic Development Commission: Ken Signorello
This was discussed in executive session.
7. CONSENT AGENDA
ANDY WATTS made a motion, seconded by DAWN HILL-FLEURY, to approve the Consent
Agenda. The motion passed 4-0.
a. Approve 2021 Certificate of Highway Mileage
b. Approve minutes: January 18, 2022; January 24, 2022 - Joint
c. Check Warrants: #17944-01/21/2022; #17947-01/28/2022
8. READING FILE
a. Board member comments: Ms. Hill-Fleury thanked Ms. Makuku for her dedicated service to
the Town and wished her luck on her new position. Ms. Delphia asked for Board approval to
work with staff on ways of improving committee communications and recruitment. Ms. Cook
informed the Board that the Town had been awarded a Bylaw Modernization grant. Mr. Watts
informed the Board that the term “Selectman” has been replaced with a gender-neutral term in
the current charter. In public comment, Ms. Dunn suggested holding an exit interview with Ms.
Makuku so that she can provide information for future planners. Ms. Hill-Fleury said that ballots
will be mailed out shortly.
b. Town Meeting 2022: Questions and Answers about Retail Cannabis
c. Email from Jennifer Lavioe re: 2022 Bylaw Modernization Grant Award Notification
d. Memo from Brad Luck re: Village Trustees Agree to Buy High-Quality Masks for
Residents
e. Chittenden County Regional Planning Commission January Newsletter
f. Memo from Dennis Lutz re: Christmas Tree Pick-up
g. Upcoming meeting schedule
9. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. An executive session is anticipated to discuss the appointment of public officials
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard enter
into executive session to discuss the proposed public official appointment(s) in
accordance with 1 V.S.A. Section 313 (a)(3) and to include the Unified Manager and
Deputy Manager. Motion passed 4-0.
b. An executive session may be needed to discuss negotiation of contracts and
agreements between the Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard make
the specific finding that general public knowledge of contracts would place the Town at a
substantial disadvantage. Motion passed 4-0.
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SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard enter
into executive session to discuss contracts in accordance with 1 V.S.A. Section 313 (a)(3)
and to include the Unified Manager and Deputy Manager. Motion passed 4-0.
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by SUE COOK, to exit executive session.
Motion passed 4-0 at 9:49 p.m.
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, to appoint Nick
Fukuda to the Economic Development Commission for a term ending June 30, 2023.
Motion passed 4-0.
10. ADJOURN
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by SUE COOK, to adjourn. Motion passed
4-0 at 9:51 p.m.
Respectfully Submitted,
Darby Mayville
Recording Secretary
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TOWN OF ESSEX SELECTBOARD
VILLAGE OF ESSEX JUNCTION TRUSTEES
DRAFT JOINT MEETING MINUTES
TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2022
SELECTBOARD: Andy Watts, Chair; Sue Cook; Tracey Delphia; Dawn Hill-Fleury; Patrick
Murray
TRUSTEES: Andrew Brown, President; Raj Chawla; Dan Kerin; Amber Thibeault; George Tyler
ADMINISTRATION and STAFF: Evan Teich, Unified Manager; Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager;
Marguerite Ladd, Assistant Manager; Brad Luck, Interim Village Co-Manager; Ron Hoague,
Police Chief; Jess Morris, Village Finance Director
OTHERS PRESENT: Jeff Benjamin, Kevin Collins, Annie Cooper, Bella D., Patty Davis, Erin
Dickinson, Betsy Dunn; Maureen Gillard, Gina Halpin Barrett, Jody Kamon, Erin Maguire,
Timothy Miller, Mary Post, Ken Signorello, Gillian Smith, Margaret Smith, Michael Thome, Giles
Willey, Sr Doug Wilson, Lorraine Zaloom, Bob, Jake, Jill, Mike, Patrick
1. CALL TO ORDER
Mr. Brown called the Village of Essex Junction Board of Trustees to order for the Joint meeting
with the Essex Selectboard at 6:30 PM.
Mr. Watts called the Town of Essex Selectboard to order for the Joint meeting with the Village of
Essex Junction Board of Trustees at 6:30 PM.
2. AGENDA ADDITIONS/CHANGES
Mr. Chawla requested that the most recent version of the Shared Services MOU be added to
Business Item d, “Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared
services between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction.” Mr. Brown requested that
a resolution in appreciation of Evan Teich be added to the agenda as item 5c. Ms. Delphia
requested that item 6b, “Consider approval of the extension agreement of the current Tree Farm
Management Group lease to 12/31/2022” be removed from the consent agenda and be included
as item 5d. The business items following will subsequently be renumbered.
3. APPROVE AGENDA
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by AMBER THIBEAULT, to approve the
agenda as amended. The motion passed 5-0.
TRACEY DELPHIA made a motion, seconded by SUE COOK, to approve the agenda as
amended. The motion passed 5-0.
4. PUBLIC TO BE HEARD
Ms. Dunn said that, as a Board of Civil Authority member, she is concerned that several ballot
envelopes have been reported as having incorrect names on them, which could result in the vote
not being counted. Mr. Signorello reported similar concerns and asked how the signatures
would be verified against the name on the ballot envelope. Mr. Teich asked that anyone with an
incorrect ballot call the Clerk’s office for guidance. Ms. Post said she was frustrated about
perceived rudeness in Mr. Teich’s response to Mr. Signorello.
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5. BUSINESS ITEMS
a. Equity Update from Essex Westford School District
Ms. Maguire provided an update of EWSD’s equity policies and procedures, policy review, and
activities and actions related to equity. She explained that policy is the direction of the school
board, and procedure is what enacted to put the policy in action. EWSD has been working to
include anti-racist education, to affirm all identities, and to support all types of family
engagement. This work is an ongoing journey, and not simply an item on a checklist. EWSD has
also increased focus around restorative practices as well as implicit bias training. Ms. Maguire
said that EWSD is working to increase the diversity of celebrations and foods in the schools. The
goal is for all members of the community to feel that the schools are accessible and welcoming
to them.
Mr. Chawla asked about the biggest challenges to the equity work. Ms. Maguire said recognizing
impact rather than intent, and to acknowledge when harm has been done. Mr. Murray praised
EWSD for the inclusion work and asked if the free school lunch program will continue. Ms.
Maguire said that conversations are still happening about this. Ms. Hill-Fleury asked for more
information about book selection review. Ms. McGuire responded that teachers and librarians
across all age groups are looking to review their materials from an equity perspective. Ms.
Delphia asked if any type of peer mentoring was done. Ms. Maguire responded that it is not
done directly but that the high school has a bias response committee with student members. The
Boards thanked Ms. Maguire for her hard work on equity initiatives.
b. Consider accepting the report and recommendations from Essex BEST (Building
Equity, Solidarity and Trust)
Ms. Kamon said Essex BEST formed to address municipal investments in equity, representative
leadership and public safety. The committee is working on drafting a three-year strategic plan to
build administrative, racial, and economic equity in the community. The BEST committee has
been working to develop relationships with people from underrepresented groups for them to
potentially step forward to serve in leadership roles. The Essex community has defined public
safety as a broad-based community promise that people’s basic needs, including housing, food,
transportation, childcare, etc. are being met. This became a guiding factor, that the most
vulnerable must be cared for first. The committee has also been working with dispatch and the
Essex Police to develop standards to improve equity and better utilize resources for Essex
citizens. Ms. Kamon said that accepting this report would show that the Boards back this work
and support to goals of the committee. Mr. Brown asked about the interaction between Essex
BEST and the Essex Police. Ms. Kamon responded that the Police Department is engaged and
supportive. Mr. Tyler asked for clarification on Ms. Kamon’s statement about the police being
“weaponized” against the community. Ms. Kamon said that this often occurs when citizens call
the police to report ordinary activities of other citizens but their personal biases inflate the
situation. The Boards thanked the volunteers of Essex BEST for their hard work.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded by DAWN HILL-FLEURY, that the Selectboard
accept the report, including its recommendations, and support both staff and Essex
BEST in the continuation of their execution of the report's recommendations. Motion
passed 5-0.
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RAJ CHAWLA made a motion, seconded by GEORGE TYLER, that the Trustees accept
the report, including its recommendations, and support both staff and Essex BEST in the
continuation of their execution of the report's recommendations. Motion passed 5-0.
c. Resolution in Appreciation of Evan Teich
Mr. Brown said this is the last joint meeting with Unified Manager Evan Teich and wanted to
show the Board’s appreciation for him and his impact on the community. Mr. Tyler read the
resolution aloud as presented, and the Boards gave Mr. Teich an ovation.
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by DAN KERIN, that the Trustees to approve
the Resolution in Appreciation of Evan Teich. Motion passed 5-0.
DAWN HILL FLEURY made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, that the
Selectboard approve the Proclamation in Appreciation of Evan Teich. Motion passed 5-0.
d. Consider approval of the extension agreement of the current Tree Farm Management
Group lease to 12/31/2022
Ms. Delphia said that a negotiating committee is working on this project, and that she requested
that this item be removed from the Consent Agenda so that this could be publicly stated. Ms.
Ladd said that will be brought back to both Boards in March, and that this extension is so that
the staff has enough time to develop a business plan.
RAJ CHAWLA made a motion, seconded GEORGE TYLER, that the Trustees approve the
extension agreement between the Tree Farm Group and the Village of Essex Junction and
Town of Essex as proposed. Motion passed 5-0.
SUE COOK made a motion, seconded TRACEY DELPHIA, that the Selectboard approve
the extension agreement between the Tree Farm Group and the Village of Essex Junction
and Town of Essex as proposed. Motion passed 5-0.
e. Village/City update on charter timeline and state process
Mr. Brown said that the separation bill has passed the House Governance Operations
Committee and is currently going to be presented to the House Ways and Means Committee on
February 16. If it passes, it will go to the full House for approval, followed by two Senatorial
Committees, the full Senate, then the governor for approval. Mr. Brown thanked Mr. Watts and
Mr. Murray for their testimony.
f. Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services
between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction
Mr. Brown said he hopes that the Selectboard can talk the Trustees through the changes
requested, and that the Trustees will then enter executive session for 30 minutes to discuss
them. Several small changes were reviewed without comment. The Board commented on
termination timelines, fees in the Clerk/Treasurer’s offices, and funding for separation initiatives.
8. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services
between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction
3
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RAJ CHAWLA made a motion, seconded by GEORGE TYLER, that the Trustees make the
specific finding that general public knowledge of contracts would place the Village at a
substantial disadvantage. Motion passed 5-0.
RAJ CHAWLA made a motion, seconded by GEORGE TYLER that the Trustees enter into
executive session to discuss contracts, pursuant to 1 V.S.A. § 313(a)(1)(A), to include the
interim municipal manager. Motion passed 5-0 at 8:19 PM.
RAJ CHAWLA made a motion, seconded by GEORGE TYLER, to exit executive session.
Motion passed 5-0 at 8:53 PM.
5. BUSINESS ITEMS
f. Discussion and potential action on tentative agreements about shared services
between Town of Essex and Village/City of Essex Junction
Mr. Brown suggested that the dates listed throughout be changed to 6/30/2023 for ease of
understanding. He said the Trustees are opposed to the inclusion of a statement saying that all
disputes arising from this agreement be referred the United States District Court, should they not
be addressed in mediation. Ms. Hill-Fleury asked why the Village attorney objected to this. Mr.
Brown said because it should not start out at this level. Ms. Thibeault said this is a new point that
has never come up in any other agreements that the Selectboard and Trustees have reviewed.
The Selectboard will approach their legal counsel about this change. The Boards discussed the
disentanglement of finance and administration costs. Mr. Brown expressed concern about the
recreation agreement and said the Trustees would like to go back to the original agreement for
recreation, Indian Brook and Senior Services, or not have any type of recreation agreement at
all. He said that the cost-sharing is unfair, and that the Trustees felt that the changes to this
document were non-negotiable.
Ms. Delphia asked if the Trustees would be amenable if EJRP and Indian Brook be taken out
and offered the suggestion to remove the 3.5% fee from the agreement for senior services, Mr.
Brown said this would not work. Ms. Cook asked for more details about why. Mr. Brown said the
agreement needs to provide equal access to community amenities without worrying about
indirect costs, and that time is running out to make this decision. Mr. Murray said that Senior
Services are crucial for the community, and that an agreement is essential. He suggested pulling
out the 3.5% figure and move forward. Mr. Brown said the Trustees are committed to providing
senior services, whether they work with the Town or not. Mr. Tyler said the Village is not
requesting any fees from the Town, and it is not fair for them to request fees from the Village.
In regards to the Clerk Agreement, the Trustees said they felt that the Clerk should be
responsible for handling how each fees are distributed, and that further language about this
does not need to be included. The Selectboard will discuss these changes further at their next
meeting.
g. Discuss shared boards and commissions
Mr. Luck said that Essex BEST, Committee on Equity Essex, the Essex Housing Commission,
the Energy Committee and the Economic Development Commission are the five Boards that are
currently shared between the two communities. Mr. Chawla expressed support for continuing to
share the Essex BEST committee since the police services will remain shared. He encouraged
the Boards to determine which boards they would like to share, how they will be shared, and
4
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how they will be funded. Mr. Watts expressed concern about the equitable funding to these
boards. Mr. Tyler expressed interest in a Village downtown committee to take advantage of state
funding for such. Mr. Brown suggested that the Boards work toward an agreement that would
indicate that the two communities have an interest in sharing boards and will work together to
iron out the details. Mr. Murray suggested that this is a good opportunity for a subcommittee to
work on. The Selectboard will discuss this independently at their next meeting.
6. CONSENT AGENDA
ANDY WATTS made a motion, seconded by TRACEY DELPHIA, to approve the Consent
Agenda. Motion passed 5-0.
GEORGE TYLER made a motion, seconded by DAN KERIN, to approve the Consent
Agenda. Motion passed 5-0.
a. Approve minutes - January 24, 2022
b. Consider approval of the extension agreement of the current Tree Farm Management
Group lease to 12/31/2022
7. READING FILE
a. Board member comments: Mr. Brown and Mr. Tyler reiterated their appreciation for Mr.
Teich’s leadership and hard work.
b. Upcoming meeting schedule
8. ADJOURN
DAN KERIN made a motion, seconded by RAJ CHAWLA, for the Trustees to adjourn.
Motion passed 5-0 at 10:03 PM.
DAWN HILL-FLEURY made a motion, seconded by PAT MURRAY, for the Selectboard to
adjourn. Motion passed 5-0 at 10:05 PM.
Respectfully Submitted,
Darby Mayville
Recording Secretary

5
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------09960

AAA POLICE SUPPLY

02/02/22 WILLIGER ALLOWANCE
92060

24455

ALLEGIANCE TRUCKS

01/17/22 Bulk DEF Fluid
40101138801D

19815

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

01/28/22 HATS
11TLPLVTRKTR

19815

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

01/30/22 RADIO EQUIPMENT
1GJNJT3HKPMY

19815

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

01/24/22 Office window cling
3052230

07155

AMERICAN ROCK SALT CO LLC

01/24/22 winter road salt
0695340

29410

BERGENDAHL DOROTHY

01/31/22 EEC Stipend-Bergendahl
011222D

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC
BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

01/21/22 tool for shop
43512

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

01/26/22 wing chain for trk 104
43537

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

01/26/22 painting supplies for PR
43540

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC
BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

01/28/22 GRAFFITI PAINT
43561

24475

BOND O'REILLY

AUTO-ESSEX

01/24/22 reflectors - trk 34
5677340384

24475

BOND O'REILLY

AUTO-ESSEX

01/26/22 reflector for trk 34
5677340674

03000

CARGILL SALT EASTERN INC

01/27/22 winter road salt
2906855233

07710

CCR SALES AND SERVICE LLC

01/28/22 chainsaw parts
58814

21210

CINTAS LOC # 68M 71 M
COMCAST

19330

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIO

01/21/22 EPD POTS LINES
9244268 0122

29390

COX COMMUNICATIONS
DODGE WILLIAM

01/31/22 EEC Stipend-Dodge
1122022

07150

DOROTHY ALLING MEMORIAL L

110-5-30-10-610.000

59.90

38073 02/07/22

149.99

38073 02/07/22

50.12

38073 02/07/22

3331.38

38074 02/07/22

50.00

38076 02/07/22

3.99

38077 02/07/22

53.98

38077 02/07/22

17.97

38077 02/07/22

26.98

38077 02/07/22

13.38

38077 02/07/22

27.99

38077 02/07/22

14.99

38077 02/07/22

74.95

38077 02/07/22

4.12

38078 02/07/22

4.94

38078 02/07/22

3920.10

38081 02/07/22

38.58

38082 02/07/22

114.97

38087 02/07/22

163.39

38088 02/07/22

553.65

38091 02/07/22

50.00

38092 02/07/22

50.00

38094 02/07/22

28.25

38096 02/07/22

General Supplies
110-5-40-12-600.000
Salt, Sand and Gravel
110-5-11-10-190.000
Board Member Payments
R&M Buildings & Grounds
110-5-40-12-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
General Supplies
110-5-41-10-431.000
R&M Buildings & Grounds
R&M Buildings & Grounds
General Supplies
110-5-20-10-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-600.000
Salt, Sand and Gravel
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
General Supplies
Transfer btwn Town/Villag
110-5-41-13-530.000
Communications
Professional Services
110-5-11-10-190.000
Board Member Payments

01/28/22 Bags for Kit Transfers Be 110-5-35-10-570.000
2

38071 02/07/22

Communications

01/27/22 Reference # 21 - 72.216.6 110-5-20-10-330.000
20798

17415

110-5-25-10-530.000

01/19/22 Internet 2 Lincoln 1/26-2 110-5-41-10-900.000
0136343 0122

861.75

Uniforms

01/31/22 replenish first aid suppl 110-5-41-15-610.000
5093067140

04940

110-5-20-10-612.000

01/27/22 hose nozzzle for new reel 110-5-41-15-610.000
43555

38069 02/07/22

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

01/27/22 surge protector for Chris 110-5-41-14-431.000
43546

07465

110-5-40-12-430.001

01/26/22 paint and light bulbs for 110-5-41-15-610.000
43539

136.99

Uniforms

12/02/21 grommet protector - 81 Ma 110-5-41-10-431.000
43084

07465

110-5-20-10-612.000

Other Purchased Services
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------29305

DUNN ELIZABETH C

02/01/22 CTC stipend - Dunn
11122D

19410

EAST COAST SIGNALS
EAST COAST SIGNALS

19410

EAST COAST SIGNALS

19410

EAST COAST SIGNALS

39060

ESSEX CAR WASH INC

01/31/22 Monthly Car washes
3868

29330

FINK MICHAEL

01/31/22 EEC Stipend-Fink
1122022D

24825

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 DEC CREDIT CARD
8151 122

24825

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 DEC CREDIT CARD
8151 122

19445

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

11/24/21 Co located purchases
EPRCC0122

19445

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

11/24/21 Co located purchases
EPRCC0122

21755

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

19805

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 January 2022 Statement
9572 122

19805

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 January 2022 Statement
9572 122

19805

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 January 2022 Statement
9572 122

19805

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 January 2022 Statement
9572 122

19805

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 January 2022 Statement
9572 122

16000

FISHER AUTO PARTS

01/26/22 reflector for trk 34
293364211

16000

FISHER AUTO PARTS

01/31/22 BATTERY
293364652

16000

FISHER AUTO PARTS

01/31/22 BATTERY RETURN
293364726

14595

FOLEY SERVICES INC

01/25/22 CARPET RUNNERS
1412383

14595

FOLEY SERVICES INC

02/01/22 CARPET RUNNERS
1413619

04035

GOT THAT RENTAL & SALES I

01/19/22 Shop supplies
95168

04035

GOT THAT RENTAL & SALES I

30685

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFF. A

110-5-20-10-430.000

01/12/22 GAAP Update
3036940

38098 02/07/22

515.00

38098 02/07/22

640.00

38098 02/07/22

129.00

38102 02/07/22

50.00

38106 02/07/22

67.99

38109 02/07/22

100.00

38109 02/07/22

285.00

38110 02/07/22

30.00

38110 02/07/22

977.00

38111 02/07/22

795.00

38112 02/07/22

19.84

38112 02/07/22

119.40

38112 02/07/22

60.00

38112 02/07/22

492.48

38112 02/07/22

9.70

38113 02/07/22

222.16

38113 02/07/22

-163.92

38113 02/07/22

52.11

38114 02/07/22

52.11

38114 02/07/22

119.18

38117 02/07/22

-63.00

38117 02/07/22

180.00

38118 02/07/22

R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-11-10-190.000
Board Member Payments
110-5-20-10-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-20-10-613.000
Program Supplies
110-5-30-12-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-30-10-500.000
Training, Conf, Dues
Training, Conf, Dues
110-5-10-10-500.000
Training, Conf, Dues
110-5-10-10-500.000
Training, Conf, Dues
110-5-10-10-505.000
Tech Subs, Licenses
110-5-35-10-570.000
Other Purchased Services
110-5-10-10-570.000
Other Purchased Services
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-20-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-20-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-41-13-400.000
Contracted Services
110-5-41-13-400.000
Contracted Services
110-5-30-12-610.000
General Supplies

01/25/22 Disc golf supplies - retu 110-5-30-12-431.000
c2302

8935.00

Traffic Control

01/25/22 classes - Dan R, Annie C, 110-5-40-12-500.000
9853 0122

38098 02/07/22

Traffic Control

01/18/22 December 2021 Signal Main 110-5-40-12-572.000
6884201952

1100.00

Traffic Control

01/18/22 Sept 2021 Signal Maintena 110-5-40-12-572.000
6870201952

38097 02/07/22

Traffic Control

01/18/22 ESSEX WAY @ 289 WB RAMP - 110-5-40-12-572.000
6866201952

50.00

Board Member Payments

01/18/22 July 2021 Signal Maintena 110-5-40-12-572.000
6865201952

19410

110-5-11-10-190.000

R&M Buildings & Grounds
110-5-13-10-330.000
Professional Services
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------07160

GREEN MOUNTAIN LIBRARY CO

01/30/22 Mango Languages Subscript 110-5-35-10-505.000
M223269

07160

GREEN MOUNTAIN LIBRARY CO

01/30/22 Mango Languages Subscript 110-1-00-00-120.000
M223269

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

07010

GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

23595

HAMMOND ELECTRIC INC

09001

IBM CORPORATION (PA)

27670

IROQUOIS MANUFACTURING, I

01/25/22 part for trk 25 plow
162033

29325

JACKSON SHANNON D

01/11/22 CTC Stipend-Jackson
11122D

28255

JOHN LEO & SONS

INC

01/11/22 Truck 34
133950

03525

KITTELL BRANAGAN & SARGEN

01/27/22 Audit services
83266

17710

KOFILE INC / GOVOS INC

04/20/21 Vital Records books
KT000855

08645

LOWES BUSINESS ACCT/SYNCB

01/14/22 supplies for PW office
12923

21445

MARCH PHIL A

01/31/22 EEC Stipend-March
11222D

05485
41950
03030

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTE
OTNIP GRAPHICS

12/25/21 Papercut 12/15-1/14/22

16020

POSTMASTER
RADIO NORTH GROUP INC

28030

ROUTE 15 AUTOMOTIVE SERVI
ROUTE 15 AUTOMOTIVE SERVI
ROUTE 15 AUTOMOTIVE SERVI

110-5-13-10-335.000
110-5-12-10-570.023

131200

8269.08

38120 02/07/22

910.05

38121 02/07/22

22.05

38123 02/07/22

389.21

38125 02/07/22

50.00

38126 02/07/22

109.40

38127 02/07/22

4037.50

38129 02/07/22

3781.37

38130 02/07/22

55.84

38131 02/07/22

50.00

38132 02/07/22

295.00

38133 02/07/22

117.00

38135 02/07/22

110.55

38136 02/07/22

6336.27

38137 02/07/22

50.00

38140 02/07/22

112.00

38142 02/07/22

110.95

38142 02/07/22

34.95

38142 02/07/22

Records Preservation
110-5-41-14-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-11-10-190.000
Board Member Payments
110-5-14-10-505.000

Professional Services
110-5-12-10-820.000
Elections

01/21/22 antennas for sidewalk plo 110-5-40-12-530.000

01/31/22 LOF

38120 02/07/22

Audit

110-5-10-10-330.000

01/31/22 LOF/BATTERY/2 TIRES

45.18

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

01/26/22 Business Card design

131199
28030

110-5-30-12-430.000

Training, Conf, Dues

01/11/22 M/B 4 TIRES/ DISPOSE

38120 02/07/22

Board Member Payments

110-5-20-10-500.000

131195
28030

110-5-11-10-190.000

1207305353

024143812

85.58

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

01/18/22 WHALLEY PHYSICAL

1000023560
24325

110-5-40-12-430.001

Tech Subs & Licenses

01/31/21 Ballot mailing postage

38120 02/07/22

R&M Technology

74921108

1429

194.16

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

01/31/22 5 ADD DEVICE MGMT SOFTWAR 110-5-20-10-432.000
6809211135

38120 02/07/22

Streetlight Electricity

01/28/22 Foster Road Electrical wo 110-5-30-12-430.000
9978JH

139.92

Electricity

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-40-12-622.200
012621 V

38120 02/07/22

Electricity

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-41-24-622.000
012621 V

178.47

Electricity

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-41-18-622.000
012621 V

38119 02/07/22

Electricity

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-41-17-622.000
012621 V

711.67

Electricity

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-41-16-622.000
012621 V

38119 02/07/22

Prepaid Expenses

01/26/22 Power various locations T 110-5-41-14-622.000
012621 V

508.33

Tech. Subs, Licenses

Communications
110-5-20-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-20-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-20-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment

Page 138 of 151

02/07/22

Town of Essex / Village of EJ Accounts Payable

Page 4 of 6

10:27 am

Check Warrant Report # 17949 Current Prior Next FY Invoices For Fund (GENERAL FUND)

sfitzGerald

For Check Acct 01(GENERAL FUND) All check #s 02/07/22 To 02/07/22 & Fund 1

Vendor

Invoice

Invoice Description

Date

Invoice Number

Amount
Account

Paid

Check

Check

Number Date

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------28030

ROUTE 15 AUTOMOTIVE SERVI

02/01/22 LOF/M/B TIRES/BRAKES
131201

28030

ROUTE 15 AUTOMOTIVE SERVI
S & D LANDSCAPES LLC

01/24/22 LOF-SYNTHETIC

110-5-20-10-430.000

SANEL NAPA

02/01/22 February Contracted Snow

SANEL NAPA
SANEL NAPA
SANEL NAPA

01/04/22 hydraulic fittings

110-5-40-12-430.001

SANEL NAPA

01/11/22 fittings, blades, hose

SIGN HERE

01/18/22 filters/fittings

SUNBELT RENTALS
SUNBELT RENTALS

01/19/22 jack for Trk 103

110-5-40-12-610.000

THE ROYAL GROUP INC

02/02/22 Magnetic sign for ballot

VERIZON WIRELESS
VERIZON WIRELESS
VERIZON WIRELESS

01/06/22 portable chloride pump

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/28/22 Ann Fire Al Test

Ins

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

44805

VMERS DB 110790

01/07/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/07/22

44805

VMERS DB 110790

01/14/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/14/22

44805

VMERS DB 110790

01/21/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/21/22

343.41

38146 02/07/22

29.97

38146 02/07/22

75.87

38146 02/07/22

34.00

38147 02/07/22

93.99

38151 02/07/22

110-5-40-12-610.000

90.58

38151 02/07/22

551.32

38152 02/07/22

1806.05

38154 02/07/22

720.20

38154 02/07/22

218.04

38154 02/07/22

240.06

38154 02/07/22

281.82

38154 02/07/22

40.01

38154 02/07/22

40.36

38154 02/07/22

40.36

38154 02/07/22

38.48

38154 02/07/22

40.36

38154 02/07/22

31400.55

38155 02/07/22

20700.47

38155 02/07/22

20405.72

38155 02/07/22

General Supplies

9897555231
36130

38146 02/07/22

Uniforms

9897555231
36130

110-5-12-10-820.000

01/28/22 safety equipment - Chapsa 110-5-40-12-612.000

9897555231
36130

50.46

Elections

686536
36130

38146 02/07/22

General Supplies

12151565201
11815

95.21

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

000122184134
29090

110-5-40-12-430.001
110-5-40-12-430.001

11231
29090

38143 02/07/22

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

89131712601
22625

6584.74

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

89131710774
02550

38142 02/07/22

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

89131701604t
02550

110-5-40-12-422.000

12/28/21 fittings, penetrating flu 110-5-40-12-430.001

89131691483
02550

104.95

Snow Removal

891316841971
02550

38142 02/07/22

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

220097
02550

341.95

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

131202
05280

110-5-20-10-430.000

110-5-41-13-400.000
Contracted Services
110-5-41-10-530.000
Communications
110-5-20-10-432.000
R&M Technology
110-5-20-10-530.000
Communications
110-5-25-10-611.000
Small Tools and Equipment
110-5-40-12-570.000
Other Purchased Services
110-5-40-13-570.000
Other Purchased Services
110-5-18-10-530.000
Communications
110-5-30-12-530.000
Communications
110-5-30-13-530.000
Communications
110-5-30-10-530.000
Communications
110-2-00-00-210.004
Retirement Payable
110-2-00-00-210.004
Retirement Payable
110-2-00-00-210.004
Retirement Payable
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------44805

VMERS DB 110790

01/28/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/28/22

28470

VMERS DB 110800

01/07/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/07/22

28470

VMERS DB 110800

01/14/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/14/22

28470

VMERS DB 110800

01/21/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-01/21/22

28470
29825

VMERS DB 110800
VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/28/22 Payroll Transfer

VT GAS SYSTEMS
VT GAS SYSTEMS

21887
29825

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/20/22 Gas various locations
21887

29825

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/20/22 Gas various locations
21887

29825

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/20/22 Gas various locations
21887

29825

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/20/22 Gas various locations
21887

27030

VT OFFICE OF CHILD SUPPOR

02/04/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/04/22

07565

W B MASON CO INC

02/02/22 Bal Jan office supplies
C1305527222

07565

W B MASON CO INC

02/02/22 Bal Jan office supplies
C1305527222

07565

W B MASON CO INC

02/02/22 Bal Jan office supplies
C1305527222

23390

WOMEN LEADING GOVERNMENT

02/01/22 Membership CB
020122D

05995

WRENNER IRENE

01/31/22 EEC Stipend-Wrenner
1122022D

27590

CATAMOUNT COLOR (OFFSET H
RESOURCE

22525

STAND UP RESOURCES

01/03/22 CJC WEBPAGE INFO BALANCE
010322D

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

26290

CHAMPLIN ASSOC. INC.

01/25/22 install Misson system at
2652

19330

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIO
ENGINEERS CONSTRUCTION IN

110-2-00-00-210.004

1680.11

38156 02/07/22

6300.05

38156 02/07/22

1742.57

38156 02/07/22

1103.23

38158 02/07/22

437.69

38158 02/07/22

123.72

38158 02/07/22

597.88

38158 02/07/22

517.24

38158 02/07/22

1143.36

38158 02/07/22

210.81

38158 02/07/22

311.54

38159 02/07/22

569.80

38160 02/07/22

8.00

38160 02/07/22

1285.00

38160 02/07/22

40.00

38162 02/07/22

50.00

38163 02/07/22

Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-11-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-14-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-12-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-17-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-10-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-5-41-18-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
110-2-00-00-210.005
Misc Deductions Payable
110-5-41-15-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-20-10-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-40-12-610.000
General Supplies
110-5-13-10-500.000
Training, Conf, Dues
110-5-11-10-190.000
Board Member Payments
1702.18 20422020 02/07/22

Printing and Binding
75.00

38141 02/07/22

205.18

38149 02/07/22

201.80

38154 02/07/22

3233.00

38085 02/07/22

48.03

38090 02/07/22

3259.75

38101 02/07/22

Professional Services
122-5-22-10-330.000
Professional Services
122-5-22-10-530.000
Communications
151-5-51-30-570.000
Other Purchased Services
Communications

12/30/21 excavating to get as-buil 151-5-51-20-433.000
4426

38156 02/07/22

Retirement Payable

01/21/22 Phone Chase Ct pump stati 151-5-51-30-530.000
2888343 122

03280

110-2-00-00-210.004

07/04/21 CJC ESG PARTICIPATION FEE 122-5-23-10-330.000
118618

6023.60

Retirement Payable

02/04/22 Prepaid postage 2021 Annu 110-5-11-10-550.000
2021TwnRep

35625

110-2-00-00-210.004

110-5-41-15-621.000

01/20/22 Gas various locations

38155 02/07/22

Retirement Payable

01/20/22 Gas various locations

21887
29825

110-2-00-00-210.004

Retirement Payable

01/20/22 Gas various locations

21261.01

Retirement Payable

PR-01/28/22
21887
29825

110-2-00-00-210.004

R&M Infrastructure
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Vendor

Invoice

Invoice Description

Date

Invoice Number

Amount
Account

Paid

Check

Check

Number Date

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------38955

F W WEBB COMPANY

01/24/22 auger - water/sewer
74710978

18000

FERGUSON WATERWORKS #590
GREEN MOUNTAIN POWER CORP

03525

KITTELL BRANAGAN & SARGEN

01/27/22 Audit services
83266

42075
36130

STATE OF VERMONT

29825

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE

151-5-51-10-530.000

01/20/22 Gas various locations

VT GAS SYSTEMS

01/20/22 Gas various locations
21887

29360

FESTA JAMES

01/14/22 Bolton option change
129417

19445

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

11/24/21 Co located purchases
EPRCC0122

36130

VERIZON WIRELESS

01/18/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE
9897555231

38104 02/07/22

1260.60

38120 02/07/22

712.50

38129 02/07/22

80.00

38150 02/07/22

40.01

38154 02/07/22

361.13

38158 02/07/22

324.77

38158 02/07/22

104.00

38105 02/07/22

-300.84

38110 02/07/22

40.36

38154 02/07/22

Audit
Training, Conf, Dues

21887
29825

151-5-51-10-335.000

01262022D
9897555231

102.39

Electricity

01/26/22 Dennis Lutz Water Operato 151-5-51-20-500.000

VERIZON WIRELESS

38103 02/07/22

Exchange

01/26/22 Power various locations T 151-5-51-30-622.000
012621 V

54.01

Small Tools and Equipment

12/20/21 for water main break Clar 151-1-00-00-130.000
1070316

07010

151-5-51-10-611.000

Communications
151-5-51-10-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
151-5-51-10-621.000
Natural Gas/Heating
159-1-00-00-130.000
Exchange
159-5-30-14-850.154
Halloween
159-5-30-14-530.000
Communications
-----------

Report Total

190559.35
===========

To the Treasurer of Town of Essex, We Hereby certify

___________________________________

that there is due to the several persons whose names are
listed hereon the sum against each name and that there
are good and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments
aggregating $ ***190,559.35

___________________________________

Let this be your order for the payments of these amounts.

___________________________________

___________________________________

___________________________________
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Vendor

Invoice

Invoice Description

Date

Invoice Number

Amount
Account

Paid

Check

Check

Number Date

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------37985

A T & T MOBILITY

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD
878149802022

37985

A T & T MOBILITY

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD
878149802022

37985
37985

A T & T MOBILITY
A T & T MOBILITY
A T & T MOBILITY
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES

Tech: Equip/Hardware

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD

110-5-20-10-432.000

02/06/22 PRINTER INK
1NYQGPVCLNWT

23190

BAILEY SPRING & CHASSIS

02/02/22 TIRE CHAIN E3
S 31345

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

24475

BOND O'REILLY

AUTO-ESSEX

01/03/22 battery core credit
5677337577

24475

BOND O'REILLY

AUTO-ESSEX

01/27/22 supplies
5677340856

24475

BOND O'REILLY

AUTO-ESSEX

01/27/22 supplies
5677340856

07710

CCR SALES AND SERVICE LLC

02/07/22 snowblower parts
58939

25120

CLICKTIME.COM

02/03/22 Jan Clicktime
365660

25120

CLICKTIME.COM

02/03/22 Jan Clicktime
365660

04940

COMCAST

04940

COMCAST
COMCAST

19330

CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIO
ESSEX EQUIPMENT INC

01/03/22 Spreader
08840

04640

FASTENAL INDUSTRIAL & CON

12/07/21 EMS GLOVES
VTSTA85155

04640

FASTENAL INDUSTRIAL & CON

01/20/22 EMS N95 MASKS
VTSTA85395

04640

FASTENAL INDUSTRIAL & CON

21825

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA

01/25/22 EMS FACE MASKS
5442 0122

13570

GALE/CENGAGE LEARNING

02/02/22 Large Print Adult Books
77100464

04035

GOT THAT RENTAL & SALES I

110-5-25-10-430.000

43.23

38164 02/11/22

83.20

38164 02/11/22

94.82

38168 02/11/22

350.00

38169 02/11/22

17.95

38170 02/11/22

-22.00

38172 02/11/22

33.98

38172 02/11/22

30.39

38172 02/11/22

24.33

38176 02/11/22

104.00

38180 02/11/22

328.00

38180 02/11/22

97.89

38182 02/11/22

274.17

38182 02/11/22

243.28

38183 02/11/22

58.42

38186 02/11/22

56.17

38192 02/11/22

449.00

38194 02/11/22

190.00

38194 02/11/22

80.95

38194 02/11/22

116.22

38195 02/11/22

50.98

38202 02/11/22

27.96

38204 02/11/22

R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-16-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-30-10-505.000
Technology, Subscriptions
110-5-13-10-505.000
Tech. Subs, Licenses
Communications
R&M Technology
Contracted Services
Communications
110-5-30-12-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-25-10-611.000
Small Tools and Equipment
110-5-25-10-611.000
Small Tools and Equipment
Uniforms
110-5-25-10-611.000
Small Tools and Equipment
110-5-35-10-640.201
Adult Collection

02/01/22 safety flagging for cross 110-5-40-12-610.000
95429

38164 02/11/22

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

01/28/22 SAFETY GLASSES EMS AND FI 110-5-25-10-612.000
VTSTA85450

43.23

General Supplies

01/30/22 12/30-1/29/22 Potts lines 110-5-30-11-530.000
013022

23215

110-5-20-10-610.000

01/27/22 internet services - 5 Jer 110-5-41-14-400.000
0167066 0222

38164 02/11/22

Other Purchased Services

01/26/22 EPD CABLE/INTERNET 2/3-3/ 110-5-20-10-432.000
0136954 0122

04940

110-5-40-12-570.000

01/26/22 EPD CABLE/INTERNET 2/3-3/ 110-5-20-10-530.000
0136954 0122

29.80

R&M Technology

02/04/22 fittings for dump truck h 110-5-40-12-430.001
43604

38164 02/11/22

Communications
110-5-14-10-735.000

878149802022
19815

110-5-30-12-530.000

878149802022

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD

100.58

Communications

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD

878149802022
37985

110-5-30-13-530.000

General Supplies
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Invoice

Invoice Description

Date

Invoice Number

Amount
Account

Paid

Check

Check

Number Date

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------04035

GOT THAT RENTAL & SALES I

02/07/22 Shovel - shop
95549

04035

GOT THAT RENTAL & SALES I

01/13/22 Leaf vac repairs
w6238

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Juvenile Book
57418490

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Juvenile Book
57418490

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Adult Books
57418491

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Adult Books
57418491

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Adult Book
57418492

33495

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES I

01/27/22 Adult Book
57418492

43815

JERIHILL ACE HARDWARE
JOHN LEO & SONS

INC

12/31/21 Truck34 oil change
01112022-34

28255

JOHN LEO & SONS

INC

17710

KOFILE INC / GOVOS INC

02/07/22 February Land Records
KSW002891

03845

LAWSON PRODUCTS INC

01/25/22 restock nuts, bolts, etc
9309210827

27825
14025

LEXIPOL
LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS
MCNEIL,LEDDY, & SHEAHAN I
MVP SELECT CARE INC.
NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING
NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING
NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING
NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

110-5-35-10-610.000

39.54

38207 02/11/22

3.43

38207 02/11/22

9.75

38207 02/11/22

1.99

38207 02/11/22

20.13

38210 02/11/22

109.40

38211 02/11/22

85.00

38211 02/11/22

1205.00

38212 02/11/22

116.98

38213 02/11/22

3915.00

38215 02/11/22

371.00

38216 02/11/22

6582.90

38218 02/11/22

37.50

38220 02/11/22

46.32

38221 02/11/22

46.32

38221 02/11/22

177.89

38221 02/11/22

80.74

38221 02/11/22

80.74

38221 02/11/22

80.74

38221 02/11/22

80.74

38221 02/11/22

138.97

38221 02/11/22

R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-30-12-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-12-10-505.000
Tech. Subs, Licenses
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies

110-5-20-11-210.000
Group Insurance
110-5-10-10-320.000
Legal Services
Tech. Subs, Licenses
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip
Rental Vehicles/Equip

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-12-10-442.000
75412307

38207 02/11/22

General Supplies

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-35-10-442.000
75412307

0.72

Adult Collection

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-20-10-442.000
75412307

05485

110-5-35-10-640.201

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-25-10-442.000
75412307

38207 02/11/22

General Supplies

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-20-10-442.000
75412307

05485

110-5-35-10-610.000

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-10-10-442.000
75412307

9.52

Adult Collection

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-40-10-442.000
75412307

05485

110-5-35-10-640.201

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-40-12-442.000
75412307

38204 02/11/22

General Supplies

02/02/22 Administrative Fee Invoic 110-5-13-10-505.000
202201 TWN

05485

110-5-35-10-610.000

Training, Conf, Dues

01/26/22 Town legal bill Dec

1218.99

Juvenile Collection

110-5-20-10-500.000

012622D
44275

110-5-35-10-640.202

1NVPRA8566
02/01/22 RICK Garey Life

38204 02/11/22

R&M Vehicles & Equipment

02/01/22 POLICEONE TRAINING

ESS1675296
26475

110-5-30-12-430.000

02/02/22 diagnostics on trk 54 (To 110-5-40-12-430.000
134313

16.99

R&M Buildings & Grounds

02/02/22 STRAPS FOR TIRE CHAINS E3 110-5-25-10-430.000
234770

28255

110-5-30-12-431.000

Rental Vehicles/Equip

Page 143 of 151

02/11/22

Town of Essex / Village of EJ Accounts Payable

Page 3 of 5

11:58 am

Check Warrant Report # 17951 Current Prior Next FY Invoices For Fund (GENERAL FUND)

sfitzGerald

For Check Acct 01(GENERAL FUND) All check #s 02/11/22 To 02/11/22 & Fund 1

Vendor
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Check
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-40-10-442.000
75412307

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-20-10-442.000
75412307

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

37605

NEW ENGLAND MUNICIPAL RES

02/01/22 Annual CAMA
49828

40075

NEW YORK CLEANERS
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY

02/01/22 JAN DRY CLEANING
01/17/22 Maintenance Service 81
100400661526

22860

PARSONS ENVIRONMENT & INF

02/03/22 VT State inspections
66912

43435

POWER PLAN

02/02/22 parts for Loader

R R CHARLEBOIS INC

02/02/22 relays for headlight-trk
IE12362

37430

R R CHARLEBOIS INC

01/21/22 T1 BRAKE FREEZE UP
RC77124

42565

SEVEN DAYS
STREAMLIGHT

01/21/22 FLOOD LIGHT REPAIR

SUNBELT RENTALS

01/26/22 Chain saw fuel
122104945000

36825

THE SMALL ENGINE CO INC

02/01/22 chainsaw parts
092827

21000

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

02/03/22 mats

VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.

02/01/22 AVL MONTHLY SERVICE

VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.

02/01/22 AVL MONTHLY SERVICE
2674847

34580
41920

VT GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFF
VT HERITAGE DISTRIBUTORS
VT HERITAGE DISTRIBUTORS
VT OFFICE OF CHILD SUPPOR
VT PET FOOD & SUPPLY

01/31/22 Jan bottled water svc 81

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
02/02/22 K9 FOOD

ICMA - 457 (PLAN 302056)

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer

ICMA-RC (PLAN 705508)

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

23055

ICMA - 401

110-5-40-12-430.001

( PLAN 10904

251.85

38224 02/11/22

231.84

38225 02/11/22

6.63

38226 02/11/22

398.97

38229 02/11/22

17.68

38231 02/11/22

112.06

38231 02/11/22

55.64

38236 02/11/22

70.60

38241 02/11/22

39.88

38243 02/11/22

63.94

38244 02/11/22

93.25

38248 02/11/22

291.42

38249 02/11/22

32.38

38249 02/11/22

20.00

38255 02/11/22

83.95

38256 02/11/22

54.00

38256 02/11/22

311.54

38257 02/11/22

151.99

38258 02/11/22

4097.61

2090346 02/11/22

525.83

2090347 02/11/22

860.86

2090348 02/11/22

R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-25-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment

110-5-25-10-430.000
R&M Vehicles & Equipment
110-5-30-12-431.000
R&M Buildings & Grounds
110-5-40-12-430.001

R&M Vehicles - Supplies
110-5-40-12-530.000
Communications
110-5-30-12-530.000
Communications

110-5-13-10-610.000
General Supplies

01/31/22 Jan bottled water svc PWO 110-5-40-12-570.000

PR-02/11/22
14545

110-5-40-12-570.000

Training, Conf, Dues

020222D
09005

38223 02/11/22

R&M Buildings & Grounds

110-5-13-10-500.000

PR-02/11/22
00935

110-5-41-10-431.000

22WintWksp20

902441 122
27030

756.30

Uniforms

02/10/22 2022 Winter Workshop

901793 122
41920

110-5-20-10-612.000

wiper rags - hgwy g 110-5-40-12-430.001

2674847
19720

110-5-15-10-330.000

R&M Vehicles - Supplies

1080065064
19720

38221 02/11/22

Advertising

1659132
29090

120.43

Rental Vehicles/Equip

01/26/22 Planning Commission ad Fe 110-5-16-10-540.000
217783

22630

38221 02/11/22

Other Purchased Services

9280284
37430

138.97

Professional Services

020122D
27240

38221 02/11/22

Rental Vehicles/Equip

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 110-5-13-10-442.000
75412307

94.15

Rental Vehicles/Equip

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

Other Purchased Services
110-2-00-00-210.005
Misc Deductions Payable
110-5-20-10-613.000
Program Supplies
110-2-00-00-210.005
Misc Deductions Payable
110-2-00-00-210.005
Misc Deductions Payable
110-2-00-00-210.004
Retirement Payable
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-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------V1160

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

V1161

ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-401

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

21385

HEALTH EQUITY

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

05390

FAMILY SUPPORT REGISTRY

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

17425

ICMA ROTH PLAN 706287

02/11/22 Payroll Transfer
PR-02/11/22

V10636

HEALTH EQUITY
THOMSON REUTERS - WEST

02/01/22 JAN CLEAR LE INVEST
845781455

19720

VERIZON CONNECT NWF, INC.

02/01/22 AVL MONTHLY SERVICE
2674847

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

19205

GREEN MOUNTAIN PIPELINE S

12/31/21 Slip lining Sand HIll Rd
1

04525

STANTEC CONSULTING SVC IN
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES

02/08/22 Rav4 Lease Pmt 34
WS401 0222

17250

TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES

02/08/22 Rav4 Lease Pmt 34
WS401 0222

37985

A T & T MOBILITY

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD
878149802022

42625

ALDRICH & ELLIOTT PC

02/01/22 Town Center Waterline
80376

42625

ALDRICH & ELLIOTT PC

07465

BIBENS ACE HARDWARE INC

02/02/22 small tools wS
43588

23435

CHAMPLAIN WATER DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED COMMUNICATIO

29465

DUKE'S ROOT CONTROL INC
E J

PRESCOTT INC

01/31/22 clamp for water break on
5979490

06870

ENDYNE INC

06870

ENDYNE INC
ENDYNE INC

06870

ENDYNE INC

121-5-00-00-750.000

25.00 22021103 02/11/22
23.70 22021104 02/11/22
194.78

38245 02/11/22

259.04

38249 02/11/22

138.97

38221 02/11/22

73571.56

38205 02/11/22

3343.95

38238 02/11/22

235.75

38247 02/11/22

48.95

38247 02/11/22

137.14

38164 02/11/22

585.32

38166 02/11/22

860.00

38166 02/11/22

39.98

38170 02/11/22

51146.11

38178 02/11/22

56.66

38186 02/11/22

5588.59

38189 02/11/22

278.77

38190 02/11/22

540.00

38191 02/11/22

405.00

38191 02/11/22

540.00

38191 02/11/22

405.00

38191 02/11/22

Machinery & Equipment
121-5-00-00-750.000
Machinery & Equipment
Rental Vehicles/Equip
130-5-40-13-722.000
General Stormwater
CA0536 Cul-De-Sac Retro
130-5-95-00-970.907
Lease Prin - Assr Vehicle
130-5-95-00-975.907
Lease Int - Assr Vehicle
151-5-51-10-530.000
Communications
151-5-51-70-723.002
Town Center Water Line
Sand Hill RD Waterline
151-5-51-10-611.000
Small Tools and Equipment
CWD Water Purchase
Communications
R&M Infrastructure
151-5-51-20-433.000
R&M Infrastructure
Other Purchased Services
Other Purchased Services
Other Purchased Services

02/02/22 Hegeman Ave water main br 151-5-51-20-570.000
399382

69.23 22021102 02/11/22

Professional Services

02/02/22 Hegeman Ave water main br 151-5-51-20-570.000
399381

160.31 22021101 02/11/22

Retirement Payable

02/02/22 Hegeman Ave water main br 151-5-51-20-570.000
399379

06870

110-2-00-00-210.004

02/02/22 Hegeman Ave water main br 151-5-51-20-570.000
399378

2092515 02/11/22

Judgements Payable

08/31/21 root removal from sewer l 151-5-51-30-433.000
19551

40025

110-2-00-00-210.010

01/30/22 12/30-1/29/22 Potts lines 151-5-51-30-530.000
013022

3450.45

HSA Payable HE

01/31/22 water consumption January 151-5-51-20-411.000
013122DA

19330

110-2-00-00-210.009

02/01/22 Sand Hill Intersection Wa 151-5-51-70-723.001
80382

2090514 02/11/22

Retirement Payable

02/03/22 Cul-de-sac Stormwater Ret 130-5-40-13-890.810
1883914

17250

110-2-00-00-210.004

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 122-5-22-10-442.000
75412307

966.68

Retirement Payable

02/01/22 Monthly Fees for Feb 2022 110-5-13-10-330.000
zhtcj3r

26030

110-2-00-00-210.004

Other Purchased Services
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02/11/22

Town of Essex / Village of EJ Accounts Payable

Page 5 of 5

11:58 am

Check Warrant Report # 17951 Current Prior Next FY Invoices For Fund (GENERAL FUND)

sfitzGerald

For Check Acct 01(GENERAL FUND) All check #s 02/11/22 To 02/11/22 & Fund 1

Vendor

Invoice

Invoice Description

Date

Invoice Number

Amount
Account

Paid

Check

Check

Number Date

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------23980

INTERSTATE BATTERY OF VT

02/02/22 battery for pump station
903201015786

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING
YIPES!

AUTO ACCESSORIES

01/28/22 seat covers for trk 604
2071

37985

A T & T MOBILITY

01/23/22 CELL PHONE SERVICE PD
878149802022

38700

BOLTON VALLEY

RESORT INC

01/19/22 Bolton - 2nd Payment
2022ASPPmt2

28110

CATOE LAURA

01/27/22 Bolton cancellation
129841

29430

LEHMANN DEVON

01/26/22 Cancellation refund
129702

05485

NATIONAL BUSINESS LEASING

14255

SANTANIELLO JAIME

01/27/22 Change in Bolton package
129842

38208 02/11/22

46.32

38221 02/11/22

223.20

38262 02/11/22

34.92

38164 02/11/22

6504.00

38171 02/11/22

324.00

38175 02/11/22

55.00

38214 02/11/22

177.90

38221 02/11/22

30.00

38235 02/11/22

Rental Vehicles/Equip
151-5-51-10-430.001
R&M Vehicles - Supplies
159-5-30-15-530.000
Communications
159-5-30-14-835.000
Program Instructor Fees
159-1-00-00-130.000
Exchange
159-1-00-00-130.000
Exchange

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 159-5-30-14-442.000
75412307

23.90

R&M Infrastructure

02/07/22 Copier leases 2/15-3/14/2 151-5-51-10-442.000
75412307

23485

151-5-51-30-433.000

Rental Vehicles/Equip
159-1-00-00-130.000
Exchange
-----------

Report Total

176754.80
===========

To the Treasurer of Town of Essex, We Hereby certify

___________________________________

that there is due to the several persons whose names are
listed hereon the sum against each name and that there
are good and sufficient vouchers supporting the payments
aggregating $ ***176,754.80

___________________________________

Let this be your order for the payments of these amounts.

___________________________________

___________________________________

___________________________________
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Memorandum
TO: Evan Teich, Unified Manager and the Selectboard
FROM: Dennis Lutz, P.E., Public Works Director
DATE: 8 February 2022
SUBJECT: Status of Winter Operations through 7 February 2022(INFORMATION)
Although being hit recently by a significant snowstorm, the Department’s use of
materials appears to be on track with what can be described as average or expected
usage. Overtime is still within budget but on the high side. Many of the storm events
have occurred on holidays or weekends, resulting in either time-and-a-half pay or double
time pay and this has led to somewhat higher labor costs. There is no anticipation of a
shortage of sand or salt and currently there are no active or contact-related COVID cases
affecting the workforce.
Winter Overtime:
The following table compares the winter overtime at this time of year for the current year
and the past two years:
Winter
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022

Overtime to Date
1994 man-hours
1068 man-hours
1834 man-hours

The approved budget for this year includes approximately 2700 man-hours of overtime.
We are about 61% through the winter period and have used approximately 68% of the
budgeted overtime hours.
Winter Salt Use:
The following table compares the winter salt purchased at this time of year for the current
year and the past two years.
Winter
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022

Salt Purchased to Date
1122 tons (1149 tons used)
601 tons (770 tons used)
763 tons (922 tons used)

The amount budgeted for regular salt this year is 1,644 tons and 256 tons for low temp
salt. We are 61% through the winter and our salt usage is at 49%.
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Sand use:
The following table compares the winter sand use at this time of year for the current year
and the past two years.
Winter
2019-2020
2020-2021
2021-2022

Sand used to Date
3722 cy
2098 cy
2419 cy

The sand budget for the year is based on a total of 5000 tons (4125 cy) at a price of
$13.75 per ton. We are currently at 59% of the budget. Salt costs significantly more than
sand (approximately 5 times the cost) so as long as salt use remains low, we can afford to
purchase added sand without significantly impacting the winter budget.
Summary
Winter expenditures are almost totally dependent on weather. If current weather patterns
continue, Public Works will finish the winter season at or below the approved winter
budget.
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February 16, 2022
Mr. Andy Watts, Chair
Town of Essex Selectboard
81 Main Street
Essex Junction, Vermont 05452-3209
Via e-mail
Dear Mr. Chair,
This correspondence is to formally tender my resignation for the remainder of my current appointment
term as the Town Outside the Village Commissioner for the Chittenden County Regional Planning
Commission and as one of two members from the Town Outside the Village of the Tri-Town Sewer
Committee. These resignations will be effective as of February 28, 2022.
It has been an honor to represent the Town and be a contributing member of these important
organizations on behalf of the community through the years. As I indicated to the Selectboard last
December, my resignations are due to a change in my life where my spouse and I will no longer be
residents of the Town of Essex as of the end of this month.
Again, thank you for the opportunity to serve. My wife Patricia and I wish you and all members of the
community “the best” as the Town moves toward a new stage of its operations.
With Best Regards,

Jeffrey B. Carr
jbc@epreconomics.com
(802) 373-7666

CC:

Mr. Evan Teich, Unified Manager—Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction
Mr. Greg Duggan, Deputy Manager-Town of Essex and Village of Essex Junction
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MEETING SCHEDULES
TOWN SELECTBOARD MEETINGS

02/24/2022
VILLAGE TRUSTEES MEETINGS

JOINT MEETINGS

Meeting Date/Time

Meeting/Location

February 28, 2022—7:30 PM

Town Informational Hearing—Remote only

Recording
Secretary
Darby

March 1, 2022

Town Australian Ballot Voting 7am to 7pm

N/A

March 7, 2022—6:30 PM

SB Regular

Darby

March 8, 2022—6:30 PM

VB Regular

Amy

March 21, 2022—6:30 PM

SB Regular

Darby

March 22, 2022—6:30 PM

VB Regular

Cathy

March 28, 2022—6:30 PM

Joint Meeting – location TBD (added 1/24)

Darby

April 4, 2022—6:30 PM

SB Regular

Darby

April 6, 2022—7:00 PM

Village Informational Hearing

Cathy

April 12, 2022

Village Australian Ballot Voting

N/A

April 13, 2022—6:30 PM

VB Regular

Darby

April 25, 2022—6:30 PM

Joint Meeting – location TBD (added 1/24)

Darby
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